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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND KEY DATES
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Principal Office
24th Floor

Emperor Group Centre
288 Hennessy Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

Registrar (in Bermuda)
Codan Services Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

Registrar (in Hong Kong)
Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Bank of Shanghai (Hong Kong) Limited

Dah Sing Bank Limited

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Key Dates
Annual Results Announcement
Book Close Dates

8 December 2016

— For 2017 AGM

— For Final Dividend
Record Dates

— For 2017 AGM

— For Final Dividend
Annual General Meeting
Payment of Final Dividend

25 and 26 January 2017
6 and 7 February 2017

26 January 2017

7 February 2017

26 January 2017

24 February 2017
(HK1.28 cents per share)

Corporate Communications

This Annual Report (in both English and Chinese versions) is
available to any Shareholder of the Company (“Shareholder(s)”)
either in printed form and on the websites of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (http://www.hkexnews.com) and the
Company. In order to protect the environment, the Company
highly recommends the Shareholders to receive electronic copy
of this Annual Report. Shareholders may have the right to change
their choice of receipt of our future Corporate Communications
at any time by reasonable notice in writing to the Company or the
Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries
Limited, by post or by email at is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Financing 773,402 465,762 +66.1%
B3

Brokerage o
i 109,206 151,499 27.9%
Placing & Underwriting ) o
D = £ 0 3 88,216 180,006 51.0%
Corporate Finance o
AERE 15,391 37,810 59.3%

Basic (HK cents)

ELA G 8.95 10.21 -12.3%
Diluted (HK cents) .
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWED T

Established in 1993, the Group (comprising Emperor Capital
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries) is a
renowned Hong Kong based financial institution providing a
wide range of financial services including (i) commercial and
personal lending as well as margin and initial public offering
(“IPQ”) financing; (ii) brokerage, wealth management and asset
management; (iii) placing and underwriting services for listed
issuers; and (iv) corporate finance advisory services.

Market Review

During the year ended 30 September 2016 (the “Year”),
global financial markets experienced a high level of volatility
amid concerns over the slowing global economy, potential
risks associated with monetary easing policies in major
developed countries, along with the shockwaves following the
unprecedented Brexit vote. As a result, investment sentiment in
Hong Kong was generally weak. However, in the third quarter
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEERWED T

of 2016, the Hong Kong stock market staged a strong rally,
driven by the United State’s intention to maintain accommodative
monetary conditions and the growing expectations regarding the
imminent launch of Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect scheme.
Against a high comparison base, the average daily turnover in the
Hong Kong securities market decreased by 36.3% to HK$68.83
billion (2015: HK$108.0 billion).

With prominent listings by several Chinese financial services
institutions, Hong Kong is set to maintain its leadership in the
world’s IPO market in 2016. During the Year, there were 126 new
listings on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), raising a total of HK$237.8 billion (2015: HK$257.5
billion).

Against a backdrop of global economic uncertainties, capital
investment in Hong Kong and the Mainland China remained
lacklustre. Domestic credit demand moderated as corporate
customers became more conservative in borrowing amid
subdued business sentiment. While commercial banks have
remained cautious about lending, non-bank money lenders have
achieved vitality among small and medium-sized enterprise
borrowers.

Financial Review
Overall Review

Despite market volatility, the Group has managed to deliver
satisfactory performance by continuously prioritising resources
into financing segment. During the Year, the Group’s revenue
registered a growth of 18.1% to HK$986.2 million (2015:
HK$835.1 million), driven by a surge in interest income, which
offset the revenue decline in all other segments in response to
the weakened market sentiment. Profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company grew by 22.2% to HK$525.6 million
(2015: HK$430.3 million). Net profit margin raised from 51.5%
to 53.3%. Basic earnings per share was HK8.95 cents (2015:
HK10.21 cents). The board of directors of the Company (the
“Board” or the Directors”) recommended the payment of a
final dividend of HK1.28 cents per share (2015: HK1.60 cents).
Together with the interim dividend of HK1.20 cent per share
(2015: HKO.70 cent), the total dividend per share for the Year was
HK2.48 cents (2015: HK2.30 cents).

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group financed its operations mainly by cash generated
from operations and borrowings, as well as proceeds raised
from issuance of bonds and equity financing exercises. As at 30
September 2016, the Group’s current assets and current liabilities
were HK$8,042.3 million (as at 30 September 2015: HK$6,519.4
million) and HK$2,950.1 million (as at 30 September 2015:
HK$2,355.7 million), respectively. As at 30 September 2016,
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B W DA

aggregate of bank balances, cash and pledged bank deposits
of the Group amounted to HK$590.3 million (as at 30 September
2015: HK$462.4 million), which were mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$").

As at 30 September 2016, the Company had issued a total of
bonds with carrying amount of HK$1,570.2 million (30 September
2015: HK$605.9 million). The weighted average interest rate of
such bonds is 5.3% per annum. The bonds comprised of the
followings:

—  Principal amount of HK$971.9 million, comprising of
HK$909.5 million HK$ bonds and US$8.0 million United
States dollars (“US$”) bonds (equivalent to approximately
HK$62.4 million), which was placed and issued in eight
tranches during the Year under a placing agreement dated
15 March 2016. The interest rate of the HK$ bonds is 5.25%
per annum whilst the interest rate of the US$ bonds is 4.5%
per annum, payable annually in arrears. The maturity date of
such bonds will be on the third anniversary of their date of
issue.

—  Principal amount of HK$606.1 million, which was 3-year
unsecured bonds denominated in HK$, bearing interest at
5.5% per annum payable annually in arrears and matured in
November 2016.

As at 30 September 2016, the short-term bank borrowings of
the Group increased to HK$550.0 million (as at 30 September
2015: HK$480.0 million). These bank borrowings were secured
by corporate guarantees from the Company, of which bank
loans in the aggregate amount of HK$260.0 million and HK$70.0
million were secured by bank deposits of the Group and clients’
securities pledged to the Group, respectively. These bank
borrowings were denominated in HK$ and carried interest rates
approximating market rates. Together with the bonds, the total
borrowings of the Group amounted to HK$2,120.2 million (as at
30 September 2015: HK$1,095.9 million), resulting in an increase
of gearing ratio to 50.0% (as at 30 September 2015: 30.1%);
calculated as a percentage of total borrowings over total equity of
the Group. The Group did not have any material foreign exchange
exposure as at 30 September 2016.

On 15 March 2016, the Company entered into a placing
agreement for placing of bonds of up to an aggregate principal
amount of HK$1,200.0 million, out of which approximately
HK$971.9 million was placed and issued in eight tranches during
the Year while approximately HK$228.1 million was placed and
issued in two tranches after 30 September 2016 with the last
tranche completed on 8 November 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWED T

In May 2016, in order to strengthen the Shareholders’ portfolio
of the Company and provide further funding to support the
Company’s continuous development and business growth, the
Group issued a total of 380,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each
in aggregate (amounting to nominal value of HK$3.8 million in
aggregate) at HK$0.66 per share (market price as at the date of
the relevant agreement was HK$0.67 per share) to an indirect
subsidiary of China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd (Stock
Code: 2799.HK), one of the largest financial asset management
companies in China. The net proceeds of HK$250.8 million
had been used as intended for (i) expansion of money lending
business which include the commercial and personal lending
as well as margin and IPO financing, and (ii) repayment of
outstanding loans.

With the Group’s sufficient bank balances and cash, its available
unutilised banking facilities of HK$1,655.0 million, as well as the
proceeds raised from the issuance of bonds and equity financing
exercises, the Board considers the Group has sufficient working
capital for its operation and future development.

Pledge of Assets

As at 30 September 2016, bank deposit of the Group with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$110.0 million (as at 30
September 2015: HK$nil) was pledged to a bank as security for
banking facilities.

Business Review

Attributable to dedicated efforts in strengthening the financing
segment, the Group has accelerated the expansion of money
lending business in recent years. Notwithstanding a volatile
financial landscape, the Group has once again delivered
satisfactory performance, reflecting its unparalleled success in
transformation to an interest income based financial institution.
Being recognised by the capital market in its solid performance,
the Company has become one of the constituent stocks of MSCI
HK Small Cap Index since 1 December 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B W DA

Financing

The Group’s financing segment derives interest income from
commercial and personal lending as well as margin and IPO
financing. The loans granted to customers range from short-term
unsecured loans (e.g. tax loan, bridging loan, term loan, personal
loan) to long-term secured loans (e.g. property mortgage).
Built on a renowned reputation for delivering professional
and personalised loan services, the Group has developed a
niche in the loan market, providing corporate and retail clients
with tailored liquidity solutions to meet their corporate goals
and personal needs. Aiming to penetrate into the property
mortgage market, the Group stepped up its marketing efforts
and developed extensive advertising campaigns to maximise
the exposure of the branding of “Emperor Finance” across
different media platforms during the Year. The campaigns have
succeeded in boosting awareness in the marketplace and yielded
immediate positive results in attracting new customers. The
Group also expanded its team comprising of specialists who
possess technical expertise and extensive experience in the
provision of property mortgage services.

During the Year, the Group strived to bolster its capital base
through diversified fund raising channels and expanded its loan
book. With greater leverage, the financing segment achieved
promising growth despite of the moderated credit demand in the
market. During the Year, revenue from the financing segment
grew by 66.1% to HK$773.4 million (2015: HK$465.8 million),
accounting for 78.4% (2015: 55.8%) of the Group’s total revenue.

Brokerage

The Group currently provides brokerage services for securities,
futures and options traded on exchanges in Hong Kong, the
Mainland China (via Shanghai- and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock
Connect schemes respectively) and major exchanges in overseas
countries, as well as wealth management and asset management
services. Amid a subdued market turnover, the revenue from
the brokerage segment decreased to HK$109.2 million (2015:
HK$151.5 million), accounting for 11.1% (2015: 18.1%) of total
revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWED T

As at 30 September 2016, the Group operated 11 branches in
Hong Kong, covering key commercial and popular residential
areas with convenient pedestrian access. The Group also runs
three liaison offices, in Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou. As a
dynamic financial institution, the Group has actively introduced
mobile trading platforms which allow users to manage their
accounts from portable devices, enabling customers to
seamlessly access the global market. During the Year, the Group
upgraded its SPTrader Pro mobile trading platform to introduce
Hong Kong stock options trading services on top of Hong Kong
and global stock and futures products being traded on the
existing platform, and featured a totally redesigned user friendly
interface. The Group also flourished its product offerings by
introducing trading services for USD/CNH futures contracts on
the Singapore Exchange Limited.

Given the growing complexity of financial products and services,
the Group addressed the importance of investors education by
hosting a series of informative workshops and seminars, helping
clients to more accurately navigate the financial marketplace.
During the Year, the Group partnered with Sina Finance, a
leading Chinese financial news portal, to launch the “Hong Kong
Securities Investment Contest”, offering an exciting opportunity
for Mainland China investors to experience trading Hong Kong
securities through a mock platform by using virtual funds. The
contest received an overwhelming response, attracting close to
10,000 participants who wish to sharpen their investment skills in
Hong Kong securities trading.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B W DA

The Group’s wealth management division provides advice
regarding a wide array of investment services, including
securities, mutual funds, insurance-linked products, and real
estate investment. In its asset management arm, the Group runs
a private equity fund — “Emperor Greater China Opportunities
Fund”, covering a basket of selected equities focusing on the
Greater China region. The Group also provides customised
discretionary investment services to its customers.

Placing and Underwriting

The Group offers placing and underwriting services, and acts as
placing agents and underwriters for various Hong Kong listed
companies.

Revenue from the placing and underwriting segment was
HK$88.2 million (2015: HK$180.0 million), accounting for 8.9%
(2015: 21.6%) of total revenue. The Group served as placing
agents in equity and debt placing deals and IPO-related
transactions. The Group also participated in underwriting rights
issue exercises.

During the Year, the Group acted as Joint Bookrunner and Joint
Lead Manager in the share offer for the IPO of Get Nice Financial
Group Limited, which was listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange in April 2016. The Group acted as Sole Bookrunner and
Joint Lead Manager in the IPO placing of Li Bo Ge Group Limited,
which was listed on the Growth Enterprise Market Board of the
Stock Exchange in June 2016.

Corporate Finance

The division holds a full corporate finance licence under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, allowing it to advise on
Takeovers Code related transactions and undertake sponsor
work for IPOs in addition to general corporate finance advisory
services. Apart from IPO-related services, the Group offers
advisory services for corporate transactions including placing,
rights issue, corporate restructuring and merger and acquisition.

During the Year, revenue from the corporate finance segment
was HK$15.4 million (2015: HK$37.8 million), accounting for 1.6%
(2015: 4.5%) of total revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEERWED T

Events after the Reporting Period

On 14 November 2016, the Company entered into a placing
agreement for placing of 3-year unsecured bonds of up to an
aggregate principal amount of HK$400.0 million by 31 January
2017. The interest rate of such bonds is 5.0% per annum, payable
annually in arrears.

On 1 December 2016, the Company entered into a share
subscription agreement for allotment and issue of a total of
612,900,000 shares (“Subscription Shares”) at HK$0.66 per
share. The subscriber of the Subscription Shares is a subsidiary
of China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited (Stock
Code: 966), a company listed on the Stock Exchange and
ultimately controlled by China Taiping Insurance Group Limited,
a PRC state-owned financial and insurance group. The aggregate
net proceeds from the Subscription Shares will be approximately
HK$404.5 million.

The proceeds to be raised from the two fund raising exercises
are intended to be used for the expansion of existing businesses
of the Group, especially for the money lending business, and to
finance any future opportunities as the Company may identify,
and repayment of loans and borrowings.

Outlook

The Group’s strength especially lies in its ability to provide
tailor-made loan solutions to its customers, together with value-
added services. The Group intends to capitalise on its unique
market position to expand the lending business, and explore new
opportunities spanning various loan products. While expanding
the financing segment, the Group strives to diligently maintain a
sound credit management framework which includes stringent
credit risk control, systematic collateral valuation and in-depth
assessment of potential customers’ creditworthiness. To fuel the
expansion of the financing segment, the Group is focused on
strengthening its capital base, to enhance lending capacity. The
Group is also committed to maintaining long-standing customer
relationships and constantly seeking new customers.

The eagerly awaited Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect
scheme — the second cross border trading initiative after the
launch of Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect scheme in 2014 —
has commenced on 5 December 2016. In this regard, the Group
fully complies with relevant systems and operational requirements
to ensure smooth operation.

—} Emperor Capital Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWED T

Substantial progress has been made toward the opening of
Mainland China’s capital market to international investors. As a
major international financial centre, Hong Kong will continue to
play a prominent role in connecting the Mainland China market
to the rest of the world, thereby creating a constructive operating
environment for the development of Hong Kong’s financial
services sector. Leveraging its proven business model, the Group
remains cautiously optimistic regarding maximising potential in
the capital market and driving long-term solid business growth.

Litigation, Claims and Contingent Liability

As at 30 September 2016, the Group did not have any significant
litigation, claims and contingent liability.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 30 September 2016, the Group had 118 (2015: 120) account
executives and 152 employees (2015: 150). Total staff costs
(including directors’ remuneration) were approximately HK$93.8
million (2015: HK$80.3 million). Employees’ remuneration was
determined in accordance with individual’s responsibility,
competence and skills, experience and performance as well
as market pay level. Staff benefits include medical and life
insurance, provident funds and other competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentives or rewards to the staff, the Company
adopted a share option scheme, details of which are set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIR - dERERHE

The Group is committed to the principles of good corporate
governance, and strives to integrate corporate social
responsibility (“CSR”) into its business strategy and management
approach. This report aims to provide the Group’s stakeholders
with an overview of the Group’s efforts regarding environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) impacts arising from its daily
operations.

The Group is dedicated to cultivating a green, healthy and
safety culture through the concerted efforts of all staff. Aiming
to promote environmental, health and safety (*“EHS”) culture in
the workplace, a written EHS policy has been established during
the Year. The policy provides a balanced framework for the EHS
measures in order to achieve the following objectives:

— Ensure compliance with all applicable EHS legislation;

— Reduce quantities of waste and pollutants reaching the sea,
land and atmosphere;

— Promote EHS awareness among staff through training,
workshops and programs;

— Provide a green, healthy and safe workplace for staff, visitors
and contractors;

—  Optimise energy use efficiency; and
—  Continuously improve EHS performance.

The EHS Committee, comprising representatives from the Group
has been set up and is responsible for fostering employee EHS
participation in the workplace. It also plays a vital role in the
development of EHS policies and programs.

Key Relationships with Key Stakeholders

The Group continues to engage with its employees, customers,
suppliers, investors, Shareholders, and other stakeholders
through different channels to develop mutually beneficial
relationships and promote sustainability.

Employees are remunerated equitably and competitively. Details
of continuing training and development opportunities provided
to them are set out in the “Development and Training” section
below.

The Group is committed to delivering excellent customer services
to its customers. For details, please refer to the “Customer
Services” section below.

The Group partners with service providers that reflect its values
and commitment. For details, please refer to the “Supply Chain
Management” section below.

The Company maintains ongoing dialogues with its investors
and Shareholders. For details, please refer to the section
“Communication with Shareholders” on page 64 of the Corporate
Governance Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - HERERHRE

A. Environmental Protection A. BIERE

Environmental Policies and Performance

During the Year, the Group has continued to make its best
endeavours to protect the environment from its business
activities and workplace. The Group also educates its
employees on their awareness of promoting a “green”
environment. The Group seeks to identify and manage
environmental impacts attributable to its operation, in
order to minimise these impacts if possible. Various
measures have been adopted to reduce energy and other
resource use, minimise waste and increase recycling, and
promote environmental protection in its supply chain and
marketplace. These measures are discussed in the “Use of
Resources” and “The Environment and Natural Resources”
sections below.
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Use of Resources

The Group aims to maximise energy conservation in its
branches and offices by promoting efficient use of resources
and adopting green technologies. For instance, the Group
continues to upgrade equipment such as lighting and air-
conditioning systems in order to increase overall operating
efficiency. In the head office, air-conditioning systems are
equipped with smart sensors to automatically adjust the
temperature and cooling speed, resulting in a comfortable
working environment while saving energy. In Mongkok
flagship branch, fluorescent tubes have been replaced
with energy-efficient LED light strips in the LED advertising
panel. In addition, LED advertising panels are switched off
during non-business hours, to minimise light pollution and
reduce energy consumption. To identify energy efficiency
opportunities, the Group measures and records the energy
consumption intensity from time to time. In July 2016, an
energy audit service was conducted in the head office
by HK Electric to identify energy saving opportunities for
improving energy efficiency. The findings of the energy audit
have delivered valuable insights about the energy-saving
measures tailored to the Group.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Creating a paperless working environment not only reduces
environmental damage but also fits commercial goals, as it
can save physical space, facilitate information sharing via
online networks, and reduce complicated documentation
procedures. In recent years, the Group has implemented
paperless processing in its internal communications,
including for employee time sheets, payrolls and
memorandum, etc. Moreover, duplex printing and copying
has become the norm within the Group, greatly reducing
paper consumption and saving costs. Usage data of office
printing machines is regularly collected and assessed, to
monitor the efficiency of a paperless environment.
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During the Year, the Group has partnered with its office
printer vendor, to introduce a “Follow You” print solution
that helps the Group become more energy efficient through
smarter printing. The print solution enables the Group to
achieve environmental objectives by reducing unclaimed
printing, as printing is released only upon presentation of
a staff card from that particular staff who gives printing
instruction.
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The Group aims to promote environmental awareness, not
only within the organisation, but also through engaging
customers, encouraging a co-operative approach to
minimising its environmental impact. The formalities for
opening a securities account involve a considerable amount
of paperwork. In view of this, the account opening form has
been modified to minimise paper usage. To encourage the
migration of customers’ account statements from a print
format to electronic version, a surcharge is applied if clients
opt to receive paper statements. As at 30 September 2016,
approximately 78% of the Group’s customers were receiving
electronic statements. In addition, the Group distributes the
latest promotion information and notices via email and SMS
instead of printed mails.

The Company strongly recommends Shareholders to
access its corporate communications, including financial
reports, through the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company instead of in printed form. By introducing
electronic means of corporate communications to
Shareholders, the quantity of printed materials has been
considerably reduced. This paperless practice thus helps to
protect the environment, as well as save costs for stationery,
printing and administrative charges etc. During the Year,
roughly 90% of individual Shareholders received financial
reports and other documents of the Company via electronic
means.

A cartoon character, “Sam”, has been created during the
Year, as the ambassador for promoting staff's environmental
awareness. Sam has encouraged staff to take action to
create a green workplace by featuring a set of eco-friendly
tips on the staff screensaver:

e Keep air-conditioned room temperature at 25°C

e  Shut off lighting when leaving a room for more than an
hour

e  Switch off computers after working hours
e  Opt for duplex printing
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Workplace Quality
Workforce

The Group believes that a motivated and balanced workforce
is crucial for building a sustainable business model and
delivering long-term returns.

As at 30 September 2016, the permanent employees of
the Group totalled 152, working in the headquarters and
branches in Hong Kong, and in representative offices in
Mainland China.

The demographics of the Group’s workforce (as at 30
September 2016) are summarised below:

Regional Distribution 1t & 5 5

Hong Kong &# 86%
Mainland China F Bl ith 14%
Total &5t 100%

The Group has a diverse workforce in terms of gender and
age, providing a variety of ideas and levels of competencies
that contribute to the Group’s success. The Group is firmly
committed to gender equality, and therefore particularly
encourages female participation in the Board, and at
managerial and operational levels. Women represent
approximately 49% of the total employment in the Group.
Staff turnover rate among managerial positions is relatively
low, reflecting a high level of employee satisfaction and
engagement with the Group.

The management believes that employees are important
assets for the Group, and remains committed to attracting
and retaining talent with diverse backgrounds for achieving
sustainable growth. As at 30 September 2016, approximately
36% of the staff had worked for the Group for five years or
more. Service awards were presented at the Group’s annual
dinner, as tributes to staff who had contributed for 10, 15 and
20 years.
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<25 11%
26 - 35 44%
36— 45 22%
46 - 55 18%

>56 5%

Total &5t 100%
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Health and Safety

The Group values the health and well-being of staff. In order
to provide employees with health coverage, staff are entitled
to benefits including medical and life insurance, provident
funds and other competitive fringe benefits.

The Group prides itself on providing a safe, effective
and congenial work environment for its staff. Adequate
arrangements, training courses and guidelines are
implemented to ensure the working environment is healthy
and safe. During the Year, the Group has offered a range of
activities and initiatives to enhance the health and well-being
of its employees.

Every case of injury (if any) is required to be reported to the
Group and be individually assessed under the internal guideline
procedures. The Group is pleased to report that the rate of
accidents and injuries during the Year was extremely low.

In July 2016, the Group joined the “Ideal BMI Disease
Prevention Project” organised by the Hospital Authority. As
part of the project, staff were invited to a seminar in which
registered nutritionists delivered information on Body Mass
Index (“BMI”), healthy eating habits and weight management
tips.

The Group also encourages staff to nurture the good habit
of “Exercise for 30 Minutes Every Day” to maintain physical
fitness. In August 2016, participants of the “Health Go Goal”
campaign were outfitted with a smart fitness wristband to
keep track of their walking steps. By fulfilling exercise goals,
staff were motivated to pursue a healthy lifestyle. Practical
occupational health and safety information are also available
on the Company’s intranet.
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During the Year, “Breastfeeding Friendly Workplace”
measures have been introduced, supporting the Group’s
female staff with prolonging the duration of breastfeeding
for the sake of their babies’ health. The Group has set up
designated private space, allowing flexible scheduling to
support lactation during office hours.

The Group believes that maintaining a work-life balance
is essential for sustainability and a sound body and mind
for every employee. To support employees in maintaining
work-life balance, the Group actively provides a variety of
charitable and staff activities for employees, such as sports
programs, voluntary visits, rural outings and team-building
activities. All these activities help to strengthen relationships
between employees, and foster a healthy and harmonious
working environment.

Development and Training

The Group recognises the importance of skilled and
professionally trained employees to its business growth
and future success. Given the growing complexity and
sophistication of the marketplace, the Group supports its
staff to develop and enhance their knowledge, skills and
work capability. The Group encourages and provides
subsidies to employees at all levels to pursue educational
or training opportunities that achieve personal growth and
professional development.

As the Group retains its position at the forefront of the vibrant
market, the staff actively pursue professional trainings to
enhance their technical knowledge and keep abreast of the
latest developments. During the Year, the Group conducted
in-house seminars and training covering anti-money
laundering, updates to laws, codes, rules and regulations,
and other topics related to licensed regulated activities,
in order to maintain the highest standard of professional
conduct and ethics by employees. The seminars and training
were recognised by the Securities and Futures Commission
(“SFC”), enabling licensed staff to fulfill the requirements
for Continuous Professional Training. During the Year, the
Group’s staff devoted around 869 hours onto self-learning and
training, representing approximately 5.7 hours per employee.
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C. Operating Practice C. €E1EH

Supply Chain Management

The Group values mutually beneficial and longstanding
relationships with its suppliers. The Group works closely
with a number of suppliers in providing financial information
solutions. The selection of suppliers is based on criteria such
as price, stability of the trading platform, customer service
team responsiveness, capability and experience, with
preference given to potential suppliers that demonstrate their
commitment to the environment.

Customer Services

The Group has earned trusted relationships with its broad
customer base through providing dedicated customer
services.

The Group makes every effort to promptly and fairly
investigate and resolve all disputes and complaints
lodged by customers, according to clearly written internal
procedures. During the Year, two customer complaints
concerning selling of insurance products were reported.

The Group has set up designated channels — including
hotline, facsimile and email — for clients to lodge complaints.
All complaints received through these channels are diverted
to and handled by the Complaint Officer. The hotline
numbers and email address are shown on the daily and
monthly client statements, to ensure clients are aware of
the communication channels for lodging complaints. Upon
receipt of a complaint, the Complaint Officer will investigate
in a timely manner and report the findings to senior
management. Senior management shall review the complaint
and determine whether internal controls and procedures
need to be enhanced or other appropriate action is required
to be taken.

As a comprehensive financial services provider, the Group
comprises teams of professionals specialising in a wide
array of services including brokerage, asset management,
financing, and corporate finance advisory. As at 30
September 2016, 68 employees and 120 account executives
of the Group were licensed with the SFC in various regulated
activities: dealing in securities (RA 1), dealing in futures
contracts (RA 2), advising on securities (RA 4), advising
on futures contracts (RA 5), advising on corporate finance
(RA 6), and asset management (RA 9) or registered with
Professional Insurance Brokers Association.
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During the Year, as a result of its dedicated services and
professionalism, the Group received the following awards:

—  Capital Merits of Achievements in Banking and Finance
Awards 2015
Capital Magazine, October 2015

— Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprises 2015
Economic Digest, October 2015

—  Capital Leaders of Excellence 2016
Capital Magazine, May 2016

—  Greater China Super Brands Award 2016
East Week, September 2016

The Group places its utmost importance on protecting the
privacy of its customers, partners and staff in the collection,
processing and use of their personal data. The Group
adheres to the applicable data protection regulations and
ensures appropriate technical measures are in place to
protect personal data against unauthorised use or access.
The Group also ensures that customers’ personal data is
securely kept and processed only for the purposes for which
it has been collected. Staff are provided with adequate
training in compliance with the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance, to strengthen their knowledge regarding
safeguarding of personal data.

Protection of Intellectual Property

The Group builds up and protects its intellectual property
rights by prolonged use and registration of domain names
and various trademarks including “Emperor”. The Group
has registered trademarks in various classes in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and other relevant jurisdictions. In addition,
the Group’s trademarks and domain names are constantly
monitored and renewed upon their expiration.

Anti-corruption/Anti-money Laundering

In order to build up an ethical corporate culture and
practices, the Group has established policies and
procedures for anti-corruption and anti-money laundering.

This policy sets forth procedures for customer screening
and monitoring requirements, “know your customer” policies,
record keeping requirements, and reporting suspicious
circumstances in accordance with the relevant laws, codes
and guidelines issued by the regulatory authorities.

—J Emperor Capital Group Limited ~ HE2XHEEERD
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Employees have been given training and briefings organised
by the Group and seminars that were organised by the
Independent Commission Against Corruption of Hong Kong;
while employees responsible for carrying out transactions,
or initiating or establishing business relationships have
received anti-money laundering training. The Group has
also adopted a whistleblowing policy and procedures for all
levels and operations under the Group to raise concerns,
in confidence, about possible improprieties in any matter
related to the Group such as misconduct and malpractice.
Such policy and procedures can be found in the employee
handbook and the Company’s intranet.

During the Year, no legal case regarding corrupt practices
was brought against the Group or its employees. Also, no
whistleblowing concerning a criminal offence or misconduct
was reported.

The Group takes many measures to prevent any money
laundering activities in the Group. At the time of account
opening, the Group will perform a name search in an anti-
money laundering database system maintained and provided
by a third party vendor, in order to screen each new client
against current terrorist and sanction designations, and
check whether the client is a Politically Exposed Person
(PEP). New account applications lodged by terrorists or
sanctioned entities would be rejected. Regular name checks
of existing clients against the latest terrorist and sanction list
issued by US Treasury Department, as recommended by the
regulators, are also conducted. The Group performs regular
reviews on transactions by high-risk clients, in order to
identify suspicious transactions. In the event any suspicious
transactions are noted, we will report them to the Joint
Financial Intelligence Unit in due course.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Corporate Governance Committee is delegated by the
Board to review and monitor the policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements which
have significant impact on the Group.

The Compliance Department is designed to provide an in-
house compliance service that effectively supports various
operation units in their duties and day-to-day operation
to comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations
(such as Securities and Futures Ordinance and subsidiary
legislations, Prevention of Bribery Ordinance and Codes and
Guidelines issued by Securities and Futures Commission).
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Updates on the applicable laws, rules and regulations are
brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operation units from time to time. The Group holds relevant
required licences for provision of services, such as: dealing
in securities and futures contracts; advising on securities
and futures contracts; and advising on corporate finance and
asset management, etc. The management must ensure that
business is conducted in accordance with the applicable
laws and regulations.

. Community Involvement

The Group is committed to the improvement of community
well-being and social services. Aligning with the mission
“From the Community, To the Community”, the Group
has formulated various community activities spanning
elderly welfare and hospice care services, healthcare,
education, sports, environmental conservation, and helping
underprivileged children. The Group’s management team
plays an important role in mobilising staff to join all these
activities, which are held in tandem with its commitment
to sustainable development. The Group believes that by
encouraging staff to participate in a wide range of charitable
events, concern for the community will be raised, inspiring
more people to take part in serving the community.

During the Year, the Group supported a wide range of
community sponsorship and donation programmes. It started
with its participation in the annual outbound volunteering
activity organised by Emperor Foundation. Staff members
joined a tour to Hebei Province of Mainland China in October
2015 for a four-day service at Albert Yeung Sau Shing Charity
Foundation (Xiongzhou) Elderly Care Centre and Albert
Yeung Sau Shing Charity Foundation Baoding Child Care
Centre.

Later a charity bazar was hosted by the Group in The Pulse,
the leisure complex in Repulse Bay, to raise fund for Hong
Kong Seeing Eye Dog Services in November 2015. In the
bazar, staff volunteers encouraged the passer-by to interact
with a tamed guide dog, and helped to nurture compassion
and respect in animals. The proceeds raised will be given to
support the training of seeing eye dog services for the benefit
of visually-impaired community.
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They made their first move in 2016 in January to Haven of
Hope Woo Ping Care & Attention Home, sharing their early
Chinese New Year wishes to the elderly residents there.
Children of staff members took part in a custom-made three-
month dancing class and got prepared to perform at The
Salvation Army Bradbury Home of Loving Kindness together
with some mentally challenged teenagers in July 2016. The
project aimed at bringing joy to the elderly nursing home
and providing the children and their parents an opportunity
to meet and serve the aged while fostering social integration
of able and disabled persons. Two festive visits were paid to
Longevity Palace, another nursing home in Yau Ma Tei, and
Rhythm Garden Lutheran Centre for the Elderly, an elderly
service centre in Choi Hung, during Dragon Boat Festival and
Mid-Autumn Festival respectively.

The summer internship programme was organised for the
fifth time in a row, providing university students with real
workplace experiences in the financial field. The programme
includes rotations into different business units, helping
students to establish a solid foundation by developing
a broad range of knowledge and skills. As part of the
programme, well-known guests from different business
sectors were invited to share their experiences in the industry
as well as advices of their personal financial management.
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The Group is also devoted to promoting environment AEBHOIRSETINREEHS - R
awareness and an organic farming class was held from April 2016 F4 A E6AHIA - AEBABTIR
to June 2016. T AHEBER o

A first aid class given by Hong Kong Red Cross from May to EBL+FTERR2016F58 %7 AHIRIR
July 2016 received overwhelming responses. 7 E’]%TAZ%&HX’E EFURFE o

The Group has been awarded with the 5 Years Plus Caring REBEEE=FEL Z’é%c/%ﬁ‘\ﬂﬁ& it
Company Logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service SHEFSFPIusI R ERE IF
for three consecutive years, recognizing its ongoing RGEBTRELSETRIT AR -

commitment to fulfilling its corporate social responsibilities.

&I
caringcompany

Awarded by The Feng Keng Council of Social Service:
FEnEREREFAR
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES

EERERITHRAEZERE

Daisy Yeung

B

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND
MANAGING DIRECTOR
TRAR R EEREE

“Notwithstanding a volatile financial landscape, we
have once again delivered satisfactory performance,
reflecting our unparalleled success in transformation
to an interest income based financial institution.
Looking ahead, we will capitalise on our unique
market position, and explore new opportunities
spanning various loan products.”

Daisy Yeung, aged 51, joined the Group in January 1996.
She is the Managing Director of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group. Ms. Yeung is the Chairperson
of the Executive Committee as well as a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company. She is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company and a responsible officer of Emperor
Securities Limited, Emperor Futures Limited, Emperor Wealth
Management Limited and Emperor Asset Management
Limited under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFQ”). Moreover, she is now the Chairman of The Institute
of Securities Dealers Limited and a General Committee
member of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies.
Ms. Yeung is responsible for the formulation of corporate
strategy, overseeing operations and the overall steering of the
Company’s management focusing in the areas of marketing
and business development. She has accumulated over 20
years of management experience in financial industry and has
been active in driving the development of the local securities
industry. Ms. Yeung holds a Bachelor’'s Degree of Social
Sciences majoring in Business Administration.
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Chan Shek Wah
FRepEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
HITES

Choi Suk Hing, Louisa
eV

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND
COMPANY SECRETARY
HITESRAAWE

Pearl Chan
R i Hiy

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
HITES
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Chan Shek Wah, aged 53, joined the Board
in December 2011. He is the Executive
Director of the Company and a member of the
Executive Committee as well as a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. He is
also the Managing Director and responsible
officer of Emperor Capital Limited under the
SFO. He has over 29 years of professional
experiences in the financial industry. He
has been engaged in the sales, proprietary
trading, structuring of equity derivatives and
equity capital market products as well as
the provision of corporate finance advisory
services to listed issuers. Before joining the
Group, he was a senior management and
an executive director in several international
financial institutions.

Choi Suk Hing, Louisa, aged 52, joined the
Board in March 2008. She is an Executive
Director and the Company Secretary of
the Company. Ms. Choi is the Chairperson
of the Corporate Governance Committee
and a member of the Executive Committee
of the Company. She is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company and a
responsible officer of Emperor Capital Limited
under the SFO. Ms. Choi has over 18 years of
experience in the finance industry covering
securities, futures and corporate finance.
Before that, she had worked in the company
secretary profession in both listed companies
as well as professional firms for over 8 years.
Ms. Choi holds a Master’s Degree in Applied
Finance from Macquarie University, Australia.
She is a fellow member of both The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
in the United Kingdom and The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Pearl Chan, aged 43, joined the Board in
June 2011. She is an Executive Director
and a member of the Executive Committee
of the Company. She has been working in
the corporate finance field for more than 15
years and is also a director and responsible
officer of Emperor Capital Limited under the
SFO. She was a practising lawyer in Hong
Kong before joining the Group. Ms. Chan
holds a Bachelor's Degree in Laws from
The University of Hong Kong and a Master’s
Degree in Management from Macquarie
University, Australia.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chu Kar Wing, aged 59, joined the Board in May 2010. He
is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee as well as a
member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. Mr. Chu is also an independent non-executive
director of another Hong Kong listed company, China Power
New Energy Development Company Limited (Stock Code: 735).
He has extensive experience in the banking and finance sector
for several well-known corporations. Moreover, he is now the
President of Canada-China Culture and Education Association.
Mr. Chu holds a Bachelor’s Degree of Social Sciences majoring in
Economics.

Poon Yan Wai, aged 46, joined the Board in January 2014. He
is the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a member of
the Remuneration Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. He is now the financial controller,
company secretary and an authorised representative of a Hong
Kong listed company. He is also an independent non-executive
director of another Hong Kong listed company, Prosten Health
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Prosten Technology
Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 8026). He has over 20 years of
experience in the auditing and accounting field. Mr. Poon holds
a Bachelor’'s Degree in Accountancy and a Master’'s Degree in
Corporate Finance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

Wan Choi Ha, aged 49, joined the Board in July 2015. She is the
Chairperson of the Nomination Committee as well as a member of
the Audit Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee
of the Company. Ms. Wan has been admitted as a solicitor in
Hong Kong since 1993 and is now a Partner of Wan and Leung,
Solicitors. She was previously an independent non-executive
director of another Hong Kong listed company, Emperor
Entertainment Hotel Limited (Stock Code: 296) and retired on 18
August 2015. Ms. Wan graduated from The University of Hong
Kong with a Bachelor’s Degree in Laws.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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The Directors are pleased to present this annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are engaged in the provision of financial
services in Hong Kong including (i) commercial and personal
lending as well as margin and IPO financing; (ii) brokerage,
wealth management and asset management; (iii) placing and
underwriting services for listed issuers; and (iv) corporate finance
advisory services.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 70.

An interim dividend of HK1.20 cents per share for the Year (2015:
HKO0.70 cent per share) amounting to approximately HK$68.98
million (2015: HK$36.74 million), was paid to the Shareholders
during the Year.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK1.28 cents per share (2015: HK1.60 cents per share) for
the Year, amounting to approximately HK$78.4 million (2015:
HK$92.0 million) to the entitled Shareholders subject to the
approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming 2017 annual
general meeting (“2017 AGM”):

Annual General Meeting date: 26 January 2017 (Thursday)

Record Date for final dividend: 7 February 2017 (Tuesday)

Final Dividend payment date: 24 February 2017 (Friday)
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
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Business Review and Performance

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the Year and an analysis of
the likely future development of the Group’s business are set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 5
to 13. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
from pages 60 to 62 and note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

The important events affecting the Company that had occurred
since the end of the Year up to the date of this report are set out
in the Management Discussion and Analysis on page 12 and note
38 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policy and
performance, key relationships with the Group’s key stakeholders
as well as compliance with relevant laws and regulations which
have significant impact on the Company are set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 15, 14
and 23 respectively.

Reserves and Distributable Reserves of the
Company

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 73.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders
as at 30 September 2016 represented the aggregate of
contributed surplus (stated as “special reserve” in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statement) and retained profits amounting
to HK$101.9 million and HK$130.4 million respectively (2015:
HK$101.9 million and HK$36.2 million).

The special reserve of the Company represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares of the
subsidiaries of the Company in issue and the nominal value of
the shares issued by the Company for acquisition of a subsidiary
pursuant to the group reorganisation on 2 April 2007.

Under the Companies Act in 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution
to Shareholders. However, a company cannot declare or pay a
dividend or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if there
are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i) the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(ii) the realisable value of the company’s assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium accounts.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 152 of the annual
report.

Property and Equipment

During the Year, the Group acquired property and equipment at a
cost of approximately HK$1,019,000.

Details of changes in the property and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Debenture

Details of the debentures of the Company in the form of
unsecured bonds are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Other than the share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”)
as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements,
no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company
during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Year, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for 32%
(2015: 25%) of the Group’s total turnover. The largest customer
accounted for 13% (2015: 6%) of the Group’s total turnover.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers.

The Group had no major supplier due to the nature of principal
activities of the Group.

Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Daisy Yeung (Managing Director)
Mr. Chan Shek Wah

Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa

Ms. Pearl Chan

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chu Kar Wing

Mr. Poon Yan Wai

Ms. Wan Choi Ha

Biographical details of the Directors and senior executives as at
the date of this report are set out from pages 27 to 29. Details of
Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statement.

In accordance with the Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the
Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Chan Shek Wah, Ms. Choi Suk Hing,
Louisa and Mr. Chu Kar Wing shall retire by rotation at the 2017
AGM and, being eligible, shall offer themselves for re-election
thereat.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the 2017 AGM
has an unexpired service contract with the Group which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Securities

As at 30 September 2016, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers of The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:

Long position interests in the Company
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (“Shares”)

Capacity/
Name of Director Nature of Interests
EEHE B9, ERtE
Ms. Daisy Yeung Eligible beneficiary of the
B EF R L AY Trust

AY Trustz & ERZzHA

Beneficial owner

BEamliE A

Ms. Daisy Yeung
BT L

Mr. Chan Shek Wah
PR 85 2 S A

Beneficial owner

BEBEAA

Beneficial owner

BEmEAA

Ms. Louisa Choi
ZORE 2r £

Beneficial owner

BmEAA

Ms. Pearl Chan
PRAM AT 22 &

Note: These Shares were held by Emperor Capital Group Holdings Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Albert Yeung Holdings Limited (“AY Holdings”).
AY Holdings was held by STC International Limited (“STC International”) in
trust for The Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust (*AY Trust”), a discretionary
trust under which Ms. Daisy Yeung is one of the eligible beneficiaries.

—3 Emperor Capital Group Limited ~ HE2XF#5%H
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EERESTRAEBZESERR
RE

M2016F9H30H » ARAIEER&xmTTHK
AERARRRERBEEZBE(TERESFK
HAEIRBIEXVER) 2 I8 fn ~ BRI k&R
BRREARRIREBEES M EEF5352
G AEBE M SRR &S LR A
(TEMRA D) EMBITAESETERRS
ZIZESTRIASITME AR R M FT 2
wmMARBWT

REQT ZFRERS
AR AR EEO.018 T B8 (117 1)

Number of

Issued Shares
held Approximate%
BEE holding
BITRMD 22 B B %
2,667,805,360 43.54%

(Note)

(K1)
18,000,000 0.29%
20,457,000 0.33%
4,680,000 0.08%
2,925,000 0.05%

Biet: WERDTIHBIKEEZRBERAB([BE
REEER]) 22EANBARIKREEFSFEEE
RERDFIFEE B KEZEZERBThe Albert
Yeung Discretionary Trust([ AY Trust J)Z 25T A
STC International Limited([ STC International J)
A o AY TrustBRIIE (T - MGERFLTAE
BREmAZ— °
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Securities (Continued)

Long position interests in the Company (Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (“Shares”)
(Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2016, none of
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

Share Options

The Company adopted a share option scheme (“Scheme”) on 20
September 2007 (became effective on 27 September 2007) as
amended on 13 August 2013. Particulars of the Scheme are set
out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

On 13 August 2013, the Company granted certain share options
to the Executive Directors. Details of the movement in the number
of share options of the Company during the Year are set out as
follows:

ESRASTHARZBSEER
RE (&)

REQT 2 HFRER(E)

KRG EZREEO.01E T &8
(&)

B EXXCFTIEEEESN - R2016F9 A30H - #f
BEBARNBEEFRZDTRAERARAFHH
TMEEEE (FE RELFLBEIEMNEXY
)2 m - BER O REEEFERESEM
HERTOKE °

B

RATR2007E9 20 B E 47 - W 20074
QH27THRAMBAEM K KR2013F8 H 135%«{!’1
Al IR R EI ([ & El)) - )=
SEN R A TS RERMFE32 -
KATNR2013F8 A13ABEEE THRET
PITEE - RAFE - ARaZBERESE
ZEEEEIFE N

(TR ])

N
u/<u

Number of share options

BREHE
Adjusted
Exercise Price Lapsed during

per Share* Balance as at the Year Balance as at

Name of Grantee Exercise Period GLS) 01.10.2015* (Note 2) 30.09.2016
gRERE
g R2015% REFEREN R2016%

RRALS ki (B7) A& ER* (#riz2) 9R30H ML
Executive Directors
HITEE
Ms. Daisy Yeung (Note 1) 0.247 55,250,247 (55,250,247) 0
BRARL (Hit1)
Mr. Chan Shek Wah (Note 1) 0.247 55,250,247 (55,250,247) 0
RABELE (Hrat1)
Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa (Note 1) 0.247 12,625,386 (12,625,386) 0
AT (Hrt1)
Ms. Pearl Chan (Note 1) 0.247 7,892,892 (7,892,892) 0
RSt (Hrzt1)
Total 131,018,772 (131,018,772) 0
@5t

* Adjustment made on 3 June 2015 as a result of the rights issue of the Company

120156 A3R E AR AL Z fR (F i s
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Share Options (Continued)

Notes:

1. Subject to fulfillment of the pre-determined vesting conditions, the options

were exercisable from the date immediately after the publication of the
audited financial results of the Group for the year ended 30 September 2015
(i.e. 10 December 2015) to 12 July 2018.

As the pre-determined vesting conditions were not fulfilled, all the above
share options lapsed on 10 December 2015.

During the Year, no option was granted, exercised or cancelled
under the Scheme.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Other than as stated above, at the end of the Year and at no
time during the Year was the Company, any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executives of
the Company or their spouse or children under 18 years of age
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

As at 30 September 2016, none of the Directors nor their
respective associates was interested in any business which is
considered to compete or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group as required to be
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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Other Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in Ht A +THRBEIREBZRAE
Securities

As at 30 September 2016, so far as is known to any Directors or #2016 9A30H * IA R R EE N H =TT
chief executives of the Company, the persons or corporations HABHE * W FATH AT (BRARQTE
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) who FsiHETHA BN R E ) sk /8D
had, or were deemed or taken to have an interest or short position F#EE IR Ak E(EEGIRIBEZHF MEAEE
in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register f|FE3361FBHFEEFNRE LM ([ ERFEEEL
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO (“DI Register”) M)k BITMEARA T 2K AR -

or as otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

Long position in the Shares RBRGOZHR

Number of
Shares
interested in or

deemed to be Approximate %

Name Capacity/Nature of interest interested holding

BEIEAER BARER

Yt B EHME EEzROEE Batt

AY Holdings Interest in a controlled 2,667,805,360 43.54%
155 P EE SRR corporation (Note 1)
N ek /NI v (KtzE1)

STC International Trustee 2,667,805,360 43.54%
ZEEA (Note 1)
(KraE1)

Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert Founder of the AY Trust 2,667,805,360 43.54%
BEKE L AY TrustZ 8132 A (Note 1)
(Krat1)

Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon Interest of spouse 2,667,805,360 43.54%
(7N =R B (B4 2 (Note 1)
(Btat1)
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Other Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in
Securities (Continued)

Long position in the Shares (Continued)

HtALTRES 2 ERZRRB(E)

RBRBzHR(E)

Number of

Shares

inferested in or
deemed to be Approximate %

Name Capacity/Nature of interest interested holding
BEIRAES BAFR
maEE B REmME BE o ROEA Epals
China Huarong International Interest in a controlled 609,914,000 9.95%
Holdings Limited corporation (Note 2)
B 2 R I AR A IR A A MEEHIRE 2 (K1at2)
Huarong Real Estate Co., Ltd. Interest in a controlled 609,914,000 9.95%
ERMEXAREMTAA corporation (Note 2)
INSELL VNI £ (Kizt2)
China Huarong Asset Interest in a controlled 609,914,000 9.95%
Management Co., Ltd. corporation (Note 2)
TRERMEEEERNBRAR N ek /NI - (Kizt2)
Note: BT -
1. These Shares were the same Shares of which Ms. Daisy Yeung has deemed 1. ERND A EX [EEREEITHRAB ZESE

interest by virtue of being an eligible beneficiary of the AY Trust as set out
under the Section of “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Securities” above.

2. These Shares were the same parcel of Shares legally held by Bonanaz
Network Limited.

All interests stated above represent long positions. As at 30
September 2016, no short positions were recorded in the DI
Register.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2016, the Directors
were not aware of any person or corporation (not being a Director
and chief executive of the Company) had, or were deemed or
taken to have, any interests or short positions in any Shares or
underlying Shares as recorded in DI Register or otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts and Connected Continuing
Transactions

Continuing Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions with
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company:

1. Tenancy Agreements/Subletting Agreement

EERRS ZHASHREER
B 5 2 E

RAFEERN  AEEEHRARBZMEAL
(EER EMRADETTIIRS -

1. HEHS 2HEHSE

(i) Date of Agreement Amount
Location of for the year
premises HK$'000

{553 B 5
Name of counterparty ~ Nature of fransaction (i) Term
HEER RHME ik

ESiE TEEZER
TET

Very Sound Investments  Operating lease rentals (i) 31/03/2014 24th Floor, Emperor 3,593
Limited (note 1) paid (effective (ii) 01/04/2014 - 31/03/2017 Group Centre, 288
(B7:%1) monthly rental: Hennessy Road,
HK$299,444.44) Wanchai, Hong Kong
TREeHERS BB BT EEFiE2885%
(BRAH : HEEEP L2148
299,444.4475T)
Headwise Investment Operating lease rentals (i) 13/09/2013 Unit 603, 6th Floor, 142
Limited (note 1) paid (effective (i) 15/09/2013 - 31/03/2016 Emperor Group
BRREBRAT monthly rental: Centre, 288 Hennessy
(Hizt1) HK$23,727.64) Road, Wanchai, Hong
XfIgeHERSE Kong
(BRAM - BB BT EEFiB2885%
23,727.647%7T) REEEDD
612603 %
Operating lease rentals (i) 23/12/2014 Unit 604, 6th Floor, 364
paid (effective (i) 01/01/2015 - 31/03/2016 Emperor Group
monthly rental: Centre, 288 Hennessy
HK$60,680) Road, Wanchai, Hong
XfIgEHERSE Kong
(BERAM - BB EITEEFiB2885%
60,6807 L) REEETD
612604%
Operating lease rentals (i) 31/03/2016 Units 603 & 604, 6/F, 573
paid (effective (i) 01/04/2016 - 31/03/2016 Emperor Group
monthly rental: Centre, 288 Hennessy
HK$95,500) Road, Wanchai, Hong
xfgeHERE Kong
(BB AM - BB BT EEFFiB2885
95,5007 REEEDD
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements BERX S - ZHB SN RESER

or Contracts and Connected Continuing EXF 2z (2
Transactions (Continued)
Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued) BFERERS (&)
1. Tenancy Agreements/Subletting Agreement (Continued) 1. HEHBR S2HEBRE)
(i) Date of Agreement Amount
A=k Location of for the year
Name of counterparty  Nature of fransaction (i) Term premises HK$'000
HAER RH5HE ekt W33t B REEZER
TR
Active Pace Investment  Operating lease rentals (i) 13/09/2013 Unit 606, 6th Floor, 253
Limited (note 1) paid (effective (i) 15/09/2013 - 31/03/2016 Emperor Group
(Hfzz1) monthly rental: Centre, 288
HK$42,101.93) Hennessy Road,
THEEHERS Wanchai, Hong Kong
(BRAH : BB BT HIETIB2885
42,101.93%87) REEETL
61£606%
Operating lease rentals (i) 31/03/2016 Unit 606, 6th Floor, 281
paid (effective (i) 01/04/2016 - 31/03/2018 Emperor Group
monthly rental: Centre, 288
HK$46,810) Hennessy Road,
IHREHERS Wanchai, Hong Kong
(ERAE BB BT HIEFIB2865%
46,8107 7T) REXEPL
GIZ606%E
Emperor Agency Limited ~ Subletting rentals (i) 31/03/2014 Portion of Shop 6 on G/F, 2,030
(note 1) paid (effective (ii) 01/04/2014 - 31/03/2017 1/F and canopy

RERBARRA(MET)

monthly rental:

(early termination

adjacent thereto, 2/F,

HK$198,333.33) on 31 May 2016 East Ocean Court,
SERRRiilitkn 12016%5A431H 525 Shanghai Street,
(ERAM : RELI) Mongkok, Kowloon,
198,333.33/87T) Hong Kong
B85 N.8H A L5555,
REE T 2B
65545 © 1IZERLA
EERE
—3 Emperor Capital Group Limited ~ HE2XF#EEHERDF
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements BERX S - ZHB SN REER

or Contracts and Connected Continuing EXF 2z (2Z
Transactions (Continued)
Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued) BEREXZ(E)

2. Financial Services Agreement with AY Holdings for 2. HACEEHEESIRELERT IS
Emperor Group Bl AR 7% 1

Amount

for the year
HKS$'000
rEEZEH
TET

(i) 10/09/2015 176

(i) Date of Agreement
EEASE:
(i) Term

Nature of tfransaction
X8 FH

Name of counterparty
HHEH

AY Holdings (note 2a) (a) Commission, brokerage and

B RERER(HfiZ2a)

fees and interest income

from the listed members under
AY Holdings, its subsidiaries
and associates (“Emperor
Group”)
REGEKELRZERET EH
KERR] - EMEAR R
BEAT(REEE]) 2

e BLEREBRIAR
FLEHA

(b) Maximum margin loan amount
to the listed members of the
Emperor Group
RTEESEET EMKEAR
JEREHFEENREE

(c) Maximum IPO loan amount
to the listed members of the
Emperor Group
RTREEEET EMKEAR
EaB A AREREREHE

(d) Maximum term loan amount
to the listed members of the
Emperor Group
RTEESEET EMKEAR
EREHENREHE

(e) Financial advisory fee from the
listed members of the Emperor
Group
RTHREEEET EMKEAR
ZRAAE

P ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

(i) 01/10/2015 - 30/09/2018

(on normal commercial
terms and at rates no
more favourable than
those available to other
independent third parties
B REERRRRME
REH“TEMBIE=S
Z(B1)

1,380
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements BERX S - ZHB SN RESER
or Contracts and Connected Continuing EXFZ#zH(2Z)
Transactions (Continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued) BFERERS (&)
3. Financial Services Agreement with Ms. Daisy Yeung for 3. HRBEEKREEBRFLZTITIZ2LRE
the Yeung Family KinE
(i) Date of Agreement Amount
tha% B HB for the year
Name of counterparty Nature of fransaction (i) Term HK$’000
HHER REME FH rEEZEH
THET
Ms. Daisy Yeung (note 2b) (a) Commission, brokerage, fees (i) 10/09/2015 3,228
B EF T (HiF2p) and interest income from (i) 01/10/2015 - 30/10/2018
Ms. Daisy Yeung and her (on normal commercial
associate, but excluding terms and at rates no
the listed members of the more favourable than
Emperor Group (“Yeung those available to other
Family”) independent third parties
REGHRSLEREBEAL m—REE

ErEERESERET EMKE R IR NEREEHE T H
2A([BRRED2AE - &1 B E=T 2 B1%)
£ BRREKA

(b) Maximum margin loan amount 50,765
to the Yeung Family
LTBRZRRZ&ESARER
Gk

(c) Maximum IPO loan amount to 390
the Yeung Family
BTHREEER B X ARBR
EReE

(d) Maximum term loan amount to -
the Yeung Family
RTBREGZ&=THER
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts and Connected Continuing
Transactions (Continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

3. Financial Services Agreement with Ms. Daisy Yeung for 3.
the Yeung Family (Continued)

Nature of tfransaction
RaHE

Name of counterparty
EpRE

(e) Financial advisory fee from the
Yeung Family
REGRZRG L ERABAE

(f) Commission and fee
payment to the Yeung
Family for their services
being provided to the Group
AEREKGEX N ERREE
RERBzHERER

Notes:

1. Tenancy Agreements/Subletting Agreement 1.

The premises under the Tenancy Agreements/Subletting Agreement
have been rented to the Group for its business operation. The
counterparties of the Tenancy Agreements/Subletting Agreement are
indirectly controlled by the AY Trust under which Ms. Daisy Yeung is
one of the eligible beneficiaries. As such, Ms. Daisy Yeung has deemed
interest in such agreements.

2. (a)
Group

Under this agreement, the Group has agreed to provide to other
listed members under Emperor Group (i) brokerage services for
securities, futures and options trading; (ii) wealth management
and asset management services; (iii) placing and underwriting
services; (iv) financing services including margin loans, IPO
loans and terms loans; and (v) financial advisory services. The
counterparty of this agreement is controlled by the AY Trust of
which Ms. Daisy Yeung is one of the eligible beneficiaries. As
such, Ms. Daisy Yeung has deemed interest in this agreement.
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Financial Services Agreement with AY Holdings for Emperor 2.

EERRS ZHASHREER
BRG 2B (E)

FEBEXS(E)
BERREEBRB LT L 2R
Bl ()

(i) Date of Agreement
EAEE:

(OREI
=1

Amount

for the year
HKS$'000
rEEZEH
TET

7,020

HEWE 2 HE

HEwZ PHGEE TYESETAEE
EREE - ERR »PHlHBEzH A H
AY TrustfEI B o 1B F2 L BAY Trust
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A o
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts and Connected Continuing
Transactions (Continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

3. Financial Services Agreement with Ms. Daisy Yeung for
the Yeung Family (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

2. (b) Financial Services Agreement with Ms. Daisy Yeung for Yeung

Family

Under this agreement, the Group has agreed to provide to the
members of the Yeung Family (i) brokerage services for securities,
futures and options trading; (ii) wealth management and asset
management services; (iii) financing services including margin
loans, IPO loans and term loans; and (iv) financial advisory
services. The Group has also agreed to pay commission and
fee to the Yeung Family, including (i) the commission and fee
for their acting as placees or underwriters for the securities of
the Company or for the securities underwritten or placed by the
Group, and (ii) referral fee for introducing clients to the Group
relating to Group’s business. Ms. Daisy Yeung is one of the
members of the Yeung Family and therefore has deemed interest
in this agreement.

Compliance with Disclosure Requirements

Regarding the related party transactions as set out in note 34
to the consolidated financial statements, all transactions as
shown in items (i), (iii), (iv), (v) and (vi) are continuing connected
transactions and that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Auditor’s Letter on Disclosed Continuing Connected
Transactions

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” (“Auditor’s Letter”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

=3 Emperor Capital Group Limited
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts and Connected Continuing
Transactions (Continued)

Auditor’s Letter on Disclosed Continuing Connected
Transactions (Continued)

The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing their
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group (“Disclosed CCTs”) on
pages 39 to 44 of this Annual Report in accordance with rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Auditor’s Letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive Directors
(“INED(s)”)

Pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the INEDs of the
Company have reviewed the Disclosed CCTs and the Auditor’s
Letter and have confirmed that these transactions have been
entered into by the Group:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may be);
and

(iii) according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction, arrangement
or contract which was significant to which the Company, or any
of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any
time during the Year.

Management Contracts

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group’s business were entered into or existed during
the Year.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Company
has in force the permitted indemnity provisions which are
provided for in the Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors and
officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect
of potential liability and costs associated with legal proceedings
that may be brought against the Directors and the directors of the
Group respectively.

P ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

EERRS ZHASHREER
BRG 2B (E)

REMEBCRERERERS 2R (E)

RiE FH R BIE14A 5615 » BRI E s A
WEVEMBEMHAEBE BN ERE
RG(REBFEFERS ) BLERBE
B WHAEEBBMERO KM - AQAAE
15 4% BRI BK 4 & AN 12 i T B 32 Py o

BYFPTES(BUFHTES ) 2BR

RIE ETRBIE14A.550% - RNRAREILIEHR
TERCEHNREREREWER S LZEEM
- WHERZELZIIBAEE

(i) MEAKEZBEERBHFIL
(i) BB—RIEE(RBERMIE ) B EGER
i

TR
(i) RIBEEBHEET  ERAFEE T
AT -

B EXFTREEE SN - RAFE RS AR ]
W EFEBARBRETAZERAF] - KB
REIKFRRMBARSEITMEENE P
BEEAED(BRERIER) 2EAEX
X5 RHFEEH -

EEEH

BREEEAIN  NREERANFE AL EFTL
IFEESREEREERAEEMBNEMNE
REDEBZEH

EERT RV B R
RAFEARBEAREBMRL  HEF
KAEBEEE R A BEH E HOE RS AA N E
EMBEEEERER  ARREBEARH
MEG  ZFHEXAFERARB 2EZH
AARAEERBZEERSREEABR
ERERA

2015/2016 F 1R




DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

Confirmation of Independence of Independent
Non-Executive Directors

The Company had received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considered all of the INEDs are
independent.

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the Executive Directors were decided by the
Board as recommended by the Remuneration Committee having
regard to a written remuneration policy (which ensures a clear link
to business strategy and a close alignment with the Shareholders’
interest and current best practice), the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics. The
INEDs are paid fees in line with market practice. No individual
should determine his or her own remuneration.

Employees remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual’s responsibility, competence and skills, experience
and performance as well as market pay level. Remuneration
package includes, as the case may be, basic salaries, Directors’
fees, contribution to pension schemes, performance-based
or discretionary bonus, and other competitive fringe benefits
such as medical and life insurances. To provide incentive to
the eligible participants (including Directors and employees),
the remuneration package has been extended to include share
options granted under the Scheme adopted by the Company on
20 September 2007 (as amended on 13 August 2013), details
of which are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the
five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 11
and 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 48 to 67.
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Sufficiency Of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report, there was sufficient
public float of at least 25% of the Company issued Shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

Donations

During the Year, the Group made charitable donations amounting
to approximately HK$101,000.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the 2017 AGM to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Daisy Yeung
Managing Director

Hong Kong
8 December 2016

P ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016  2015/2016 % 3R

RAZRABIFRE

REARR G2 AMENREEERM
RABAFEHRA 2 REBERATAS - AR
R BTN B LM R BIFREED25%
ZRARBIBRE

B

RAFER AEEBEREZBRY
101,000/ 7T ©

3 4l
EEEE) o« IR R MITARRAIKE
M2 RBREN2017TFRFBFAE £1R

B

RREFS

EFEEE
B

BB
2016F12A8H




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AN\ AU i 3/
(1= 'ébniﬁ%%

The Directors of the Company have adopted various policies
to ensure compliance with the code provisions of Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) under Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules. For the Year, the Company had complied fully with
the code provisions of the CG Code except with the deviation
from code provision A.2.1 which requires the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer be separate and not be performed by
the same individual.

The Board

Board Composition

As at 30 September 2016, the Board comprised seven Directors
(four Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors (“INEDs”)) who possess the skills, experience
and expertise either in the same industry or relevant to the
management of the business of the Group. The biographies of the
Directors are set out from pages 27 to 29 of this report under the
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Executives” section.

Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 requires that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Ms. Daisy Yeung, also being
the Chief Executive Officer of the Group, has been appointed
by the Board as the Managing Director who is responsible for
leading the Board and the overall management of the business
of the Group. She would ensure that all Directors are properly
briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and that adequate,
complete and reliable information is received by the Directors.
On the other hand, the three INEDs provide independent and
impartial opinion on issues to be considered by the Board. The
Board is of the opinion that the current Board structure functions
effectively and does not intend to make any change thereof.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The INEDs are all professionals with well recognized experience
and expertise in financial, legal or accounting fields who provide
valuable advice to the Board. They are appointed for an initial
term of three years commencing from their respective date of
appointment and shall continue thereafter on a yearly basis
unless terminated by notice in writing served by either party.

The Company has received a confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs. The Board considers each of them to be
independent by reference to the factors as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The INEDs have been expressly identified
as such in all corporate communications of the Company that
disclose the names of Directors.

—3 Emperor Capital Group Limited ~ HE2XF#EEHERDF

ARRRZEZERMNZIABR - AEREST
EmRAM SRt R B EEATRI([ &
XERTH) 2T AR - KRB BERA
FEANEEETREERTZTRIME -
HEIR B <F BIMRSCEB A2 1 IR (FZIGRRE EF &
TR ZBEAESHENSHRE— ALHE
LIRSS -

BEEg

EEEgdER

R2016F9HA30H ' EEgmtuEE (M
UMITEER =B IFRTES([ B3
WMITEE ) AR REEBERRITES
MAEE7EBEREAB L BRBNhE
R -BEVEFHNAREF27TEEFE29E
ZIEERESPITHRABZBE]—&IA -

EFRRTBER
STRMESCE A2 VIR TE £ B RATHABE 2
BHASHATBHR - ALEEL - A&E
THREGRFZREITERETERERE
FREE  RARREESTENAEEER
ZEHER - REERAIBESFINESS
TR LIBBCFRELZERNEFTHRER
BREH  TERAISEZER it =118
VA TESERESTGER L FTHEMRS
VYRREER -EFERR EFGREZ
RENRER B ENF - AT EELERE
) o

BYFHITES

BIUFATESARERE  ARLEHAA
RALBILERZERZAL  EREFTER
HEESR - REZNHPEHHRESAE
ZERHELSM=F I HRFEHELD -
BEEEA—SHELEEAMMALRL -

ARRREWBSUBILIFRTEST 2B

RE -EFEHESEZ LMRAIEIABGA
HLRERAB/WNEDI/BIAL - AR7F
EMERBESFUR 2 ARRAT - CHE
SIBRES JEMITE R Z 5100 ©




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SRERRE

The Board (Continued)

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership, control and
promotion of success of the Group by directing and supervising
its business operations in the interests of the Shareholders and by
formulating strategic directions and monitoring the financial and
management performance of the Group.

Delegation to the Management

The management is led by the Executive Committee of the
Company (which comprises all the Executive Directors of the
Board) and has delegated powers and authorities to carry out the
day-to-day management and operation of the Group, formulate
business policies and make decision on key business issues. The
Executive Committee shall have all powers and authorities of the
Board except the following matters as set out in a formal schedule
of matters specifically reserved by the Board:

— Publication of final and interim results of the Company
— Dividend distribution or other distributions

— Major issues of treasury policy, accounting policy and
remuneration policy

— Major changes to group structure or Board composition
requiring notification by announcement

— Publication of the announcement for notifiable transaction
and non-exempted connected transaction/continuing
connected transaction

— Non-exempted connected transaction/continuing connected
transaction

— Notifiable transaction requiring Shareholders’ approval

— Capital restructuring and issue of new securities of the
Company

—  Financial assistance to Directors
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The Board (Continued)

Induction, Support and Professional Development of
Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director,
the relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors,
duty of disclosure of interest and business of the Group
and such induction materials will also be provided to newly
appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors.
All Directors have been updated on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirement to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices. There is a procedure
agreed by the Board to ensure Directors, upon reasonable
request, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses in order to assist
them to perform their duties to the Company.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. During the
Year, each Director had participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars/workshops/reading materials
on the following topics to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills and has provided a record of training to the Company.

Name of Directors

EEg(F)
EEZRE  XEREERR

PBEFEHCERBEEBREIESTCRENR
B ERAREFZHEBEC MR - xS
BEBEERAREXG 2 HBESIER -
MRAEEEHZERESR  TEREH
NRAHERHRZSEREANER - 2REFTT
ERLEMRAEEMEREE BRI RNE
REGRNER - KMmERED - R NE
REHRHEXREARRZEH -BEFEC
BERF EEFAIEEEBLTIKAEER
K@ SRKBUIEEERABBKERETAF
WITHE  ERAALRRAE -

EERR KHFCBTEEXELTARNAER
B2 T RHEXEA 6.5 - RAFE
SEFHC2HEBEEXRR  EBLFA
BIATERZE#E, TIEY BIEME
LA R No BT 1 2 R8BI B W RN
NA R4 8 o

Topics on fraining covered Nofes)

PR s £ )

Daisy Yeung I
Chan Shek Wah PR £5 2=
Choi Suk Hing, Louisa Z5 U
Pearl Chan e
Chu Kar Wing KRR
Poon Yan Wai N
Wan Choi Ha R R
Notes fifst © (1) corporate governance (PEE A

(2) regulatory BE

(3) finance 817

(4) industry-specific 1T¥# A7
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The Board (Continued)

Relationship between the Board Members

None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including #E %=
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relations) 7%
among each other.

Directors’ Insurance

EEg(E)

B

BE=x

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in AR
respect of legal action against the Directors.

Directors’ Attendance and time Commitment

NG
&

The attendance of Directors at the meetings during the Year is set A4
out below:

EREHZBRF

EREBZHMETMNRR(EEME
KB EMER MEHEER) o

2R
DA EE A B E Y 2 AR
HE Y 2 R -
AL DL e N
EEEHREHZERRIMT

No. of Meetings affended/held
hESE/ BHEERY

Corporate
Audit Remuneration  Nomination ~ Governance ' General
Committee ~ Committee  Committee ~ Committee ‘ Meetings
Name of Directors BhZEE  HMZEe REZES L¥EnZsg REAE
Executive Directors HEE
Daisy Yeung s 162 R 99 33 i " NATERE 1212 2
Chan Shek Wah Rz 99  NAMER  NAMEA  NATER  NATNER 12112 22
Choi Suk Hing, Louisa fees1é9 Zigilieiis 99 33 NATER  NATER i 12112 2
Pearl Chan B 99  NATER  NATMER  NATER  NATER 12112 22
Independent BU#HEE
Non-Executive Directors
Chu Kar Wing (&4 ReRie 99 33 101 o NATER  NATER 2
Poon Yan Wai (9 R 99 33 1" NARER " NARER 202
Wan Choi Ha (&9 BB 99 33 NATER 11 1 N/A NER 22
Total number of meetings held gieg 6y 9 3 1 1 1 12 2
Notes: Biat
1. Ms. Daisy Yeung and Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa were invited to sit-in the 1. 184+ RESRI & 1 53K B B g EHZ
Audit Committee meetings as non-members ZEEEgR
2. Chairperson of the Executive Committee 2. HITEERERE
3. Chairperson of the Corporate Governance Committee 3. NEEREEEER
4. Chairman of the Remuneration Committee 4. HMEEGERE
5. Chairman of the Audit Committee 5 ERZZEEEFR
6.  Chairperson of the Nomination Committee 6. REZE®ERE
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The Board (Continued)
Directors’ Attendance and time Commitment (Continued)

Upon reviewing (a) the annual confirmation of the time
commitment given by each Director; (b) the directorships and
major commitments of each Director; and (c) the attendance
rate of each Director on full Board and the respective board
committee meetings as well as general meetings, the Board is
satisfied that all Directors have spent sufficient time in performing
their responsibilities during the Year.

Board Meetings And Proceedings

Regular Board meetings were held at approximately quarterly
interval. The Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary and key officers of the company
secretarial team for ensuring that the Board procedures, all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the meeting
agenda is set by the Chairperson of the meeting in consultation
with other Board members. Board meeting notice was sent to the
Directors at least 14 days prior to each regular Board meeting.
Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are generally sent to all Directors and relevant
committee members at least 3 days before each Board meeting
and Board Committee meeting to enable the Directors to make
informed decisions.

Draft and final versions of the minutes of Board meetings and
Board committee meetings, drafted in sufficient details by the
secretary of the meetings, were circulated to the Directors for
their comment and record respectively. Originals of such minutes,
being kept by the Company Secretary, are open for inspection at
any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

If any Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, that
Director will abstain from voting on the relevant Board resolution
in which he/she or any of his/her associates has a material interest
and that he/she shall not be counted in the quorum present at
such Board meeting.
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The Board (Continued)

Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have been
delegated by the Board to the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance
Committee and Executive Committee.

The majority of the members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are INEDs.
Clear written terms of reference of all the Board Committees are
given to the respective members of these Committees. Details of
the Board Committees are set out below:

1.

Audit Committee (set up on 1 March 2007)

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr.
Poon Yan Wai (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Chu Kar
Wing and Ms. Wan Choi Ha.

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee which was re-adopted on 9 December 2015 in
light of the amendment of Listing Rules, is available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Audit Committee is primarily responsible for (a) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor; (b)
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditor; and (c) reviewing financial information and
overseeing the financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control procedures. The Audit Committee held
three meetings during the Year.

A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee during
the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed with the management/finance-in-charge
and/or the external auditor the effectiveness of audit
process and the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of the
annual financial statements for the financial year ended
30 September 2015 as well as the interim financial
statements for the six months ended 31 March 2016;

i. reviewed with the senior management and finance-in-
charge the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Group;

iii. annual review of the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions of the Group for the Year;

iv. approved the audit plan for the financial year ended 30
September 2016, reviewed the independence of external
auditor and approved the engagement of external
auditor;
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The Board (Continued)

Board Committees (Continued)

Bxg(A)
EEZER(F)

1. Audit Committee (set up on 1 March 2007) (Continued) 1. ERZEE(R2007F3A1HKT) (&)

v. recommended the Board on the re-appointment of V. BRESSEHMLTEINEZEGED
external auditor; and &

vi. recommended the Board to adopt the revised terms vi. EESMRBEMARZIERT -
of reference of the Audit Committee in light of the ?m JN”“f uT%¢§§FiE\HE%T’§E$BI
amendments in the Listing Rules regarding the role E% HE %S EEREH
of the Audit Committee on the review of the risk =L S LZH%;%
management system of the Group.

2. Remuneration Committee (set up on 1 March 2007) 2. FHWZEE(R2007F3H1HMK )

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Chu Kar Wing (Chairman of the Committee) and
Mr. Poon Yan Wai, both being INEDs, and Ms. Daisy Yeung,
being the Managing Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Remuneration Committee
is primarily responsible for making recommendation to
the Board on (a) Company’s policy and structure of the
remuneration of Directors and senior management; (b) the
remuneration of INEDs; and (c) the specific remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management. Details of the remuneration of each of
the Directors for the Year are set out in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Remuneration
Committee held one meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed and recommended to the Board on approval of
the Directors’ fees;

ii. reviewed the current remuneration structure/package
of the Executive Directors and senior management
and recommended the Board to approve their specific
packages; and

iii. reviewed the remuneration policy for Directors and
senior management and made recommendation to the
Board.
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The Board (Continued)

Board Committees (Continued)

3.

Nomination Committee (set up on 28 March 2012)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Wan Choi Ha (Chairperson of the Committee) and
Mr. Chu Kar Wing, both being INEDs, and Ms. Daisy Yeung,
being the Managing Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are (a) reviewing the structure,
size and diversity of the Board; (b) reviewing the Board
Diversity Policy; (c) determining the policy for the nomination
of Directors and identifying potential candidates for
directorship; (d) assessing the independence of INEDs;
(e) reviewing the time commitment of each Director; and (f)
making recommendations to the Board on any proposed
changes to the Board or selection of individual nominated
for directorships, or on appointment or re-appointment or re-
election of Directors. The Nomination Committee held one
meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board;

ii. reviewed the independence of the INEDs;

iii. reviewed the confirmation from the Directors on their
time commitment in performing their duties as directors;
and

iv. recommended to the Board on nomination of Directors
for re-election at the 2016 annual general meeting.

As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy aims
to achieve diversity on Board in the broadest sense in
order to have a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives to the business nature of the Company.
Selection of candidates on the Board is based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including gender, age, length
of service, professional qualification and experience. The
Nomination Committee will also assess the merits and
contribution of any Director proposed for re-election or
any candidate nominated to be appointed as Director and
against the objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board that would complement the existing
Board.
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The Board (Continued)

Board Committees (Continued)

4.

Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 28 March
2012)

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of five
members, namely Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa (Chairperson
of the Committee) being an Executive Director, Mr. Poon
Yan Wai and Ms. Wan Choi Ha, both being INEDs, a
representative from company secretarial function and
a representative from finance and accounts function.
The specific written terms of reference of the Corporate
Governance Committee is available on the Company’s
website. The primary duties of the Corporate Governance
Committee are (a) reviewing the policies and practices
on corporate governance and compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements of the Group; (b) reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management; (c)
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct applicable
to Directors and relevant employees of the Group; and (d)
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Report. The Corporate Governance
Committee held one meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Corporate
Governance Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the Corporate Governance Policy and made
recommendation to the Board;

ii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

iv. reviewed the code of conduct applicable to Directors
and relevant employees of the Group; and

v. reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in Corporate Governance Report.
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The Board (Continued)

Board Committees (Continued)
5. Executive Committee (set up on 18 November 2014)

The Executive Committee consists of four members, namely
Ms. Daisy Yeung (Chairperson of the Committee), Mr. Chan
Shek Wah, Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa and Ms. Pearl Chan,
all being the Executive Directors. The primary duties of the
Executive Committee are (a) formulating business policies
and making decision on matters relating to the management
and operations of the Group; and (b) having all power and
authorities of the Board except those matters specifically
reserved for the full Board as set out in the “Formal Schedule
on matters reserved for and delegated by the Board”
adopted by the Board from time to time.

Securities Transactions of Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiries with all Directors, all of them confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard of dealings as set
out in such Model Code throughout the Year.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities to prepare
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules and the
management has provided such explanation and information to
the Board to enable it to make an informed assessment of the
financial and other Board decisions. The Directors believed that
they have selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently, made judgments and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable and ensured the consolidated financial
statements are prepared on a “going concern” basis. The auditor
of the Company has made a statement about their reporting
responsibilities in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

The management has provided all members of the Board with
monthly updates on internal financial statements so as to give
the Directors a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, position and prospects.

Risk Management and Internal Control
Goals and objectives

The Board acknowledges that it is its responsibility to ensure that
the Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

(Continued)

Main features of the risk management and internal control

systems (“Systems”)
Control structure

The Board

Audit Committee

The management
(includes heads
of business units,
departments and
divisions)

Internal Audit
Department

—J Emperor Capital Group Limited ~ HE2XHEEERD

ensure the maintenance of
appropriate and effective
Systems in order to safeguard
the Shareholders’ investment and
assets of the Group;

define management structure with
clear lines of responsibility and limit
of authority; and

determine the nature and extent of
significant risk that the Company
is willing to take in achieving the
strategic objectives and formulate
the Group’s risk management
strategies.

oversee the Systems of the Group;

review and discuss with the
management annually to ensure
that the management has
performed its duty to have effective
Systems; and

consider major findings on
internal control matters and make
recommendations to the Board.

design, implement and monitor the
Systems properly and ensure the
Systems are executed effectively;

monitor risks and take measures
to mitigate risks in day-to-day
operations;

give prompt responses to, and
follow up the findings on internal
control matters raised by internal or
external auditors; and

provide confirmation to the
Board on the effectiveness of the
Systems.

carry out the analysis and
independent appraisal of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the
Systems.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(Continued)

Main features of the risk management and internal control
systems (“Systems”) (Continued)

Control approach and tools

During the Year, the management analysed the control
environment, identified risks pertaining thereto, and implemented
various controls therein.

i. Approach taken: The management conducted interviews
with relevant staff members, reviewing relevant
documentation of the internal control system and evaluating
findings of any deficiencies in the design of the Group’s
internal control system, providing recommendations
for improvement and assessing the effectiveness of
implementation of such recommendations, where
appropriate. The scope and findings of review on the risk
management and internal control are reported to and
reviewed by the Audit Committee annually.

ii. Procedure manuals and operational guidelines: They are
in place to safeguard the assets against unauthorised use
or disposition, ensuring maintenance of proper accounting
records in compliance with the applicable laws, rules and
regulations for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use and/or external publication.

ii. Management information system and technology: Such
use to control over the business activities allows close
tracking of various inputs and outputs of the Group’s
business such as customer information system and human
resources. It also tracks audit trails in the authorisation
system, in which permissions and responsibility of
authorisation are clearly identified and adequate records can
be maintained in the system.

iv. Reports and variance analysis: Such reports and analysis
of each segment are conducted on a regular basis such that
their performance can be easily accessible.

v. Information flow: The transparent information flow alerts
us promptly of any deviations. Benchmarking with historical
database and comparisons with the same also act as a
detecting device for spotting unusual activities.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(Continued)

Risk management

The risk management process includes risk identification, risk
evaluation, risk management measures and risk control and
review.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify, analyse,
evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate risks associated
with any activity, function or process within its scope of
responsibility and authority. It endeavours to evaluate and
compare the level of risk against predetermined acceptable
levels of risk. For risk control and monitoring, it involves making
decisions regarding which risks are acceptable and how to
address those that are not. The management will develop
contingency plans for possible loss scenarios. Accidents and
other situations involving loss or near-loss will be investigated
and properly documented as part of the effort to manage risks.

Significant Risks

The Group’s business, financial conditions and results may be
affected by risks and uncertainties pertaining to the Group’s
business. Certain significant risks have been identified through
the process of risk identification and assessment. Such
significant risks of the Group and their respective key strategies/
control measures are set out below:

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the borrower or counterparty
may fail to perform its obligation to pay in a timely manner, or
that its ability to perform such obligation may get impaired before
delivery date.

The Group’s Credit Committee, the ultimate credit decision-
making organ of the Group, is responsible for putting in place
credit policies and procedures for approving lending including
those for approving credit and trading limits for customers and
approving individual stocks acceptable for margin lending at
specified ratios. The Group’s exposure to credit risk lies mainly in
two areas:
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(Continued)

Significant Risks (Continued)

Credit Risk (Continued)

a)

Margin financing

The customers’ trading of securities or futures may expose
the Group to risk arising from price volatility which may
reduce the customers’ ability to meet their obligations.
The Credit Committee will prescribe from time to time
the lending limits on individual stock or on any individual
customers and their respective associates by considering
their creditworthiness, financial strength and the size of their
positions or commitments.

The Credit and Risk Control Department (“CRC Department”)
is responsible for the daily monitoring of the changes
in customers’ positions, their accounts and financing
ratios; to observe strictly the approved financing and
credit policies; to make margin calls and perform forced
liquidation, where appropriate; to report to the management
regularly and when abnormalities arise; to closely monitor
the unusual movements and trading halts of stocks and
timely identify non-performing debts; and to demand higher
margin requirements and step up risk control for particular
customers or products, where appropriate.

The Group has set up policies on customer concentration
risk and stock concentration risk. The CRC Department will
monitor the concentration of credit risk and regularly perform
stress tests to assess the Group’s credit risk exposure and
capital adequacy and to report anomaly or any unusual price
movements of customers’ stock positions.

Lending portfolio

The Credit Committee sets and establishes the credit
underwriting, approving and provisioning policies. All loans
and advances are subject to credit analysis, due diligence
on borrowers, and risk assessment and are approved by
the management according to the credit policies set by
the Credit Committee. The Loans Operation Department
is tasked with the daily monitoring of exposures for loans
and advances, while accounts with deteriorating credit
position may be referred to the CRC Department for closely
monitoring. The Credit Committee meets both regularly and
timely to review the developments and status of past due
accounts and to ensure appropriate actions are taken in a
timely manner.

Moreover, the Internal Audit Department also conducts
independent reviews on the adequacy and effectiveness
of these policies and controls to ensure that the Group is
operating according to the established policies, procedures
and credit limits.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(Continued)

Significant Risks (Continued)

Equity Risk

Equity risk arises from fluctuation in the price and volatility of
equities such as stocks, equity portfolio and stock index futures.
The Group does not have proprietary equity investments. On the
other hand, the Group may be subject to exposure arising from
the underwriting commitments. The Group mitigates its risks
by conducting detailed analysis of the issuer’s fundamentals
and pricing against market conditions and appetites. Such risk
exposure is also reduced by way of internal sales and distribution
and by sub-underwritings.

Liquidity Risk

The Group’s financing business is a capital intensive business
which may be subject to liquidity risk. As part of its ordinary
brokerage activities, the Group is also exposed to liquidity risk
arising from timing difference between settlements with clearing
houses or brokers and customers. The goal of liquidity risk
management is to ensure the Group maintains adequate liquid
capital to fund its business commitments as well as to comply
with the relevant Financial Resources Rules applying to various
licensed subsidiaries.

To address the liquidity risk, the Group’s Finance and Accounts
Department and the management will review and monitor the
Group’s liquidity position on daily basis to ensure availability of
sufficient liquid funds. In addition, the Group has maintained
sufficient stand-by banking and other facilities in order to meet
any contingency in its operations. The management believes
the Group’s working capital is adequate to meet its financial
obligations.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of losses arising from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people, systems or external events. The
Group extends operational risk management to cover potential
losses arising from legal and compliance breaches. Operational
risk is reduced and controlled through establishing effective
internal controls, clear lines of responsibility, proper segregation
of duties and effective internal reporting and contingency
planning. It is our corporate culture that the business and
operating line management are fully aware of their responsibilities
for managing the operational risks of their business units on
a day-to-day basis. Independent monitoring and reviews are
conducted by the Compliance Department and the Internal Audit
Department, which report regularly to the management and the
Audit Committee.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(Continued)

Internal Controls

The Internal Audit Department is assigned with the task to
perform regular reviews on internal control system of the Group
in respect of operational, financial and compliance aspects
and will alert the management on the audit review findings
or irregularities, if any, advise them on the implementation of
necessary steps and actions to enhance the internal controls of
the Group. The result of internal audit reviews and agreed action
plans are reported to the Audit Committee and the Board.

Other than review of the Systems, the Audit Committee has
also reviewed and is satisfied with the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

The Board acknowledged that the management had been
progressively implementing an adequate internal control system
to ensure the effective functioning of the Group’s operational,
financial and compliance areas, including the following key
measures, policies and procedures:—

i.  Financial reporting management:

e Proper controls are in place for the recording of
complete, accurate and timely accounting and
management information;

e Regular reports on revenue and loan receivables’
ageing and internal financial reports are prepared
to the management which give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s financial
performance;

e Monthly updates on internal financial statements
are provided to all Directors which give a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance, financial position and prospects in
sufficient details; and

e Annual audit by external auditor is carried out to ensure
that the consolidated financial statements are prepared
in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, the Group’s accounting policies and the
applicable laws and regulations.

ii. Systems and Procedures on Disclosure of Inside
Information to ensure, with the assistance of an internal
work team (if required), that any material information which
comes to the knowledge of any one or more officers should
be promptly identified, assessed and escalated, where
appropriate, for the attention of the Board,;
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(Continued)

Internal Controls (Continued)

ii. Policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements which shall be reviewed and
monitored regularly by the Corporate Governance Committee
as delegated by the Board;

iv. the establishment of a CCT Compliance Committee to
monitor, control and regularly review continuing connected
transactions of the Company and ensure proper compliance
with all relevant laws and regulations, the Listing Rules and
disclosure requirements; and

v. Whistle-blowing policy for employees of the Group to raise
concerns, in confidence, about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters. Such
arrangement will be reviewed by the Audit Committee which
ensures that proper arrangement is in place for fair and
independent investigation of the matters.

The Board and Audit Committee have reviewed the Group’s
Systems and are not aware of any significant issues that would
have an adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of the
Systems of the Group.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company had established a Shareholders’ communication
policy and the Board reviews it on a regular basis to ensure
its effectiveness. The Company communicates with the
Shareholders mainly in the following ways: (i) the holding of
annual general meetings and special general meetings, if any,
which may be convened for specific purposes which provide
opportunities for the Shareholders to communicate directly with
the Board; (ii) the publication of announcements, annual reports,
interim reports and/or circulars as required under the Listing
Rules and press releases providing updated information of the
Group; (iii) the availability of latest information of the Group in the
Company’s website at http://www.emperorcapital.com; (iv) the
holding of press conference(s) from time to time; and (v) meeting
with investors and analysts on a regular basis and participate
investor road show and sector conference.

There is regular dialogue with institutional Shareholders and
general presentations are made when financial results are
announced. Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit
the Company’s website to raise enquiries through our Investor
Relations Department whose contact details are available on
the Company’s website and the “Corporate Information and Key
Dates” section of this Annual Report.

—3 Emperor Capital Group Limited ~ HE2XF#EEHERDF

R EERAIBERE(E)

P BB (42)

i AREYERREEARZHERESR
REFEEE L L REREARTIR
HREE

iv. RUBBEREXZEREEEUESR
2RI R EHRRIAARB ZFHEBER
7 HRE/EST —YRBERLX
Mo EMRRAIARERE © &

V. RIUBBBRARAKEEBCWTE
AT BER  ABEENEMER
FH R EE TN ETRIRHEE - ZFRY
HHBEZZE GRS - BREBERH
AEBBRETAVPRBILZAE -

ExelERZESCBHARE AL
IR KA A e AR B 2 5% 5 R
BRMNFTREEETNZENEAME -

BERRZBE
ARAFEHETRRENBRE  YHEFS
EHFEHRRANBREAKR - ARFAIEE
MIATHAERRER - (NVBITRRBF
RELHERENMARZRREIAS
(A HUARHKSERREEHEES
BB (NVRBLHRAZATHER
EFR - FHRER RERHRRMR
SEZEFENZHBER ()RR
http://www.emperorcapital.com T/ 3 K &£ &
ZEHER (V) TEREBRLERTE 0 R(v)
EHEREERSNERITEE WK
BERENERGE -

AEEERBREE T E - YRR
BERERFRITE2EEMS - ARFBUIRR
MRBEERJNBEARRRIEUL B BREEBR
B - AP 2 B R BRI R AN R R A8 uh
MAFEHR [ AREHNEZAH | —&ERH -




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A\ 2 \\
TEERRE

Communication with Shareholders (Continued)

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings for such
substantial issues, including the re-election of retiring Directors.
The Company’s notice to Shareholders for the 2016 annual
general meeting (“2016 AGM”) was sent to Shareholders at least
20 clear business days before the meeting and notices of all other
general meetings were sent to Shareholders at least 10 clear
business days before the meetings.

The Chairperson of the 2016 AGM, the chairman/chairperson of
the Board Committees and the external auditors were available at
the 2016 AGM to answer questions from the Shareholders. With
the assistance of the Company Secretary, the Chairperson of the
meeting had explained the procedures for conducting poll voting
during the meeting.

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will be
held on 26 January 2017 which will be conducted by way of poll.

Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders
as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG Code:

Convening a Special General Meeting (“SGM”) and Putting
Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws of
the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall have the right to submit a written
requisition requiring a SGM to be called by the Board. The
written requisition (a) must state the object(s) of the meeting;
and (b) must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at
the principal office of the Company for attention of the Company
Secretary, and may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more requisitionists. Such requisitions
will be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar and upon its confirmation that the requisition is proper
and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice to all Shareholders.
On the contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in
order, the requisitionists will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, the SGM will not be convened as requested.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

Convening a Special General Meeting (“SGM”) and Putting
Forward Proposals at General Meetings (Continued)

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM for a day
not more than two months after the date of deposit of a proper
requisition, the requisitionists or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them may convene
a SGM, but any SGM so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of 3 months from the said date of deposit of the
requisition. A meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which meetings are to be convened by Directors.

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any number
of the registered Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company (“Requisitionists”), or
not less than 100 of such registered Shareholders, can request
the Company in writing to (a) give to the Shareholders entitled
to receive notice of the next annual general meeting notice of
any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to the Shareholders
entitled to have notice of any general meeting any statement of
not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to
in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting. The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists must be
deposited at the principal office of the Company for attention of
the Company Secretary with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s relevant expenses and not less than six weeks
before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution or not less than one week before the meeting in the
case of any other requisition. Provided that if, after a copy of the
requisition requiring notice of a resolution has been deposited at
the principal office of the Company, an annual general meeting
is called for a date six weeks or less after the copy has been
deposited, such requisition though not deposited within the time
required shall be deemed to have been properly deposited for the
purposes thereof.

Enquires from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited. Other Shareholders’
enquiries can be directed to the Investor Relations Department
of the Company whose contact details are shown on “Corporate
Information and Key Dates” section of this Annual Report.
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Constitutional Documents

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year.

Auditor’'s Independence and Remuneration

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process of the financial statements
in accordance with applicable standard. Members of the Audit
Committee were of the view that the Company’s auditor, Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu is independent and has recommended
the Board to re-appoint it as the Company’s auditor at the 2016
annual general meeting. During the Year, Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu has rendered audit services and certain non-audit
services to the Group and the remuneration paid/payable to it by
the Group is set out as follows:

Service rendered FRiZ AR 7S

Audit services RS

Non-audit services: FERZBRTS -
Review of the preliminary BRI EERS

results announcement
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
By HENRE

Deloitte.
=E)

TO THE MEMBERS OF EMPEROR CAPITAL GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Emperor Capital Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 70 to 151, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 30 September 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
By AR E

Auditor’'s Responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
30 September 2016, and of its financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

8 December 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEaRkEMEERER

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt TAT TAT
Revenue A 8 835,077
Other operating income Hip g A 7,122
Staff costs BIMA 9 (80,302)
Commission expenses Rexl (112,650)
Other expenses Hi (80,068)
Finance costs BKER 10 (51,279)
Share of (loss) profit of an associate i —REENE 2 (B17)
il 19 1,756
Share of loss of a joint venture Eh—HaebEcEBE 20 (22)
Profit before taxation BR A AT 13 519,634
Taxation I 14 (89,383)
Profit for the year FERR 430,251
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hit2E (%) W
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit B # A ¢ B # B F 18257
or loss: BH :
Exchange differences arising on translation BMEET/ERESR 26
Other comprehensive (expense) income FEAEM2E(FAx)KE
for the year 26
Total comprehensive income FEZEHRZAHE
for the year 430,277
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the ARAEBAEGZER R
Company 430,251
Total comprehensive income attributable to owners R EHEAE AfELE 2 2 EKH
of the Company bk 430,277
Earnings per share SREF 16
Basic BA HK10.21 cents& Il
Diluted #E HK10.04 centsi& il
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ma AR R R

At 30 September 2016 72016598 30H
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2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
LiEz3 FHET FERT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property and equipment EYNE L] 17 4,883
Intangible assets mEEE 18 -
Other assets Hi &7 21 9,177
Interest in an associate R —EEE Qa2 s 19 4,489
Amount due from an associate JE W — Bt 5 2 B R IE 19 5,987
Interest in a joint venture R—EE&EhE IR 20 514
Loans and advances /&N 22 56,032
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE 27 -
81,082
Current assets REBEE
Accounts receivable JE L BR R 23 3,232,351
Loans and advances BmRBH% 22 1,398,541
Other debtors, deposits and HMEWER  mek
prepayments AR 58,007
Bank balances and cash RITHEBNRE
— trust accounts —EFEERP 24 1,368,108
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR NI
— general accounts —— R 24 462,389
Pledged bank deposits EHEIFIRITFR
- general accounts ——MRERP 25 -
6,519,396
Current liabilities RBEE
Accounts payable FERTBR K 26 1,667,105
Other creditors and accrued charges E e AR R R BT
2H 92,264
Tax liabilities HMIRBE 106,340
Short-term bank borrowings REHEAIRITIE K 28 480,000
Loans payable FERTER 29 10,000
Bonds issued BEITES 30 -
2,355,709




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ma AR R R

At 30 September 2016 201659 H30H

2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

B & FET FEx

Net current assets REBEERE 4,163,687
Total assets less current liabilities EERERRBERS 4,244,769
Non-current liabilities FRBEME

Bonds issued BBI1TES 30 605,865
Net assets EEFE 3,638,904
Capital and reserves EXR®E

Share capital AR 31 57,479

Reserves G 3,581,425
Total equity DB 3,638,904

The consolidated financial statements on pages 70 to 151 were ZEE€R2016F 12 A8 B it/ M IRETIENE
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directorson 8 70BZF 151 B 24 AW EHE - Wl 7

December 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: EERREFTGEE
DAISY YEUNG CHAN SHEK WAH
B BR 85 2
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEREER

For the year ended 30 September 2016 H/Z2016F9H30H ILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAREEAEL
Capital Share Non-
Share Share Special contribufion  Translation  Retained option controling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits reserve Tofal inferests Total
B ROEE  GRlRE EABARE  RERE  REEN  BREGRR & FERER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TR TiEn TiEn TR TiEn TR T TiEn
At1 October 2014 #2014510A18 26,320 857,197 9,950 2,004 53 674,610 - 1570134 - 1570134
Other comprehensive income ~ £EEM2EHE
for the year - - - - 26 - - 26 - 26
Profit for the year EFaf - - - - - 430,251 - 430,251 - 430,251
Total comprehensive income  FE 2 2ENELE
for the year - - - - 26 430,251 - 430,277 - 430,277
Dividend recognised as BRENRLRE
distribution - - - - - (89,375) - (89,375) - (89,375)
Issue of shares (note 31) Bk (HEs1) 31,159 1,696,709 - - - - - 1,727,868 - 1,707,868
At 30 September 2015 2015594308 57479 2,553,906 9,950 2,004 79 1015486 - 3,638,904 - 3638904
Other comprehensive expense  £EEMH2ERS
for the year
Profit for the year EZaf]
Total comprehensive income  FE 2 2ENELE
for the year
Dividend recognised as BRENRLRE
distribution
Issue of shares (note 31) ARG (Wi31)
At 30 September 2016 2016594308

Special reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of the ordinary shares of the subsidiary of the Company in
issue and the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company
for acquisition of a subsidiary pursuant to a group reorganisation

on 2 April 2007.

Capital contribution reserve represents the deemed contribution
arising from a fellow subsidiary waiving certain amount of

management fee in previous years.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MERERER

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Interest income
Depreciation of property and equipment

Share of loss (profit) of an associate

Share of loss of a joint venture

BUR DN
A BUA
MERBRBZITE

FEfG — B & N R E 1R
Caz A1)

i —HaEbEER

[

Net impairment for loans and advances ER KRB BEFRE
Impairment on accounts receivable FEWER R 2 RE
Operating cash flows before movements &E& & BH] 2 KL
in working capital BIME
Increase in accounts receivable JE W BR R 2 1 AN
Increase in other assets H th & B 2 & N

Increase in loans and advances

Increase in other debtors, deposits
and prepayments

Decrease (increase) in bank balances
and cash — trust accounts

(Decrease) increase in accounts
payable

(Decrease) increase in other creditors

B R B Z AN

HAibEWARSK - i e MR
IR 2 3 A0

RITHEBREIA T — (55
BRP 2R ()

e R 2 OR )38

H & R K N e R B

and accrued charges 2 G ) & hn
Cash used in operations AREEzRE
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid R EEREH
PRC Tax paid BB IR

Interest paid (excluding bond interest)

ENME(TBEES
FE)

Interest received RSN

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ARKETE 2 BEE RE
ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITY HEEE

Purchase of property and equipment BEEMENEZ

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ARBRETBH RS FE
ACTIVITY

—J Emperor Capital Group Limited ~ HE2XF#EEERDF

2016
HK$"000
FET

2015
HK$’000
FET

519,634

51,279
(472,459)
2,144

(1,756)
22
550
19

99,433
(1,550,414)
(1,869)
(522,699)

(35,191)

(203,859)

365,917

6,923

(1,841,759)
(51,635)

(17,780)
472,459

(1,438,715)

(1,628)

(1,628)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= =1
GERERER
For the year ended 30 September 2016 H/Z2016F9H30H ILFE
2016 2015
HKS$’000 HK$’000
FTExT FTiERT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEED
Proceeds from issue of shares BITIRDFI1S5IE 1,727,868
Drawdown on bank borrowings TRERTTIE R 16,498,298
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBITER (16,728,298)
Increase in pledged bank deposits EHERRITERZIE M
- general accounts ——RERP -

Drawdown on advance from a

REUK B —MREAE

related company ZER 1,180,000
Repayment to a related company EE—HBAEAR A (1,180,000)
Repayment of loans payable BEEMNER -
Proceeds of bonds issuance BITEFFIENIA -
Redemption of bonds issued BE2EHTES -
Bonds issuing cost paid ERMESFEITHAR -
Interest paid on bonds issuing BEHFEHITENFE (33,333)
Dividend paid B & (89,375)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING REMETBH RS FHE

ACTIVITIES 1,375,160
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN RERBELZEY M

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS OR2) 28 (65,183)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHzREREESEEY

AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 527,546
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE INEEREE B

RATE CHANGES 26
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZAESRASEEY

AT THE END OF THE YEAR 462,389
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF HeRRESEEBYZ

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RO AT
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LIRS

- general accounts ——MmRERP 462,389
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

General

The Company is incorporated and registered as an
exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) and acts
as an investment holding company. The immediate holding
company is Emperor Capital Group Holdings Limited
(“Emperor Capital Holdings”), which is a limited liability
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI”). The ultimate holding company is Albert Yeung
Holdings Limited, a limited liability company incorporated
in the BVI. The entire issued share capital of Albert Yeung
Holdings Limited is, in turn, held by STC International
Limited, being the trustee of The Albert Yeung Discretionary
Trust (the “AY Trust”), a discretionary trust set up by Dr.
Yeung Sau Shing, Albert.

Shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 24 April 2007. The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information”
section of this Annual Report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 37.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The application
of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

— &R
RRRTIRIEEFZE198IFERBE (K
&3]) AERREIMKIRER A
BHREBRAR - WEREREERA
Al - EBEERAFAREESHFEEH T
BRERAR([REFHER]) - K&
BRzES ([ RBREXES ) MK
VZBRRAT c REERABR/EGXK
EEEBRERAG  REBEXESH
M2 BRAR - 5 XKREEZERE
RARIZZEEFHITRABEGXKE
T 5 37 2 B 15 15 5 The Albert Yeung
Discretionary Trust([AY Trust]) 2%
L ASTC International Limited#% A °

RANFZ D B2007F4 24827
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B ERRM

For the year ended 30 September 2016 B Z2016F9830H ILFE

2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")

(Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new or revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective,
which may be relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Disclosure initiative®

Disclosure initiative*

Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and
amortisation®

Equity method in separate
financial statements®

Classification and measurement
of share-based payment
transactions’

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from contracts with
customers'’

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture®

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 cycle®

Financial instruments'’

Revenue from contracts with
customers'

Leases?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 2. FERAHIT R KB BB M B R
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") LR ([FEBEREEL )
(Continued) )

ERUHEREERFERESMIA

R2009F M 2 BB T IFMELERIE
FoIAERMEENERAEZTHAT -
BB EREEAFIFKEER2010F
EHIER]  MAD N EERABER
BUMRZETE » WHR2013FELH#
—HERT - MAE R RAEEZIE
TE o R2014F B 2 BB SRS %A
FIOF I —EETRAEEMA)EH
TRMEEZRERELDELASETHE
EHETASIATEREMEAKEEZAD
FEIE|([EEEME2EKREEATF
BIERDFE8EA Yo BERFERTE

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to
include the new requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014
mainly to include a) impairment requirements for financial
assets and b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a “fair
value through other comprehensive income” (FVTOCI)
measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.

EH A RIERT ©

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below: EEVBHREEANFEGRZEERTEH
aany

e All recognised financial assets that are within the scope s FABEEGFTERIEI9 [TR

TE:BRANTE|HBERZCH®
REeMEEHRIZEHXAK QT

of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised

cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose objective
is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair value at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

BEfE - AEME - BNAKES
MREREZEBRARNFTAE ZE
BIRE  RAEORESREBE/IN
e RHAREERASHE ZEBHK
B —MRERENIEEERR
BEHAAGE - RENASREED
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BRSHNBZERITR  REBE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRM

For the year ended 30 September 2016 B Z2016F9830H ILFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 2. fEH

Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms
currently available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types
of transactions eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are eligible
for hedge accounting. In addition, the retrospective
quantitative effectiveness test has been removed.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9 in
the future may have a certain impact on amounts reported
and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 9 until the Group
performs a detailed review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

2

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 2.

Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
contracts” and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: lIdentify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required
by HKFRS 15.

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15
in the future may have an impact on the amounts reported
and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group
performs a detailed review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRM

For the year ended 30 September 2016 B Z2016F9830H ILFE

2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 2.

Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

In May 2016, HKFRS 16 was issued which provides
a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and their treatment in the financial statements
for both lessees and lessors. HKFRS 16 applies a control
model to the identification of leases, distinguishing between
leases and service contracts on the basis of whether there is
an identified asset controlled by the customer. Under HKFRS
16, significant changes to lessee accounting are introduced,
with the distinction between operating and finance leases
removed and assets and liabilities recognised in respect
of all leases (subject to limited exceptions for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets). In contrast, HKFRS
16 does not include significant changes to the requirements
for accounting by lessors. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17
“Leases” and its related interpretations including HK(IFRIC)
— INT 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease”, HK(SIC) — INT 15 “Operating Leases-Incentives” and
HK(SIC) — INT 27 “Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease” when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for the
rights and obligations created by all leases with a term of
more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low
value. A lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and
a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease
payments. A lessee measures right-of-use assets similarly to
other non-financial assets (such as property and equipment)
and lease liabilities similarly to other financial liabilities. As
a consequence, a lessee recognises depreciation of the
right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability, and
also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into a
principal portion and an interest portion and presents them
in the statement of cash flows applying HKAS 7 “Statement
of Cash Flows”. Assets and liabilities arising from a lease
are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments
(including inflation-linked payments), and also includes
payments to be made in optional periods if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend the lease,
or not to exercise an option to terminate the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

2

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 2.

Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

In addition, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the
lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a
lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases
differently.

Furthermore, HKFRS 16 also requires both lessor and lessee
to provide enhanced disclosures in their financial statements
in order to gives a basis for users of financial statements to
assess the effect that leases have on the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the lessor and
lessee.

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 16
in the future may have a certain impact on the amounts
reported and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of effect of HKFRS 16 until the Group
performs a detailed review.

The Directors anticipate that the application of all other
new and revised standards, amendments or interpretation
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“CQO").
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRM

For the year ended 30 September 2016 B Z2016F9830H ILFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) regarding preparation of accounts and directors’
reports and audits became effective for the Company for
the financial year ended 30 September 2016. Further,
the disclosure requirements set out in the Listing Rules
regarding annual accounts have been amended with
reference to the new CO and to streamline with HKFRSs.
Accordingly the presentation and disclosure of information
in the consolidated financial statements for the financial year
ended 30 September 2016 have been changed to comply
with these new requirements. Comparative information in
respect of the financial year ended 30 September 2016
are presented or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements based on the new requirements. Information
previously required to be disclosed under the predecessor
CO or Listing Rules but not under the new CO or amended
Listing Rules are not disclosed in these consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods or services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 3. EAE®HBE(£E)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value o - BB BHREM S - A FEFER

measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on BATEAECHABBABRZEER

the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements WABBEHAFTENEZEEEEZEDY
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair BHARAZ R F_RRE=F  Hitm
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as ™~

follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active e F—RBHABBEEENITEHH
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity ARG ZEREERBERER
can access at the measurement date; M52 WMECREHRAE)

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices o F_HAWMABEEREEXEER
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset EAMEEMAIRR 2@ ASBIKR(E
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and —HMABIEZRERIN) &

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or e F=BBHABBEREEXAEBZT
liability. AR ABE -

The principal accounting policies are set out below. TESFTHEREINMT -

Basis of consolidation mEEE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the RETBHRRBIEARRD T RARBFTIE

financial statements of the Company and entities controlled FER(ENBAR) ZHMIEHRK - S

by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved when EHBEHEARAR]

the Company:

e has power over the investee; o BREEHIBKRER

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its o AESNZHRBWRE H A E DR
involvement with the investee; and RS ER &

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. o BRENTEFEEBNFEHERBN S

B o

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee WMEENMBERARA LI =EEGHEAEZS

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to BE—HExZELEEY  AAEEeE

one or more of the three elements of control listed above. HESKAHBRRE T FEEGIE -

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains B ARG AENANEEESHMER

control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group Al GRS - WRAREREY

losses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and B AR EdERRIE - HBBME -
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during RERNKESHE B RRZHBAR
the year are included in the consolidated income statement At AAEBEEESEHEZAES

from the date the Group gains control until the date when the REETNBEZEFIMNBAR B 2GEa 1

Group ceases to control the subsidiary. I ©

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income EakEEAMEzEAREEEBBERA

are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the NEEAARIEZEREZ - MBARZ

non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of PHENGZEBERENARRIEAE AN
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and iR A E S E RIS

to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non- WE Al 4E 64 o

controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRM

For the year ended 30 September 2016 B Z2016F9830H ILFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group losses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS
39, or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 3. EAE®HBE(£E)
Interest in associates and joint venture REERARREELECER
Associates are entities over which the Group has significant BMENR ANEBHEBEERATEN
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a ZER ZERBUVHE-—BEMNEBAR IR
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate INEELE IR EAFELDHE
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee BRI EE 2B RICEREETIES
but is not control or joint control over those policies. S R RIEHIZ SRR 2T »
A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties ERbEE—HEELH  HLHER
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to HREEGEZFTOFTBILHAEETHZ
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the BEFEHRAEN - HEZFHIEERR
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, BT H —ALTHERT B 2SR
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities EBUEMABES N EESARZ BTG
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. ZEA—HBREAERERTFE -
The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint BMERAIREELEIEBEUREER
venture are incorporated in these consolidated financial BERAESSTEE LT AZEGEE
statements using the equity method of accounting. The BITEERE - MR SFEB MFE A 2B
financial statements of associates and joint ventures ERRIREEDEMIFRER THER A EAR
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using EEEEUBR T AU S REHAT
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like RAEHE B8R - BiEE
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under mk REBE R REEREZRET
the equity method, investment in an associate and joint BRI E RS AR R NER -
venture are initially recognised in the consolidated statement EEELAEUERANEB D(FBZ A
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to Al EE B REMBEKLE -
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other MERNEEREROBEATNE S EE
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. BERBERZBEARNEEDEE
When the Group’s share of losses of associates or joint m(EBEEE ERENAEEREE R
venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or ARG EPEREFE Ao 2EAE
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, Hitgs)  AIAEETERREENLE
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in —HEE c BINEEESEASECDE
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues EERTERETEE AR RZEE A F) %
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are BEDEERNREER TUER -
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of that associates or joint venture.
An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted REREFTK R —HBERRHEED
for using the equity method from the date on which the ¥E0  HHMERRNAELEIRKRE
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On FAREREAR - R —HBE QT
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint FEEREZIRER - REKAREBAR
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the EE MMZBIEEFIHNEENRERE
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets RNEPREZERBLTERREE X
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which FTARE CREE - NEEFT G ER
is included within the carrying amount of the investment. BEERBBEREFIHBZ AT FER
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of BREKAZEMZEZRE  gRKERER
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the AN R B R o
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRM

For the year ended 30 September 2016 B Z2016F9830H ILFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Interest in associates and joint venture (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate or a
joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate or
a joint venture, or when the investment (or a portion thereof)
is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate or joint venture and the
retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance
with HKAS 39. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate or joint venture at the date the equity method
was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would
be required if that associate or joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 3. EAE®HBE(£E)

Revenue recognition YON 4

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration WA Th A€ R AR 7% PR 4 2 B Sk E Uk

received or receivable arising from financial services and is REZAFEFEWIZ T EET AR

recognised on the following basis: 7

e Commission income for broking business of securities, e FHF HENHBREELLERZ
futures and option dealing is recorded as income when BEWARKITRSGEER A
the trades are executed. A e

e Insurance brokerage commission is recognised when o REKLLMALNIBHRGKSES
the services are rendered or on straight-line basis over NEREIRB BT AR -
the claw back period, as appropriate.

e Advisory, other corporate finance services fee income, e EM HMAPEMERBERAR
asset and wealth management fee income are BEMMIBEEEBWNARRERHRS
recognised when the services are rendered. AF F LARERR o

e Underwriting commission income, sub-underwriting o A ETIA - DBEBKA - BLE
income, placing commission income are recognised 185 Ug A T P A JE B3 8 B B 45 SR A
once the corresponding underlying exposure has TR o
ceased.

e Handling fee income is recognised when the relevant e FEEINRBUXRSHDELHIIE
transactions have been arranged or the relevant ARG IER MR ABUA -
services have been rendered.

e Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a e IHMBEZMEBUWAREFREELE
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and WERERREEZAENEACE
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate BR X (B EETERHFRRN
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts ZEEtBRRBERABKRIEREY
through the expected life of the financial asset to that THAZBEERDFE S
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition. R)FTE -

e Dividend income from investments is recognised when o KWEZERBWARRKRRWEFIEZ
the Shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been FEFHE E T FLARERR -
established.

Property and equipment MERRE

Property and equipment are stated in the consolidated MENEBIEKABER B2 RFTHE

statement of financial position at cost less subsequent N Z:HREER (NG ) NMEa B ERR

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment RAALE °

losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items YR R E TV A B SR IRGET A fE

of property and equipment less their residual values over FA 6 BRI 3E B I8 B AN EDRCEL (A AT I 84

their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. BEE - AEtAEAFE - FREE

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation RITEFERNESRERRETERN M

method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, AT EE 2 L EIRAIEEEALR -

with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a

prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRM

For the year ended 30 September 2016 B Z2016F9830H ILFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Property and equipment (Continued)

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 3. EAE®HBE(£E)
Foreign currencies (Continued) Shk(E)
For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial REINAGZEMEHRE - REB 2B
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign EREERBENENERESRRK
operations are translated into the presentation currency of ZIEXRBEAREE 23 GE (RIS
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates o) MESZWARTHTEZFEE
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and ZEFHEXRBRE  MEAZELERS
expenses items are translated at the average exchange (wE) R EME2E RS NER - TR
rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are HEm(BRERE)RNRET -
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of translation reserve.
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions REXEELUROAZINAZRE
Share options granted to directors and employees RTFEZERESZHERE
For grants of share options that are conditional upon BEREBERREEREBIRG 2 B E
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of MmE @ FTWER RIS Th 2 E A i T B AR
services received is determined by reference to the fair value REEAHZAFEER - WIREBH
of share options granted at the date of grant and is expensed NEEXE - Mign (BRERE)AE
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a JEIE NN ©
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).
At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its RBEBR - NEBBTEHERRZR
estimates of the number of options that are expected to SEZERESE 2het - B REW
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original BB ) RBETER - tm<
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that 2T X RIS - S E iR
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a FREELMEFZE -
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.
For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, MARH B EBZ EREmMS -
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed TR BB 2 A EAB RN EREP X
immediately to profit or loss. i o
When share options are exercised, the amount previously REBREEITER - RENBRERE
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to NHERZFIBRERERDGE © WE
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the BARERN B A B SO Wk i Ewm B
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the BMDARTTEE - BIR e B AR 4 (18 N 7
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will R FIBAEREERBEN
be transferred to retained profits.
Retirement benefit costs BAKREFNEA
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are MEREBRABENGE Z N RN ER
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered EIREGEREFEZ R Z RIS
service entitling them to the contributions. RE—IHMAX -
Borrowing costs BERAE
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the FrIEBERAZEEA BT ERPE
period in which they are incurred. s
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRM

For the year ended 30 September 2016 B Z2016F9830H ILFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 3. EAE®HBE(£E)
Taxation (Continued) ﬁlﬁ(f‘%)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax BEERBEERABENREENEES
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the EXEFREENEARNERZRE TR
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate B MMREDERWEHARACE HIEK
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively EEFESEZME(REE)
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets BREMEBEEBEREEZGERBRAEE
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the FEHRREHREEEEEEERE
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the BREER 2 HBER -
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.
Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, $HH&LL%RIEEBAT%:3WEEW - MEH
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other 75/\/\ REMEEWZANHEE EME.E
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, mATERZIEE BRI - RIS
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other T - AEREEFRIE I D B \/\ﬁﬁi@
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Wi sk B NER -
Intangible assets BREE
Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful AR WEEEBEEREAFH2EFLE
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation EEIRBCAAHIRR Rt #iH R REHRE
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for EEINE -FRERERCEBFEES
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a REGFHE R FR AR E G A ESH R
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The o NEMEHRBFEFT A ERAFH
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed REIER % MiAstztmEes o2
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any EREEEEAR BUWETESE
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective PR I AT {55 A F B 2 S B B TO IR A AN R,
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are FHEZ R HREBEYERE(RTXE
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent BMERLREREEZREBE 25K
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy %) e
in respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets below).
Financial instruments SEMIA
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on EEEETEKRATASYNIEYHN—RE]
the consolidated statement of financial position when a group HFHE - ARFEEEATERREK L
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the BRTHEEERBE -
instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured ipﬂﬁ?&i BB BV R
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable NFEEITEE - H&ﬁﬁjﬁéﬁirﬂﬁF
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial FemaFE(EREREAFEIEZ
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at cRMEESCRHEBERIN BEEELZ
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted REGWATIR A EREMAEC R EE
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial LEEBABENA $ﬁi§ipﬂ§?ﬁi
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction @QE\EE’] ANEEAMBR(RTEEBR
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial E) o WESREBEREATEINEZ
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss ipﬂé?&i MEEEERLHZRIK
are recognised immediately in profit or loss. RTIBENRF B PHER ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRM

For the year ended 30 September 2016 B Z2016F9830H ILFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into two
categories, including loans and receivables and available-
for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including accounts receivable, loans and
advances, other debtors and deposits, amount due from
an associate, bank balances and cash and pledged bank
deposits) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 3. EAE®HBE(£E)

Financial instruments (Continued) EMIAE)

Financial assets (Continued) THEE(E)

AFS financial assets (Continued) AHRAEZ2HEE(E)

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market I AE BT IS WME R AT EEERSEH

price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be SrEAHEERGRE MEEEER

reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must BEREERERE R VAN A B ER

be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments BEZKEZFATULEE Z2TATA

are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at BB HE AR Z E A2 BB

the end of the reporting period. BEEIBETE -

Impairment of financial assets EHEEZHE

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment EREERREPRETHETRFT

at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are H e WEABRBEERARVITERS

considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence BMEERBTE - HAZEEHERS

that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the MEEZMBTARREREEXI®

initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future Z. AgBMEETURE -

cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include: REZ BEZE B -

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or o BITAXEHZERFHREE : 3
counterparty; or

e Dbreach of contract, such as default or delinquency in o EH - PR BEERERE K&
interest and principal payments; or RNEL 8

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter o ERABARBEAWENIKE
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation. W o

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount MIREHEA AT R EREEMS @ A7

of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between MR ZREBESEAZEEEZER

the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the BHEZBSREEZRERFEAIA

estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial ZIHFTRRREREZRER I EZRE -

asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by REKEREREREBRCEEEBENE

the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the BEFEABERTAMEN - TESRE

exception of accounts receivable and loans and advances, EZEREHEEERERERIE - BIER

where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an ZEREESSHRERFER o WMEKR

allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the BEREFRRBATNEFPREFERAE

allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When the SEWE - B LABSEER MY - SLRTMIEE 2

accounts receivable and loans and advances are considered SREHZEWKEEF AER °

uncollectible upon the bankruptcy of customers, it is written

off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of

amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

—J Emperor Capital Group Limited ~ HE2XF#EEERDF




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRM

For the year ended 30 September 2016 B Z2016F9830H ILFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For impairment assessment, each receivable is reviewed
individually at the end of each month. Specifically, in
assessing impairment for each receivable, management
estimates the present value of future cash flows which are
expected to be received, taking into account the borrower’s
financial situation and the net realisable value of the
underlying collateral or guarantees in favour of the Group.
Any impairment allowance is measured as the difference
between the loan’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the loan’s
original effective interest rate.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including accounts payable, other
creditors, short-term bank borrowings, loans payable and
bonds issued are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 3. EAE®HBE(£E)
Financial instruments (Continued) EMIAE)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued) THEERERTA(E)
Effective interest method BT E %
The effective interest method is a method of calculating ERAMELATERESRABE 2 #H
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating RAREEBBEEIENEERZH
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective % BREMEREeMBBECZTERFH
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated s (A ) B HR - BBEETARKRIE S
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or MR(BEE B W B BKERR X
received that form an integral part of the effective interest —HAoZzmEERMIY REKRAK
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) Hih RSBl Im:E) £ EY FHER
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where R BREDFE 2R o
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis. MEBRRERFEEET AR -
Derecognition R E R
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the EERBEEWDRREREZELENE
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or R EREEREEMASEE RS
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the —EREREHcMEENEEEREA B
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. KEBo @k N 0] #h b - 7N 52 BB 7E R
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the ZEBMEE - WASEWEER - IE
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the REBFIBEZBRE SRR MBI - W
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset BETHIZOEEEE  BIAEERE
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises BREAZEEE  WARBELHEZEE
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all B WIEREBAAE -  WAEERY
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial HOEZEEMEELMBERE BRI S
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset e R B - A AEBEBERZED
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the BEE - TR WEZ AIFRIERRE
proceeds received. HREE -
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the RMBRERSREER EERMTEH
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the B EKREREEEREMEEI
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the mERRRER R 2 BET B 2 B
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in A2 ZE TR IB P HER -
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only EREEAREENETERR - BUESK
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or EmE AEEMBKEZSHEE - M
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the hREZAZeREBEZREERD NN LE
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid NREBMzEZBIRBERPHER
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

—J Emperor Capital Group Limited ~ HE2XF#EEERDF




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRM

For the year ended 30 September 2016 B Z2016F9830H ILFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of accounts receivable and loans
and advances

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss,
the Group estimates the future cash flows of assets for
impairment testing purpose. The amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise in
future financial periods. As at 30 September 2016, the gross
carrying amount of accounts receivable is HK$4,688,699,000
(2015: HK$3,232,370,000), the gross carrying amount
of loans and advances is HK$1,625,373,000 (2015:
HK$1,454,826,000), impairment allowance on accounts
receivable of HK$22,000 (2015: HK$19,000) has been made
and was subsequently written off in the current year (2015:
HK$nil) and impairment allowance on loans and advances
of HK$30,971,000 in aggregate were provided as at 30
September 2016 (2015: HK$253,000).

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

5. Capital Risk Management 5. EXERERE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in AEFEERBEER  BRASECE
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern BB ESEHERE - [
while maximising the return to Shareholders through the R BB ERRERESREE TRR
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital ZEWEAR c REB ZEREERIE
structure of the Group consists of debts, which include BIH(BIEECHRITER ENER -
short-term bank borrowings, loans payable, bonds issued EETESF(BUOSHEMER) RAR
as disclosed in respective notes, and equity attributable to RAEE ARG ER (BIELRE BRI
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and R OREAEERERRESEMEAEZ
reserves as set out on the consolidated statement of financial EBEITRARGER)) - AEE 2 BEEEK
position, consolidated statement of changes in equity and BE5 _FFREEFITE -
respective notes. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from the prior year.
The management reviews the capital structure by EIRESIBEEEARKA N B R
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated I ET B - BER  KERSE
with the share capital. In view of this, the Group manages BRDRERRITER  IIKRERE
its overall capital structure through the drawdown and TN I8 L FR 2 E R BR1E o
repayment of bank borrowings, payment of dividends and
issue of share capital.
Several subsidiaries of the Group (the “Regulated AREBETHERAR(TZEEKBARQ
Subsidiaries”) are registered with Securities and Futures AREREEECEBmMAZFRAE
Commission (“SFC”) for the business they operate in. ERERLTES([FEg)EE - T
The Regulated Subsidiaries are subject to liquid capital HEMB AR BEBTHEE DTN E
requirements under Securities and Futures (Financial FREE(MBER)HRA(TSF(FR)R])
Resources) Rules (“SF(FR)R") adopted by the SFC. Under ZREERIETE - BIESF(FRIR ° 4]
the SF(FR)R, the Regulated Subsidiaries must maintain ENBARBEREREZ THESHBB
their liquid capital in excess of HK$3 million or 5% of their 3,000,000/8 Lk K F 2 LK ABEE
total adjusted liabilities, whichever is higher. The required Z5% (LB &EEBE) - FTRTE B RHE
information is filed with SFC on a monthly basis. ARFEESER -
Another subsidiary of the Group is a member of the AEEZzZ—HENBRARABREREBL
Professional Insurance Brokers Association Limited and wmezKE  WERARBEANERS
is required to maintain a minimum net asset value of K& EFE 100,000 7T °
HK$100,000 at all times.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B ERRM

For the year ended 30 September 2016 B Z2016F9830H ILFE

6. Financial Instruments 6.

Categories of financial instruments

ERMITA
SRMITAZES

2016
HKS$'000

2015
HKS'000

FET FET

6,579,680

Financial assets TREE

Loans and receivables (including bank &7 & fE U BR =X
balances and cash) (BREBITEBKRS)

Financial liabilities tHAE

Amortised cost BRI

2,781,373

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investment, other debtors and deposits, accounts
receivable, loans and advances, amount due from an
associate, bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits,
accounts payable, short term bank borrowings, loans
payable, bonds issued and other creditors. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements
in foreign exchange rates relating to receivable from and
payable to foreign brokers and foreign currency deposits
with banks. The management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
exchange exposure should the need arises.

} ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

CHEAREREBEREE
AEBTIZSMIABREIHEER
B HRURA MR - IR
ER LB B R E QA 2K
B RTESHERE  DEWRTE
R BRI EHRITEN  BNE
R EBTEFREMENERR - %F
TRTAZHBRENS B ZMGE - &
ZSE R T AR R B LA %
SRk ZBERHENMOT - BEEREERR
ERZERRE - ARFRERAF TN
REUEE 51 -

B
B RS E R R RN T IRIMELRL
ZERARINERITER AR 2 IMNEE R
IHMEB IR EBERR - BEEEER
SMER R - 00 BB B R & RS
PE L

2015/2016 F R




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

6.

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

It is the Group’s policy for each operating entity to operate in
local currencies as far as possible to minimise currency risks.
Most of the Group’s principal businesses are conducted
and recorded in Hong Kong dollar, the functional currency
of respective group entities, except for certain receivables
from and payable to foreign brokers and bank deposits
which are denominated in United States dollar, Renminbi,
Japanese Yen and Singapore dollar (see notes 23, 24 and
26 for details). The executive directors of the Company
considered that the effect of currency risk is insignificant as
the Group has minimal exposure in Renminbi, Japanese Yen
and Singapore dollar and there is the linked exchange rate
system of Hong Kong dollar against United States dollar.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis in relation to foreign
currency exposure has been carried out by the management.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate accounts receivable, bank balances, loans
and advances, bank borrowings and accounts payable.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly relating to
the fluctuation of best lending rate arising from the Group’s
accounts receivable and loans and advances and market
savings interest rate arising from the Group’s bank balances
and accounts payable. The Group’s exposure to interest
rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed
below.

Financial instruments bearing variable interest rates in nature:

6.

$RMTAE)
SRHEREERERREE)

EMsmEp (&)
AEERSELEERBRNZBER AR
AIREA B H BB A2 DA HNES [&L B %
ME o REBZ KZHEBEBIUBT
(REEEERZEEE)EITRE
B HEETRBREMEINMELE Z2ET
BRALBITERUNET - AR - H
K ET N TR E R AN (G R KT sE23
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UARE - HERFME TETZRS
BAOURBTTHETTHNB 2 ERGE
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T o

FIEEES
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I P EYE LT

AEBZASRENERAREIBZEHAL
SEZBREERERERRBRAEEZ
REBE RN R M ARE B IRTTHERSE
NERAELEZTIHHEEN K - K
SHEHmECEREELRSRAB 2
KRBT

ERFBNERMEEZEMTA

2016
HKS$'000

2015
HKS'000

FBT FET

Assets 'E
Accounts receivable FEURBR X 2,923,405
Loans and advances BER R8BI 58,260
Bank balances RITAEER 336,151
Liabilities &f&
Accounts payable FETBR IR 1,203,684
Short-term bank borrowings 52 ERERITIE X 480,000
—J Emperor Capital Group Limited ~ HE2XF#EEERDF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B ERRM

For the year ended 30 September 2016 B Z2016F9830H ILFE

6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting
period and it is assumed that the amount of the above
assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period was in
existence for the whole year and all other variables were held
constant throughout the respective year. A 50 basis point
(2015: 50 basis point) change represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates in respect of variable rate accounts receivable, loans
and advances, bank balances, accounts payable and short
term bank borrowings.

+50
HKS$'000
FET

Increase (decrease) in RF EBRFE 4
profit after tax for the O A)

year

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the market interest rate risk as the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at
30 September 2016 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has a delegated team to compile the credit and
risk management policies, to approve credit limits and to
determine any debt recovery action on those delinquent
receivables. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the executive directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

2016
Change in basis points
EE®H

} ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

6. EMITHE(E)

CREAREEEERBEKE)
T mf2 (E)

T ZHBREDMIIRBRRENR 2
MEREBRTFTAEE > URINXHEH
EKJ:LﬁF&EJ é%ﬁﬁzi ET—E

B o 50“%%&(2015& 5o{lﬂ25)“§b
EERERFIBME2ERIKER BEX
&a’%y\ IRITH R - BERE &Lﬁﬁfﬁ
ITIEFE P RSB AL B E) 2 F1(E -

2015
Change in basis points
BEHEH
-50 +50 -50
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET

6,823 (6,823)

BEERS  ARNFERAEY 2ERT
REREFANFEE 2B - RS ER
b 2 MRE DT P RRRIE -

=B EE

5 ¥ 7 REEEITIRE 2 BA1E - 12016
FOAHAEERSBEHRTRE

EPTH R < RAEERR SR BB
MK ZEFEEZRAE - /KE

B AR E/J ﬂ: AEBEEERA X%
KM BERBEEREREER

= LHtt/ﬂZfBE%E&FZ*“TEQQ?%K
FE MR R EE (A AR 1T 8D o esh - R
BN IR S HIRm A &R UK RR 2

A Bl SRR - ARECR B EE U B IR E
HRAREBEER - st s - A2
ARTEERRASEZEERREX

R BRI o

2015/2016 F R




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. EWMIE(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies cREAREERERBEK(E)
(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EERERE(E)
The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical REFZWEHEI S v EREERBIE
locations is mainly in Hong Kong. The Group has no TR o REBW NI E—EIER
significant concentration of credit risk by any single debtor REEAETEERR  IYERER
as the exposure is spread over a number of individual and DHEZREEARBERS @ HEHF22
institutional customers, except for the loans and advances K 23#: 5 2 B 5k I B 5% I FE WBR 5K B
and accounts receivable as disclosed in notes 22 and 23. A o
Details of analysis of the credit risk exposure of loans and BEREBANEWREZTEE ZZER
advances and accounts receivable are disclosed in notes 22 B TR IE R 22 R 23 B BR o
and 23.
Bank balances are placed in various authorised institutions IRITHEB DTN T RERERE - M
and the executive directors of the Company consider the RAARMITEERAZSEIAZEER
credit risk for such instruments is minimal. N
Liquidity risk TEE AR
Internally generated cash flow and bank borrowings are the NHMEER SR E RRITERBBAR
sources of funds to finance the operations of the Group. SERKEMEZ2ELKRR - AEE 2
The majority of the Group’s banking facilities are subject AREHRITAERZHNELREF T A
to floating rate and are renewable annually. The Group’s BE - AEEZRBESRRBRERBIE
liquidity risk management includes making available standby BERSAZERRITREREESK
banking facilities and diversifying the funding sources. BREFIL - AEBTEHRNEEERMN
The Group regularly reviews the major funding positions to S ATER AT S R BB R - LARE
ensure adequate financial resources are available to meet MREEBZHMBEE -
their respective financial obligations.
As at 30 September 2016, the Group has available unutilised 20165 9H30R - AEE BRI BAM
banking facilities of approximately HK$1,655 million (30 i AR fE 2 $R 778 & 491,655,000,000
September 2015: HK$1,250 million). BT (201549 A30H © 1,250,000,000
HBIL) o
The amounts disclosed in the table below are the contractual TERBEZ2BAANARGERERER
undiscounted cash flows. The table includes both interest B REBRENERFERERE °
and principal cash flows.
—J Emperor Capital Group Limited ~ HE2XF#EEERDF




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B ERRM

For the year ended 30 September 2016 B{Z2016F9H30H ILFE

6. Financial Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity table

30 September 2016

Accounts payable

Other creditors and accrued
charges

Short-term bank borrowings
(note)

Bonds issued

Repayable
on demand
or less than

3 months

ARERDY

=EAREER

HK$'000

TAT

2016F9A30H
FERTBR

H it TR R
[T ER

RARITER (M)

BEETESR

SRMITAE)
SREAREERERRE (&)

REBETEE (E

Over
3 months

Over
1 year

to to
1 year

5 years
—ELE
2EF
HK$’000
TET

=EANUE
E-F
HK$’000
FERT

Total

st
HK$’000
TR

Repayable Over
on demand 3 months
or less than to
3 months 1 year Total
BRERD =EANRL
=EAREE 2—F HEt
HKS$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TET TET
30 September 2015 20159 A30H
Accounts payable FETBR IR 1,667,105 - - 1,667,105
Other creditors and accrued — EftERBEZR KL

charges fEETEHR 92,264 - - 92,264
Short-term bank borrowings G EIRITE (A1)

(note) 480,805 - - 480,805
Loans payable R &K 10,000 - - 10,000
Bonds issued BETES 33,334 - 639,401 672,735

2,283,508 - 639,401 2,922,909

} ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity table (Continued)

Note:Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the ‘repayable on demand or less than 3 months’ time band in
the maturity analysis. As at 30 September 2016, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amounts of these bank borrowings amounted
to HK$550,000,000 (30 September 2015: HK$480,000,000). Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the directors do not believe that
it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment. The directors believe that such bank
borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows will amount to HK$550,241,000
(30 September 2015: HK$480,805,000).

Fair value

Except as detailed in the following table, the executive
directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values:

$WMTAE)
SRHEREERERREE)

B EL R (E)

REELHK(E)

MteF - BAERREREEBRRZRITERIFTA
BEAM 2 [BIRERE = MANEE &
F#ER - BR20164F9 A30H @ % FiR1THE
K2 A RH IR 7N 4 42 %8 A 550,000,000 7% 7T
(20154F9 A30H : 480,000,000 7T ) &
ERASEZMBKR EERBRITT
RATBEATERIBRE BRI BNMEE - E5 /8
FERERTERESREERBEATEAD
FHEERAHEERE BN AERFEZ
IR & 7 485 550,241,000 70 (2015
#9H30H : 480,805,000/ 7T) °

AT
BRTRFLESN - ARTNTEER
BN A BT H R P M AR AR 8
SHAERSRARZBEAERLIAY
AR

Carrying
amount Fair value

SRMEE NVEE

HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TERT

As at 30 September 2016 201659 HA30H
Bond issued EEITES
As at 30 September 2015 1K20154F9 H30H
Bond issued BEITES

605,865 602,897

These liabilities are classified under Level 2 in the fair value
hierarchy.

HEBBERATFEBANEERERSE -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 B Z2016F9830H ILFE

6.

Financial Instruments (Continued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting

The disclosures set out in the tables below include
financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement that covers similar financial instruments that are
either:

e offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position; or

e not offset in the consolidated statement of financial
position as the offsetting criteria are not met.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement made
between the Group and Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited (*"HKSCC”) and brokers, the Group has
a legally enforceable right to set off the money obligations
receivable and payable with HKSCC and brokers on the
same settlement date and the Group intends to settle on a net
basis.

In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable right to set
off the accounts receivable and payable with brokerage
clients that are due to be settled on the same date and the
Group intends to settle these balances on a net basis.

Except for balances which are due to be settled on the
same date which are being offset, amounts due from/to
HKSCC, brokers and brokerage clients that are not to be
settled on the same date, financial collateral including cash
and securities received by the Group, deposit placed with
HKSCC and brokers do not meet the criteria for offsetting
in the consolidated statement of financial position since the
right of set-off of the recognised amounts is only enforceable
following an event of default.

6.

} ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

SRMTAE)
SREER SRS EIEY

TEAR HEAES TRHNTAT
B g ARG RR Y S RE
ERSRERE  BE:

s RAKBHZAMBINNEKANEKE
BHemIA: 3k

o RAEANTMAEBEEE  WENGEAY
BRREREHZ USRI A -

REASBEEESTREZARAA
(BRHEE ] ML ABER Z 8%
MEE R ARBEESSIAR BFIH
1THER  NEMRGEAEREGEE
R NEHRE R ENEEEE - MA
SEABFREALLHE -

AN - REBEER SR T BRI HITE
Mo AEZREBEFPEFENER B
AT AGE 2 R R MR - TAS
BERRFRELLEENTHER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. EMIA(E)
Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting tHEERSHEEESEE)
(Continued)
As at 30 September 2016 72016598 30H

Gross Net
amounts of amounts of
recognised financial
ilalelpleje] assets
assefs set  presented
Gross off in the in the Related amounts not
amounts of  statement  statement  set off in the statement

recognised  of financial  of financial of financial position

financial position position WA BT AROR &

assefs REIEMAR REBMRRE RIS 2 HEFE
B2 W2 REHZ Financial  Collateral Net
¢REEy ORISR 4$REEZ instuments  received amount
B BEZAE bt $RIAE ElERR Pt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET THET THET THET TET

Financial assets SREE

Amount due from clearing  EIREEFT - &
house, brokers and RARERE
brokerage clients BEPZHE

Deposit placed with FHREERmZ
clearing house e

Gross
amounts of Net
recognised amounts of
ilalelaleife] financial
liabilities set liabilities
Gross offinthe  presented Related amounts not
amounts of  statement inthe  set off in the statement
recognised of financial  statement of financial position
financial position  of financial WA B AR T
liobilities REHEMR K position R85 2 B TE
ERR AEEZ REFRREX  Financial  Collateral Net
tHEEr CHALE REIzE® inshuments  received amount
B BECHE BEZFE $RIE CHERR it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TR THET THET THER

Financial liabilities SRERE

Amount due to clearing [EREER - &
house, brokers and RAREIEE
brokerage clients BEPZIE

—J Emperor Capital Group Limited ~ HE2XF#EEERDF




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRM

For the year ended 30 September 2016 B Z2016F9830H ILFE

6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. EMIA(E)
Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting tHEERSHEEESEE)
(Continued)
As at 30 September 2015 1K201549A30H

Gross Net

amounts of  amounts of

recognised ilglelalelfe]

ilalelpleje] assets

assefs set  presented
Gross off in the in the Related amounts nof
amounts of  statement  statement  set off in the statement

recognised  of financial  of financial of financial position

financial position position WA EIFEAOR &

assefs REIEMAR REBMRRE R 2 HERE
B k= REHZ Financial ~ Collateral Net
¢REEy CEILR 4SREEZ instuments  received amount
B BEZAE bt $RIE CElERm e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TET THET TET TET TET TET

Financial assets EREE
Amount due from clearing  EREEFT - &

house, brokers and ENIECE

brokerage clients BRPZFE 3,315,028 (284,860) 3,030,168 (50,627)  (2,842,490) 137,051
Deposit placed with FHREEMmZ

clearing house e 26,147 - 26,147 - - 26,147

Gross
amounts of Net
recognised amounts of
ilalelaleife] ilalelaleife]
liabilities set liabilities
Gross offinthe  presented Related amounts not
amounts of  statement inthe  set off in the statement
recognised  of financial  statement of financial position
financial position  of financial WA B AR T
liobilities R R K position WL SE 2 R
BER AiEsEe REERREK  Financial  Collateral Net
tHMEE CRIASH ARJzem instruments  received amount
ZBE BEHE BEZFE ¢MIE ElEAER Pt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEx TR THER TR TER

Financial liabilities SRAE
Amount due to clearing EREEHERT - 48
house, brokers and RARERE
brokerage clients BEEZIE 1,645,283 (284,860) 1,360,423  (1,284,327) - 76,096

} ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016  2015/2016 3k




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

7. Segment Information

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision makers, for
the purposes of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on types of services provided.

According to HKFRS 8, the Group has the following
reportable and operating segments:

(a) Financing - Provision of margin financing and
money lending services

(b) Brokerage - Provision of securities, options,
futures, insurance, other assets
and wealth management products
broking services and related
handling services

(c) Placing and - Provision of placing and
underwriting underwriting services

(d) Corporate - Provision of corporate finance
finance advisory services

a
i
5
bl

—J Emperor Capital Group Limited ~ HE2XF#5%H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRM

For the year ended 30 September 2016 H/Z2016F9H30H ILFE

7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. DEER(E
Segment revenue and results DEBAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and NTARAAEBFELEEB 2 WA RE
results from continuing operations by reportable and BT 2N EESE 2 DT

operating segment:

For the year ended 30 September 2016 BI220165F9H30HLLFE

Placingand  Corporate
Financing  Brokerage underwriting finance  Elimination Total
&5 gL REREE - LXEE Hil 35

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TET TR TER TR

REVENUE

Segment revenue - AEBA -

external customers nEpEP

Inter-segment sales NEEEE
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. DEREE NIRRT HERKE -

Placingand  Corporate

Financing  Brokerage underwriting finance
&% L HEZEH bxmE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR

RESULTS ES

Segment results PEE

Unallocated other operating AOREMEE N
income

Unallocated corporate expenses ~ APEMEER

- staff costs (including directors’”  — B THAK
remuneration) (RREESEHS)
- management fee to a related - BY-HEERFZ
company BRE
(note 34(a)(ii)) (H5£34(a)(ii))
- service charge to related - RTBERAL
companies R 2
(note 34(a)(ii)) (Hi£34(a)(ii)
- others - Efth
Share of loss of a joint venture EE-RaetEBE
Share of loss of an associate i3 (el il 2w |
Profit before taxation BRT% A4 A

} ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016  2015/2016 F 3R




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. PHWER(E)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DEBMARESE(E)
For the year ended 30 September 2015 HZE2015F9H30H IEFE

Placingand  Corporate
Financing  Brokerage underwriting finance  Elimination Total
% gL HERES bxmg s as
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
REVENUE WA
Segment revenue - DEBA -
external customers MBEP 465,762 151,499 180,006 37,810 - 835,077
Inter-segment sales NHEEE 65,268 - 13,500 - (78,768) -
531,030 151,499 193,506 37,810 (78,768) 835,077

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

D EBRAI A & THIRBITH IS ERKE -

Placingand  Corporate
Financing  Brokerage underwriting finance Total
% £ EEHEEHE txmE @t
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tax TEx TaxT TEx TER
RESULTS £
Segment results DEEE 403,639 44,828 114,838 28,344 591,649
Unallocated other operating APEAMEE R
income 4,683
Unallocated corporate expenses ~ ADEEER
- staff costs (including directors’”  — B TR
remuneration) (REEEM2) (63,052)
- management fee to a related - BT —RBERRL
company BEE
(note 34(a)(ii)) (Hiz34(a)(ii) (314)
- service charge to related - RTBERAL
companies R E
(note 34(a)(ii)) (B1£34(a)(ii) (11,578)
- others - Efth (13,488)
Share of loss of a joint venture EE—-FHaEtEEHE (22)
Share of profit of an associate 3Rl il AN 1,756
Profit before taxation B 1 A 519,634

—J Emperor Capital Group Limited ~ HE2XF#EEERDF




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B ERRM

For the year ended 30 September 2016 B{Z2016F9H30H ILFE

7. Segment Information (Continued)
Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3. Segment profit represents the profit earned by each
segment without allocation of central administrative staff
costs (including directors’ remuneration but excluding staff
commission expenses), unallocated other operating income,
management fee to related companies, service charge to
related companies, central administration costs, share of loss
of a joint venture and share of loss or profit of an associate.
This is the measure reported to the executive directors of
the Company for the purpose of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

Other segment information
For the year ended 30 September 2016

Financing
L6

HK$"000
TR

Additions of property and REMFERZE
equipment

Depreciation of property and mERBEINE
equipment

Impairment on accounts FEMER SN 2 R
receivable

Net impairment for loans and BRRBHZRETE

advances

For the year ended 30 September 2015

7. DEER(E

DEBAREE(E)

A 20 a0z &t BRI T3 2
AEESHABRAR - DB EE D
ERPTIRER 2 ) - MARDE R RITHE
ITRA(BEREFZHE  EETHS
XHERIN)  ROBEMBEEWA - 8
TREARZERE HKTHEQRZ
RIFEE - PRITHRER - BIHE—HEE
CERZEBNMEMN-HBEQRZEE
FE A o ERRAARFRRITEEZHRIA
RO BCER N FHERR 26 °

BZE2016F9HA30R LFE

Placing and

Brokerage underwriting
L HEREH
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TR

Corporate
finance Total
tEpE 3
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET

B2 2015F9H30R ILFE

Placingand  Corporate
Financing  Brokerage underwriting finance Total
&% fR HEEEH txmE H)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TER THT TER TER TEL
Additions of property and REMERZ
equipment 154 1,474 - - 1,628
Depreciation of property and MERZEINE
equipment 6 2,118 - 20 2,144
Impairment on accounts TR 2R E
receivable - 19 - - 19
Net impairment for loans and BEXRBRZREFE
advances 550 - - - 550

} ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016  2015/2016 3k




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

7.

Geographical information

Segment Information (Continued)

The following illustrates the geographical analysis of the
Group’s revenue from its external customers, based on
the country from which the trades are derived in relation to
brokerage revenue and based on the country in which the
customers are located in relation to financing, placing and
underwriting and corporate finance revenue.

Hong Kong
United States
Others

e
Hits

7.

DEER(E)

i & R
WTHBAAEEREHINTIRE ZWA
2B BELWATE © HER
THHBRM MM ER EESEBHEL
TERBERANS » NERBTFPAEZ
BR o

Revenue

WA
2016

2015
HK$'000
FTET

HK$"000
TR

835,077

All non-current assets held by the Group are located in Hong

Kong.

Information about major customer

For the year ended 30 September 2016, the aggregated
revenue from three customers of the Group’s financing
segment, who are under common control, represents
approximately HK$127.2 million or 12.9% of the Group’s
revenue. For the year ended 30 September 2015, there was
no single customer who contributed 10% or more of the

Group’s revenue.

—} Emperor Capital Group Limited

ARBF A2 A REEESTR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRM

For the year ended 30 September 2016 H/Z2016F9H30H ILFE

8. Revenue 8. WA

2016 2015
HKS$'000 HKS$'000

FTET FET

Commission and fees income on BERSZHEREBRKA

dealing in securities 115,437
Commission and fees income on BEEMERBEEN
dealing in futures and options e kE&RAWA
contracts 24 605
Commission from insurance brokerage RB&L LT EERE 2 H4
and wealth management 4,760
Corporate finance advisory services R EREREREERA
fee income 37,810
Placing and underwriting commission  B& K8 #EHE 180,006
Interest income from: IATIER ZFBHWA -
Margin and initial public offer FEEEXARABREE
financing 265,440
Loans and advances BERRER 200,322
Bank deposits RITFRK 6,689
Others Hh 8
835,077
9. Staff Costs 9. BEIMAK

2016 2015

HKS$ 000 HK$000

FBT FBT

Staff costs represent the amounts paid B THRAEENRENTFESE K

and payable to the directors and BEZ®FE B
employees and comprise:

Salaries, bonus, allowances and e B4 BB NS
commission

Contributions to retirement benefits RIREF B3R
scheme

} ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016  2015/2016 F 3R




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

10.Finance Costs 10.8/ % & M

2016 2015
HKS$'000 HKS'000

FTET FET

Interest on: THEB ZHE
Bank overdrafts and loans RITBEIZRER
Amount due to a related company JEf—MRE R RIRIA
Loans payable ERTE R
Bonds issued BEEITES
11.Directors’ and Chief Executive’s NEERESTHRAEZHME
Emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 7 (2015: 8) BN F7AI(2015%F : 8ML)EE K
directors and the chief executive were as follows: SEfTHRABZME T ¢
For the year ended 30 September 2016 B Z2016F9A30HLFE

Executive directors Independent non-execufive directors
Yz Buungs
Choi

Daisy Chan Suk Hing, Pearl Chu Poon Wan
Yeung  Shek Woh Louisa Chan Kor Wing Yon Woi Choi Ha Total
R RiE Eyl R REX RCR BYE 3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tn T T Tin Thn T Tn T

(Noree) 8)  (Nole(c) — (Note(c)  (Nofe(c))  (Nofe(d)  (Nofe(d))  (Note(q))

i)  (WEc)  WEc)  WEe)  WEQ)  WEe) (WE©)

Fees s
Other remuneration Efofhe

Salaries and allowances e REe

Discretionary bonus MR
(Note (2)) (i)
Contributions to retirement B {REI 2]
benefits scheme {2
Total remuneration Heis

—J Emperor Capital Group Limited ~ HE2XF#EEERDF




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRM

For the year ended 30 September 2016 B Z2016F9830H ILFE

11.Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 11.ESERESTHRAEZHME

Emoluments (Continued) (&
For the year ended 30 September 2015

HZE20159A30H It F/E

Executive directors Indlependent non-execufive directors
yEs BUHHGES
Choi Tse
Daisy Chan  SukHing, Pearl Chu Poon HinLin Wan
Yeung  Shek Wah Louisa Chan  KorWing Yan Wai Amold ChoiHa Tofal
B Rz -y R fE% BLE HBE Ve a3
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Tin Tin Tin T Tin TAn tin Thn Tin
o)) (o) o) (o) (o) (Note(d) (Mot (b)(d) (Note (b)(d)
Wide) @)  WEe)  kdEe)  Bde)  WE@)  WEQ) W)@ KEy©)
Fees e 150 150 150 150 200 200 163 B 1,201
Other remuneration Efie
Salaries and fehzd
allowances 1,866 4.0% 2,084 1799 - - - - 9,844
Discretionary bonus Bkl a)
(note 2) 1,900 2850 1,008 7% - - - - 6483
Contributions to RIVER
refirement benefit e
scheme 17 18 146 126 - - - - 307
Total remuneration xS 3,933 713 3,368 2,800 200 200 163 B 17,83
Notes: k3
(a) Discretionary bonus is determined with regard to the Group’s operating (a) BBIEATIMETAEERQLLESE - BAR

results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

BRMSHA A LBREFNE

(b) During the year ended 30 September 2015, Mr. Tse Hin Lin Arnold has (b) MEZE2015F9A30HILFE - FAFLAE
resigned from INED and Ms Wan Choi Ha has been appointed as INED ER2015F7 A24BBIEB I IERNITES R
on 24 July 2015. BREZTERZTREIFNTESE -

(c) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for (c) LEERAMINHNTEFHHEEZIZABFHELAR
their services in connection with the management of the affairs of the AIREMBAREEEEHEREAIRE -
Company and its subsidiaries. There was no arrangement under which RAREER  EFMERBEMNLHERER
a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. REREBEDRHE -

(d) The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above (d) EXRAIBIFBTESTNHESDEZAE

were mainly for their services as directors of the Company. There was
no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

Ms Daisy Yeung is also the Chief Executive of the Company and her
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by
her as Chief Executive.

} ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

12.Employees’ Remuneration

The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group included four (2015: four) directors of the Company
for the year ended 30 September 2016, details of whose
emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 11 above.
The emoluments of the remaining one (2015: one) individual
for the year were as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits

in kind
Bonus TE4T
Contributions to retirement benefits IR R B

scheme

e FMREWEN

12.EEM<E

AEBE v AEERTMHAL  RERE
2016 FQA30H I FEBIEARQFNHZ
(20155 : IR)ES - BEZMEFE
R EXHFE11HE - RAFE - Htg—
HF(2015%F : —B)ALTZMEST -

2016
HKS$'000

2015
HKS'000

FBT FET

The remunerations were within the following bands:

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000

2,000,001 7T £ 2,500,000/ 7T
2,500,001 7T % 3,000,000/ 7T

e F THIgEE -

Number of employees
EEAH

2016 2015

During the year, no remuneration has been paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors waived
any remuneration during the year.

—} Emperor Capital Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRM

For the year ended 30 September 2016 B{Z2016F9H30H ILFE

13.Profit Before Taxation 13.BRBE AR R

2016 2015
HKS$'000 HKS$'000

FTET FET

Profit before taxation has been bR A AT A 2 Bk ¢
arrived at after charging:

Included in other expenses: BERHEMZH :

Auditor’s remuneration ZE BT

Depreciation of property and MIEREBZTE
equipment

Net exchange loss b BB 55

Operating lease rentals in respect of THRIBEZEEHERS®
— rented premises —HEME
— office equipment —MREHRE

Other equipment hiring charges HmZEHEARX

Net impairment for loans and EREBFRBEFE
advances (note 22) (Htaz22)

Impairment on accounts receivable JEWBR TR 2 BB (A1 aF23)
(note 23)

14.Taxation 14. %18

2016 2015
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FiEx FiERT

REE -

Current year:

Hong Kong Profits Tax provision for FREEBISHEE
the year
PRC Enterprise Income Tax A 1 PSR
Overprovision in prior year: BEFEBEERERE

Hong Kong B
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the RREEE - FEEFER T ER
estimated assessable profits for both years. TR MIZ16.5% 2 FiRETE o
Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on BEFEARKMBESEMERE D
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation ¥MBRE]) REEMBRIEE K
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate for the PRC 7 - BB AT 2K A25% °

subsidiaries is 25%.

} ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016  2015/2016 3k




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

14.Taxation (Continued)

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

14.818 (&)
AEERBERESBEREMETKE
KRB B AR RIS T -

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

Profit before taxation

2016
HKS$'000

2015
HK$'000
FEx FERT

B 250 A 7

Taxation at income tax rate of 16.5%

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purpose

Overprovision in respect of prior years

Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Tax effect of share of loss (profit) of
an associate

Others

1#16.5% 2 TS KT8 2
|

BT & TAIHR S H 2
B2

AR = BARREAZ
MG E

BEFEBERE
BRANERBERZHIBREE

REBARABBRZREZE

s —HEEARERCEN) 2
DALEZ

Hit

Taxation charge for the year

AERRAMT

As at 30 September 2016, the Group had unused estimated
tax losses of HK$75,859,000 (2015: HK$57,310,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of such tax losses due
to unpredictability of future profit streams. The unused tax
losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

—} Emperor Capital Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRM

For the year ended 30 September 2016 B Z2016F9830H ILFE

15.Dividends 15. R 8

Recognised as distribution: HERIED IR -

Interim dividend paid: HK$0.012 per
share (2015: HK$0.007 per share)

HK$0.016 per share (2015: HK$0.02
per share in respect of 2014)

EATFEIRE - &%0.01278 T
(20154 : &M%0.007/E7T)
Final dividend paid in respect of 2015:  Ft2015F 2 2 KEIAL 8.
Fh%0.0168 (20154 : Bt
2014 F BRIR0.027 7T )

2016 2015
HKS$'000

HKS$'000
FiExT FiExT

The directors recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK1.28 cents per share amounting to HK$78,438,000
in aggregate in respect of the year ended 30 September
2016 (the “2016 Final Dividend”) (2015: final dividend paid
in respect of the year ended 30 September 2015 of HK1.60
cents per share amounted to HK$91,967,000 in aggregate),
which is subject to approval of the Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

In the event that 612,900,000 new shares are allotted
and issued by the Company pursuant to the subscription
agreement entered into by the Company on 1 December
2016 (the “Subscription Agreement”) prior to the record date
for the entitlement of the 2016 Final Dividend, the aggregate
amount of the 2016 Final Dividend will be approximately
HK$86,283,000. Details of the Subscription Agreement
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 1
December 2016.

16.Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

Earnings

Earnings for the purpose of basic and FRFTESRERNREERF

diluted earnings per share B

BERFRNEZ20165 9 A30H 1
FEZRBRBEFR/R1.28FW - &5
78,438,000/ 7T ([ 2016 F R HAAZ & |)
(20154 : BE £2015F 98301 IE4F
BEEMZAPREFRI6EW - &
91,967,000 7T) * MHAFRRENAR
RAIZEERFRAF RS ERESAE

=

i A2 B B AR EN 2016 F R HA % 2 Y
S8 HHIRIR IR AR AR 2016F 12 A1
BRI UMREwE((RERZDREER
2£17612,900,000 % #T A% 1D - BI20164F
REAI B4R EE 1% 40 586,283,000/ 7T °
RBHZOFBIHN ARG HEA2016
FI2A1HHRE o

16. 8IRERF

L UNGE LN AT ey Y
ToARIE TSR E

2016 2015
HKS$'000

HK$'000
FET FET

} ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

16.Earnings Per Share (Continued)

R EE

AR ESRERENZ
BB (M it(a))

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purposes of basic
earnings per share (note (a))

-
pig
&

Iy

BT B

a8

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
shares:

RRm)Z BB (F it (b))

Share options of the Company
(note (b))

16. BREF (&)

4,214,980

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of diluted
earnings per share (note (a))

TR (KTt (a))

ARG ESREERN 2 Rk

4,283,857

Notes:

(a) During the prior year, the Company raised approximately HK$651.2
million (net) by way of rights issue on the basis of one rights share
for every two existing shares held by Shareholders of the Company
at the price of HK$0.5 per share, which represented a discount to the
prevailing fair value of the existing shares on the date of issuance of
the rights share. The weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the purposes of basic and diluted earnings per share were adjusted for
the bonus element from the above-mentioned rights issue completed in

June 2015.

The computation of diluted earnings per share assumed the exercise of
the Company’s outstanding share options with the exercise price lower
than the average market price during the year ended 30 September
2015.

All the outstanding share options were lapsed during the current year
and they have no effect on the dilutive potential ordinary shares before
they were lapsed.

RE—FER ARAHEBHEFXNEED
651,200,000 7t (F58) » HERAKR QAR
R T MRE RO B —IRERERD
BRAER0.58IT  BE RO ERR D
BRI EBEAFEEAMITE -  BRETE
BREAREERF Z EERINETFHEE
FH2015% 6 A FEAk 2 £l AR AT 7389 1
A .

STEEREERNNERTERNA R M RT
FREREZITEEERNREZ2015F9A30H
IFFEFHME -

FIARTEBEEERRNEREALK - AR
RBEEEEHTETRARLETLE -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 B Z2016F9830H ILFE

17.Property and Equipment 17. MERRE

Computer
Leasehold Furniture Office  and other Motor
improvements  and fixtures  equipment  equipment vehicle Total

NERE  HARKE  BOERG SKRHMRE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEn TER TR TEn TER

CosT A
At 1 October 2014 12014410418 11,739 1,898 6,123 14,067 - 33,827
Additions MNE 606 30 42 217 673 1,628
At 30 September 2015 201559430 12,345 1,928 6,165 14,344 673 35,455
Additions AE 158 20 108 733 - 1,019
At 30 September 2016 2016594308 12,503 1,948 6,273 15,077 673 36,474
ACCUMULATED &5t
DEPRECIATION i
At 1 October 2014 120144104 1H 9,172 1,636 5,521 12,099 - 28,428
Provided for the year AEERE 1,062 91 278 600 123 2,144
At 30 September 2015 201559 /308 10,224 1,721 5,799 12,699 123 30,572
Provided for the year AEERE 992 89 326 212 433 2,052
At 30 September 2016 2016594308 11,216 1,816 6,125 12,911 556 32,624
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 30 September 2016 R201659A30R 1,287 132 148 2,166 17 3,850
At 30 September 2015 R201569A30A 2,121 201 366 1,645 550 4,883
All the above items of property and equipment are i bt v MR EmEB Y AE G E
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the rate of 20% per RO0% 7 FERFLAIE -
annum.
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

18.Intangible Assets 18.EFEEE
HK$’000
TExT
COST Jo#:
At 1 October 2014, 30 September 2015 and R2014%10H18 - 201599308 &
30 September 2016 201649 H30H 9,802
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT #E R BE
At 1 October 2014, 30 September 2015 and HR2014F 10818  2015F9HA30H &
30 September 2016 20169 H30H 9,802
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 30 September 2016 7K2016F9 H30H -
At 30 September 2015 K2015%F9 H30H -
Trading rights are amortised over 10 years from the effective T SEBE2000FHZT « HEEAX TR
day of the merger of the Stock Exchange, the HKFE and the ERAPREEER AR ZEHENHH
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited in year FEIZ10GE T LAEESY o
2000.
19.Interest in an Associate 19. A —EBE AT 2R

2016 2015
HKS$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Cost of investment in the unlisted
associate

Share of post-acquisition profit and JE A5 W 18 5 7 I b 2 T M e
other comprehensive income

Amount due from an associate JE Uk — i B & R R IR

—J Emperor Capital Group Limited ~ HE2XF#EEERDF
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 B Z2016F9830H ILFE

19.Interest in an Associate (Continued) 19. N — & AT 2R (E)
As at 30 September 2015 and 2016, the Group had interest in M2015F & 2016F9A30H * AEER
the following associate: TH|EE N T AR

Proportion of

Form of nominal value
business Place of Class of  of issued capital
Name of entity structure  incorporation  share held held by the Group  Principal activity
EJ o EEaitio A FERG AREMSECRT
EEAE i R Y RAEEZEA FTEEHR
2016 2015
Boom High Investment Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary 28% 28% Securities investment
Limited (“Boom High”) Islands shares
BRREERAR(IREK])  FMKZ RERUES gL BHERE
The summarised financial information in respect of the EBAEERKRESNT ZHBEERHEH
Group’s associate is set out below: R -

2016 2015
HKS’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Total assets BERE

Total liabilities BEERE

Net assets BEFE

Group’s share of net assets of the REBEEHEATEEFE
associate

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx FiERT

Revenue WA
(Loss) profit for the year FE(BE) &
Group'’s share of (loss) profit of the KREEREEEHEBHE QT
associate for the year (Es18) & F
The amount due from an associate is unsecured, non-interest FEW — R & AR FRIBAEIRF 28
bearing and has no fixed term of repayment. R 0 & E B SRR o
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20.Interest in a Joint Venture 20 A—EEeEhEES
Details of the Group’s investment in a joint venture are as AEERN—MBEENEZREZHBN
follows: T

2016 2015
HKS$'000 HKS'000

FBT FET

Cost of investment in a joint venture

Share of post-acquisition loss and S EEEE Rt E
other comprehensive expense 53

Proportion of

Form of nominal value
business Place of Class of  of issued capital
Name of entity structure  incorporation  share held held by the Group  Principal activity
ES T2 Eaiijzav FiRe AEEMSEERT
i ok B2 REAEEZHH  FEXK
2016 2015
Emperor Shiying Finance Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 55% 55% Money lending
Limited (“ESFL”") share
HEHRMBEERAR R AV e Rl %
([REHRE])
Note:As at 30 September 2016, the Group held 55 units of shares, Kt - R2016F9A30H  AEEIFASRED -
representing 55% interests in the joint venture. The shares provide the HENEEDE 7E5%ERS « ZERMZEAR
Group with the share of returns from the joint venture. EESERAELTE O -

—J Emperor Capital Group Limited ~ HE2XF#EEERDF
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 B Z2016F9830H ILFE

20.Interest in a Joint Venture (Continued) 20 A—REEELE R (E)
Pursuant to the contractual agreement, unanimous consent BEBEEHHE  SECEZMEEIEN
of the parties sharing control is required for all the key BREERAEEDZZGIE ST
financing and operating decisions in the joint venture. As of FE - R20165F9H30H - NEEFA
30 September 2016, the Group held 55% of the shares of the BEDERMZ55%  MEAM45% D
joint venture and the other 45% shares are held by a third HE=ZF#HE  DEEHIEZZHTH
party. The arrangement of sharing of control is contractually EHUEHFAET - Bt - AEER
agreed by both parties. As such, the interest of the Group in EREHACESESEARELE -
ESFL is classified as a joint venture.

The summarised financial information in respect of the BRAAEEEETEZUBEENBRES
Group’s joint venture is set out below. The joint venture is TN - B2 CERLEFSEEMBRE
accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated NERAEREAL °

financial statements.

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FExT

Net assets BEFE

Group’s share of net assets of the rEEERGEECEEESRE
joint venture

Loss for the year KFEEFHE

Group’s share of loss of the joint REEREAFESGEDFEEE

venture for the year

21.0ther Assets 21.EMEE

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$"000
FiER FiERT

Statutory and other deposits ETE M HAIEE

Statutory and other deposits represent deposits with various EENREMIZSIEFERTRIR ST RS
exchanges and clearing houses. They are non-interest HH2ES - ZE5%EeERE -
bearing.
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22.Loans and Advances 22.EF KRB

2016 2015

HKS$'000 HKS'000
FTET FET

Fixed-rate loans receivable FEU B E F R & 1,396,566
Variable-rate loans receivable JEWUE B E R 58,260

1,454,826
Less: Individually assessed R BRI A 2 R E R

impairment allowances (253)

1,454,573

Analysed as: DR
Current MBNER S 1,398,541
Non-current IETEE D 56,032

1,454,573




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 H/Z2016F9H30H ILFE

22.Loans and Advances (Continued) 22.ERRBR(E)
The carrying amount of the Group’s fixed-rate and variable- NEFE 7 EWETERER G ZHFNERER
rate loans receivable have remaining contractual maturity ZEHESHIHAZ50T -

dates as follows:

2016 2015
HKS$'000 HKS'000

FET FET

Fixed-rate loans receivable: FEREFEFMEEK
Within one year —FA 1,297,817
In more than one year but no more —FRERAFK
than five years 33,187
Over five years HF% 6,600
1,337,604
Past due but not impaired 238 HR B KRB 58,709
1,396,313
Variable-rate loans receivable: ERZEEER
Within one year —FA
In more than one year but no more —FREAFR
than five years
Over five years hFE
Past due but not impaired B8 BE R E
Note:As at 30 September 2016, included in the fixed-rate loans receivable st : 20169 H30H » ENEE M R E K K&
and variable-rate loans receivable were balances of HK$13,704,000 JEUOT BERE R 9 5IHE 13,704,000/ 7T
(2015: HK$58,709,000) and HK$nil (2015: HK$4,800,000), respectively (20154 : 58,709,000/ 7t) R ZE#& (2015
which had been past due but not impaired. Taking into account the F 1 4,800,000/ ) EAK EBEIBE ARG H
creditworthiness of the borrowers as well as the value of collateral, HRE BREEEFAZEEERERRZ
the executive directors of the Company believed that no allowance for BE  AAFHITESMHEER2016E9 830
impairment was necessary as at 30 September 2016 (2015: HK$nil). HEE/E LR ERE (2015 : THFT) ©
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

22. B RBR(E)

22.Loans and Advances (Continued)

The effective interest rates of the Group’s loans receivable
are as follows:

EBFIE
A T R B

Effective interest rates:

Fixed-rate loans
receivable

Variable-rate loans

receivable

As at 30 September 2016, 37 (2015: 8) secured loans
with the aggregate amount of HK$373,816,000 (2015:

AEBERKERZERFZMT

0.79% per month to
4.33% per month

HH0.79%%E4.33%

Prime rate per annum to
prime rate + 8% per
annum

BEREENEEHRE
M ZE+8%

MR2016 F9 A30H - 371 (20154
813 ) 4 %8 /373,816,000 7% 7t ( 2015

X
=
4

7

HK$350,620,000) were secured by first legal charges in % : 350,620,000 % 70 ) 2 I E K
respect of respective properties located in Hong Kong. The TIANBEESMEZE - EEMRLE
collateral for each individual loan is sufficient to cover the ER - SEBERHET @R T AE
loan amount on an individual basis. They were advanced REBEREE ZFEHRERD
to various independent borrowers and will be due for BNTEZREBIERA - TER1E
repayment within 1 to 25 years (2015: 1 to 26 years). The 25F (20154 : 1E264F ) A E| H(E
remaining balance of the loans receivable amounting E o FE U E 3K &8 %8 1,220,586,000 B
to HK$1,220,586,000 (2015: HK$1,103,953,000) were 7t (2015 © 1,103,953,000 /& 77:)75
unsecured and were provided to independent third parties BEERL LT AEE Y By E=
of the Group, of which the loan amount of HK$382,050,000 7 H 382, 050 OOO/%TE(2015$

(2015: HK$122,084,000) were with second or third legal
charges in respect of properties located in Hong Kong and
will be due for repayment within 1 to 25 years (2015: 1 to 26
years) from the respective loans’ date of advance.

As at 30 September 2016, each of the fixed-rate and
variable-rate secured loans receivable represented less
than 10% of the gross loans and advances balance. For
unsecured loans receivable, there were two (2015: two)
fixed-rate unsecured loans receivable, which each exceeded
10% of the gross loans and advances balance respectively,
with the aggregated amount of HK$331,633,000 (2015:
HK$546,000,000) and represented 20% (2015: 38%) of the

122,08 4000%73)2% KT A BB WY
%Z%fi%_éimﬁpﬂﬁj?ﬂ% I
BREBEZ zﬁﬂﬁaﬁ;ﬁtuﬂizsi
(20154 : 1E264F ) NE Ei(E}

MR2016F9 A30H - Rlﬁﬁguﬁzﬁ%mﬁﬂ
raﬂT&az—iﬁlﬁf%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ&@%ﬁ
ﬁ% 1 ZET R 10% © Bt E W E K 1R B 5K

= BME(2015F : ME) EIKH
lmﬂﬂ‘fﬁﬁ%lﬂﬁ%‘f%ﬂ&%ﬁk%ﬁ%@
BB 10% © 4% 58 /5331,633,000/%8
7t (20154 : 546,000,000/ 7T ) * 15
BERRBREREETE 2 20% (20154 -

gross loans and advances balance. Each of the remaining 38%) ° ﬁ?—l—xlﬁﬁﬁﬂ&ﬂﬁfﬁﬁli?ﬁl <
fixed-rate and variable-rate unsecured loans receivable REBMEEREERRBRERETE
represented less than 10% of the gross loans and advances TE10% °

balance.

As at 30 September 2015, included in the secured loans
receivable was one fixed-rate loan advance, which was
secured by first legal charge in respect of properties located

MR2015F9H30H @ BRERFERE
BT —HERAZUNEEMEZFE—
/fmﬁuaf’ﬁ%ﬁwﬁﬂz—lﬁlmﬂTE,TA@

in Hong Kong, was made to a group of borrowers which %186,320,0005%7_5 EER KRB
amounted to HK$186,320,000, representing 13% of the gross FRAEFE 2 13% - R TN B IEEWA BEHRE

loans and advances balance. Each of the remaining secured
fixed-rate and variable-rate loans receivable represented
less than 10% of the gross balance of loans and advances.

—J Emperor Capital Group Limited ~ HE2XHEEERD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRM

For the year ended 30 September 2016 B Z2016F9830H ILFE

22. ERRBR(E)

22.Loans and Advances (Continued)

Movement in the allowances for impairment are as follows:

REREEEEINT

2016 2015
HKS$'000

HK$'000
FET FET

Balance at the beginning of the year FUER
Amount write off during the year ANF EHMEH TR IE
Net provision for the year RNEEREFE
Balance at the end of the year FIREER

To minimise the Group’s exposure to credit risk, credit risk
control team is responsible for the evaluation of customers’
credit ratings, financial background and repayment abilities.
The Group has a policy for assessing the impairment on
loans and advances on an individual basis. The assessment
is based on a close monitoring and evaluation of the
collectability of individual account and on management’s
judgment, including the current creditworthiness of the
borrowers, collateral value and the past collection history of
each individual borrower. Taking into account the above, the
executive directors of the Company have made an allowance
for impairment of HK$30,971,000 (2015: HK$253,000) as
at 30 September 2016. The Group has commenced legal
proceedings during the current year against the borrowers
of these impaired loans for recovery of the loan amounts of
HK$30,971,000. As at the reporting date of the consolidated
financial statements, the legal proceedings are still in
progress.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s loans and advances
approximate their fair value.

} ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

AREFERK  AEEZEERRE
FIEEEFHEFPZEETR UKE
SREEEN - AEBRAIRERELE
TEERNRBITREZBUR - BTG
THERBEZER - HERIIR B 7]k =%
ZIHENREREZ B (RESEME
FIERAZEEREE HKEREAEK
BEENRGE) - LEBLMRE K
ANEHMITESEN2016F9 A30REH
30,971,000 7T (20154 : 253,000
TL)ZRBERE - RAFE @ AEEE
LU [E130,971,0008 ST E R & B M 4
ZEREERNERAREERFALRE
Fro REREIMARBRAE  E2R2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

23.Accounts Receivable

23. B BR X

2016
HK$'000

2015
HK$'000

FET FEx

Accounts receivable from the business HREFEHFE B X% 2 ERER ¢

of dealing in securities:

Clearing houses, brokers and cash EERT s RENEERP

clients 129,263

Secured margin loans BEFAFEER 2,911,251

IPO margin loans BRAAREBRITRE 8,151
Accounts receivable from the business KEHIEANEB XK

of dealing in futures contracts: FEW RS -

Clearing houses and brokers HEEPT RS

Accounts receivable from the business
of corporate finance

KB DRBE FH 2 BUERK

Less: Individually assessed
impairment allowance

R - B B FHE 2 B R

3,232,370

(19)

3,232,351

The settlement terms of accounts receivable, except for
secured margin loans, arising from the business of dealing
in securities are two days after trade date, and of accounts
receivable arising from the business of dealing in futures
contracts are one day after trade date.

As at 30 September 2016, the total market value of securities
pledged as collateral in respect of the secured loans to
margin clients were approximately HK$19,311,416,000
(2015: HK$21,699,858,000). 86% (2015: 97%) of the loans
were secured by sufficient collateral on an individual basis.
Management has assessed the market value of the pledged
securities of each individual customer who has margin
shortfall as at the year end, and impairment allowance of
HK$22,000 (2015: HK$19,000) has been made and was
subsequently written off in the current year (2015: HK$nil).
No further impairment allowance is considered necessary
for the remaining margin loans based on the Group’s
evaluation of their collectability. The loans to margin clients
bear variable interest at commercial rates and are repayable
on demand. No collateral was pledged for other accounts
receivable.

As at 30 September 2016, accounts receivable from foreign
brokers denominated in Japanese Yen, Singapore dollar and
United States dollar were approximately HK$66,000 (2015:
HK$nil), HK$6,000 (2015: HK$6,000) and HK$178,081,000
(2015: HK$142,266,000) respectively.

—J Emperor Capital Group Limited ~ HE2XHEEERD

&7 BB XM PTE L 2 R WORKER A K
RAREFNINZ GEEHRR AT FHIE
ME MPEANEEXEMELZE
WA EERMR R HHAK—H -

R2016%F9H30H @ IR TFTHESRF
ZEERBERMEARER T UERZ
EBEAEZMEEREAA19,311,416,000%
7t (20154 : 21,699,858,000/87T) « &
K 286% (20154 : 97% ) B ZERIE %)
EHREER  EEEEFEZSERR
B TREFMERESNEERZ™
B WERAFEELRERE22,000
BT (20154 19,0008 70) M E % F LA
88 (20154 : TE L) - AR AEEY
Err el iz 5 BE S ER e N FT
BRERELE—DRERE - E T
BREEZEFIRZEEMENEKITEIL A
REREEE - EAih KRR EIK A

0
om °

R2016F9 A30H @ B UIE IMNE 48 LA
BE - #FmnFEckETEZEKE
D B4 566,000/ T (20154 « &
%) ~ 6,000% 7t (20154 : 6,000
77T ) & 178,081,000 7T (2015 4F -
142,266,000/ 7T) °




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B ERRM

For the year ended 30 September 2016 H/Z2016F9H30H ILFE

23.Accounts Receivable (Continued)

23. EWARRK (&)

As at 30 September 2016, no individual account represented
more than 10% of the total balance of accounts receivable.

As at 30 September 2015, for accounts receivable due from
various customers, amounts due from the top two margin
customers represent 11% and 10% respectively of the total
balance of the accounts receivable. Apart from the above, no
other individual account represented more than 10% of the
total balance of accounts receivable.

No ageing analysis of secured margin loans and IPO margin
loans is disclosed as in the opinion of the executive directors
of the Company, the ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of this business.

The ageing analysis of the remaining of the accounts
receivable, which are past due but not impaired, are as
follows:

MR2016F9 A30H « BHEERIR B (G E
U BR SR AL A AR FAE B 10% ©

R2015F9H30RH » MEWTRAERF 2
EUWERME @ FUMBRARTRER
ZHRIED ML EWERAR A HRBE 2 11%
F10% © Br L& oh - B E b (E Bl BR
B bW AR AR BREEIB10% ©

ARG ITEERE  AEBKEEDH
& RO ZHMEBETK BT E
FEREERTRERRERXARBRAT
BRERZREDT

B8 HRE R E 2 8 T FEUBR 3 2 BR R
DT

2016 2015
HK$'000

HK$'000

FET FEx

Past due: 360 Ef -

0 — 30 days 0-30H

31 - 60 days 31 -60H

61 — 90 days 61 -90H

Over 90 days @90 H

Accounts receivable which were past 2 #H{ERFHEZ
due but not impaired JEE 5 AR R

Accounts receivable which were BEHTARES
neither past due nor impaired JE W AR 3R

2,317

310,651

312,968

Note:To minimise the Group’s exposure to credit risk, there is a credit risk
control team responsible for the evaluation of the customers’ credit
ratings, financial background and repayment abilities. Management
had set up the credit limits for each individual customer which are
subject to regular review by the management. Any extension of credit
beyond these approval limits has to be approved by relevant level of
management on an individual basis according to the exceeded amount.
The Group has a policy for reviewing impairment of accounts receivable
without sufficient collateral and those with default or delinquency
in interest or principal payment. The assessment is based on an
evaluation of the collectability and ageing analysis of the accounts and
on management’s judgment including the current creditworthiness,
collateral value and the past collection history of each customer.

In determining the recoverability of the accounts receivable, the Group
considers any change in the credit quality of the accounts receivable
from the date when credit was initially granted up to the reporting date.
The credit risk is limited due to the customer base being large and
unrelated.

} ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

23.Accounts Receivable (Continued) 23 . BUNBRRR (&)
Included in accounts receivable from the business of REBHEEET EWER B IEEIK
dealing in securities are amounts due from the directors and EENIE - WREBEERRERDIEK
disclosed pursuant to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, B BEFBOT

the details of which are as follows:

Maximum Market value

Balance amount  of pledged
at the Balance outstanding securities at
beginning  at the end during  the end of
of the year  of the year the year the year

RAFE REL

HAEE CEPES

FziEtk FRZEE ZBETEH ZH1E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TR TR

Directors of the Company ZAATES

Ms. Daisy Yeung BFLLT
(1.10.2015 to 30.9.2016) (2015%10A1HE
20169 A430H) - - 30 -
(1.10.2014 to 30.9.2015) (2014%10A18Z
201559 A30H) - - - -
Mr. Chan Shek Wah BRiZEE LA
(1.10.2015 t0 30.9.2016) (2015%10A1BZE
201659 A30H) - - - -
(1.10.2014 to 30.9.2015) (2014%10A18Z
201599 A30H) - - - -
Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa SRt
(1.10.2015 to 30.9.2016) (2015F10B1BZE
201659 A30H) - - - -
(1.10.2014 to 30.9.2015) (2014F10R18 2
20159 A30H) - - - -
Ms. Pearl Chan PR A7 2z =
(1.10.2015 t0 30.9.2016) (2015%10A18Z
201659 A30H) - - - -
(1.10.2014 to 30.9.2015) (2014%10R1RZE
201599 A30H) - - - -
The above balances were repayable on demand and bore Pl eABEIRESKEE - WIEFEMNER
interest at commercial rates. =HE o

a
i
5
bl

—J Emperor Capital Group Limited ~ HE2XF#5%H




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRM

For the year ended 30 September 2016 B Z2016F9830H ILFE

2. BRITHEBREAE

24.Bank Balances and Cash

Bank balances

— trust accounts (Note) — R (Kat)
- general accounts and cash ——REFPERE

2016 2015
HKS$'000

HKS$'000
FiExT FiExT

1,368,108
462,389

1,830,497

Note:The Group receives and holds money deposited by clients and other
institutions in the course of the conduct of the regulated activities.
These clients’ money are maintained in one or more trust bank accounts
and bear interest at commercial rates. The Group has recognised
the corresponding accounts payable to respective clients and other
institutions. However, the Group currently does not have an enforceable
right to offset those payables with the deposits placed.

As at 30 September 2016, bank balances and cash
denominated in Japanese Yen, United States dollar,
Renminbi and Singapore dollar, are approximately
HK$25,000 (2015: HK$8,000), HK$231,853,000 (2015:
HK$172,793,000), HK$23,365,000 (2015: HK$26,566,000)
and HK$2,520,000 (2015: HK$2,250,000) respectively.

The general accounts and cash comprise cash held by the
Group and bank deposits bearing interest at commercial
rates with original maturity of three months or less. The fair
values of these assets at the end of the reporting period
approximate their carrying amounts.

25.Pledged Bank Deposits - General Accounts

Other bank deposits HMIRITF

Bt EETEREEBBRED - AEERERE
BREPREMBBER A ZEEPK
BEEN AR ZEEFTRITES A RIRE
ENEER - ARBECHERARNTHEEER
REMEREZ BRBERK - R AEERE
WEAPTFRZ RS REZE RN 2B
HETTHE ©

N2016F9H30H - ARE » =7 -
ARBERFMETFATEZFBITEHB KL
B4 9 Bl 49 & 25,000 % 7T (2015 4F -
8,000/ 7t ) + 231,853,000/% T (2015
1 172,793,000/% 7t ) * 23,365,000
7 7T (20154 : 26,566,000 7T ) &
2,520,00078 7t (20154 : 2,250,000
JT) °

—REFPEREBEAKREREZHSE
MiEmEN XA R AERIMAR=MEA
AR ZIRITHER - RMEHRK - %F
BEZAFEOBSNERSE 2REE -

25. B EARITER - —KRERF

2016 2015
HK$'000

HK$'000
FET FERT

The deposits of HK$110,000,000 with a bank were to secure
the banking facilities granted to the Group to the extent of
HK$380,000,000, of which HK$260,000,000 was utilized as
at 30 September 2016 (2015: HK$nil). The pledged bank
deposits will be released upon the settlement of relevant
bank borrowings.

} ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

$R 17773 110,000,00058 ST C E A AN &
B 7 #% 58 77 &1 & 380,000,0007% 7T 2 K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

26.Accounts Payable 26. FEFER™

2016
HKS$'000

2015
HKS'000

FTET FET

Accounts payable from the business of K B#ESE & ¥ 2 fEfS
dealing in securities: ARX
Clearing house and broker HEE P R4 20,740
Margin and cash clients HFREREEP 1,339,683
Accounts payable from the business of HKEHEANESEK Y
dealing in futures contracts: JERTRRRR
Margin clients FREP

1,667,105

The settlement terms of accounts payable, except for margin
loans, arising from the business of dealing in securities are
two days after trade date and accounts payable arising from
the business of dealing in futures contracts are one day after
trade date. No ageing analysis is disclosed as in the opinion
of the executive directors of the Company, the ageing
analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature
of this business.

Accounts payable to margin and cash clients arising from
the business of dealing in securities bear variable interest at
commercial rates, and are repayable on demand subsequent
to settlement date.

Included in accounts payable, amounts of HK$1,207,856,000
and HK$1,368,108,000 as at 30 September 2016 and 2015
respectively were payable to clients and other institutions in
respect of the trust and segregated bank balances received
and held for clients and other institutions in the course of
conducting the regulated activities. However, the Group
currently does not have an enforceable right to offset these
accounts payables with the deposits placed.

As at 30 September 2016, accounts payable denominated
in Japanese Yen, United States dollars and Renminbi
were approximately HK$91,000 (2015: HK$8,000),
HK$330,961,000 (2015: HK$282,373,000) and
HK$16,396,000 (2015: HK$11,606,000) respectively.

—J Emperor Capital Group Limited ~ HE2XHEEERD

BEEEFEBMEL 2 BNKRE

X (R’
BERGIN) cHEHRRXHHAEM
B MEEHESORBMELE ZERN
ERHEHRAXHBEER—H - H
RARBRTESERR  FEBKILLH
1% RO ZMIMEBETK - W&
BB ARE DN -

AELEESEBEMELEZENTFTHRER
ﬁ%%ﬁz RIE IR F SR E A R At
C WINEE HIZBRESKEE -

METZREESBEP AT RHEM
&%%H&E’X)Sz%ﬁm%%%&;%jﬁ&ﬁ,%ﬁ%
= R2016F K 20159 A30H 2
J?EHHE @%E/AWE)E&%M%E%EZ
2 Z 385 R A1,207,856,0007% 7T &
1,368,108,000/%75 A AEBEIR
RN AT 2 L ML SR BR
K2R BIENTTHE o
R2016F9A30H ' LABE » ETLKA
RUEESHE Z A BRFD B4 591,000
7T (20154 : 8,000/ L) * 330,961,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRM

For the year ended 30 September 2016 B Z2016F9830H ILFE

27.Available-for-Sale Investment 27. A HERE

The Group holds 15% equity interest in Emperor Investment
Fund Limited (“EIFL”). EIFL had no business operations and
had net liabilities as at 30 September 2015 and 2016.

In the opinion of the executive directors of the Company, the
equity interests held by the Group in EIFL are with a primary
objective for capital appreciation and recognised as an
available-for-sale investment.

The executive directors of the Company consider the fair
value of the EILF as at 30 September 2015 and 2016 are
approximated to zero with reference to the net liabilities of
EILF.

28.Short-Term Bank Borrowings

As at 30 September 2016, included in the short-term bank
borrowings of HK$550,000,000 (2015: HK$480,000,000)
were bank borrowings of HK$330,000,000 (2015: HK$nil)
which were secured by bank deposits of the Group (note
25) and charges over client securities with market value
of HK$153,698,000. The remaining balance represented
unsecured bank borrowings. These bank borrowings carried
interest with a range of HIBOR+1.5% p.a. to HIBOR+2% p.a.
(2015: HIBOR+1.65% p.a. to HIBOR+2.25% p.a.).

All the banking facilities granted to the Group are subject to
guarantees given to the banks by the Company.

29.Loans Payable

The amounts were advanced from an independent third
party, which were unsecured, fixed interest bearing at 8%
p.a. and repayable from the year end date as follows:

Within one year

AEBRBEREREESERAA([H
EREES DI5%KE HERERES
MR2015%F 201649 A 30 B I £ ¥ 754
BRAMEFE -

RRRNTEERE  AEERKRER
BEESHMBAECHRETEZEENAEKE
AAHE  IHERBAIHEERE -

ARBMITEERE  XEREREH
SZBEFE AE2REESN2015F
20169 830H 2 AFEZEANE -

28. EHIRIT AR

MR2016 F9 A30H - % BRI 17 1&
7% 550,000,000 & T ( 2015 4
480,000,000 /& 7t ) # B #E R 17 & K
330,000,000/ 7T (20154F « T L) »
BMAEEBRTER(ME2) KA
153,698,000/ 8 7L 2 B F & H ML fEHK
e BT 2HBREEEBRITER - %
ERTEBERANFEEENTEBRERITH
¥R BN 5% ERBRITRERSM
2% 2 (20154 « HBRITREFREM
1.65% B BIRITRZERBM2.25% 2
FEﬁ) °

AEBERMBRITHEZ AR MR
TTIEH AV ERRR -

JERNER

ZEREA-RBILE=TEN - RE
HH - RFESSEZEEMRFE - B
ANFHEBREENT

2016 2015
HK$'000

HK$'000
FET FTERT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

30.Bonds Issued

Current

Corporate bonds — Open offer

Corporate bonds — Placing

(K1 (a))

NAES—RE
(Bt£(a))

(note (a))

(note (a))

NEEHZF - RHEE

30.C#TES

2016
HKS$'000

2015
HKS'000

FTET FET

Non-current

Corporate bonds — Open offer

Corporate bonds — Placing

ek
(note (a)) (Kti#(a))
NEfEH—RE

(note (a) and (b)) (Btt(a) (b))

NEMES - NFE

&=

=

—J Emperor Capital Group Limited ~ #2&

On 27 November 2013, the Group issued corporate bonds in
principal amount of HK$303,033,500 by way of open offer and of
HK$303,033,500 by way of placing respectively. The bonds carry a
fixed annual interest rate of 5.5% with a maturity period of 3 years, and
the interest is payable annually in arrears on 27 November in each year
with the first interest payment date on 27 November 2014. Pursuant to
the respective bond instruments of the aforesaid corporate bonds, the
Group may, at any time, before the maturity date of the bonds, redeem
the bonds by giving not less than 10 business days written notice at
100% of the principal amount of such bonds together with payment
of interest accrued thereon up to the date of redemption. Subject to
the conditions of the respective bond instruments of the aforesaid
corporate bonds, the bondholder(s) shall not have the right to request
the Company to redeem the bonds prior to the maturity date of the
bonds.

As at 30 September 2016, the non-current portion of outstanding
corporate bonds balances of HK$964 million represent the eight
tranches of the corporate bonds, including an aggregate principal
amount of Hong Kong Dollar bonds of approximately HK$910 million
and an aggregate principal amount of U.S. Dollar bonds of US$8 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$62 million), issued by the Company
during the current year. The bonds dominated in Hong Kong dollars
and US dollars carry a fixed annual interest rate of 5.25% and 4.5%
respectively with a maturity period of 3 years from the issue date, and
the interest will be paid annually in arrears with the first interest payment
date on the first anniversary date after bond issuance. Pursuant to the
bond instrument, the Group may, at any time, before the maturity date of
the bonds, redeem the bonds by giving not less than 10 business days
written notice at 100% of the principal amount of such bonds together
with payment of interest accrued thereon up to the date of redemption.
Subject to the conditions of the bond instrument, the bondholder(s)
shall not have the right to request the Company to redeem the bonds
prior to the maturity date of the bonds.

4 kY

ZEERRA

all

M2013F 11 A278 - AEE DRI A AFRE
& RERE A A B 174 ¢ %8303,033,5007% 7T
12303,033,5008 T 2 A EIES - BHIEE
EFEFE55%:TE - BEmia=F  mHa
BIRENESEMNI1A27TEXN - BEMNER
A2014F 11 A27H - RIB LM ARIESZ
MHEBEEH S - AEBA R EHEIE B AR
BEBELTLRI0ELER 2 EmBALR
BBEESHASEZ100%EREZE L A 5
JERTZ M BEREERES - £ LA RES
ZHBEFXBEZIEEZHRRT  BHEFE
ABEBEERARANESFHAAREEE
# °

MR2016F9A30RH » KEERRBEHEH
I 7 B 6 964,000,000 JT 5 B A A AR
AEBEAZ \BRARNEF(BEALEE
49910,000,0008 L 2 B ILEH A G A5
8,000,000 7t (18 & 7 %62,000,000% JT )
ZETLEF) o MBI RETHEZEE D F
BEFEFEHMNES.25% K% 4.5%:TE @ [BmiiA
BETRABRN =F  MABBREIZN -
HEMEAABEHFETEE—MAFA - R
BEFE - NEBE AR ESE A AR
FRFELHTOM0EEER 2 EMBIIRE
BEHFASHEZI100%EREEZERL A Sk
T2 RBFIBERES o fEEHFXE 2G4
ZHBT  BEFFEABERERERRRN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 B Z2016F9830H ILFE

31.Share Capital 31. A

Number of ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each

Nominal value of
ordinary shares

BREE.0ERZEBRER EBRAR

2016 2015 2016 2015

Authorised: AT
At beginning of year E2))
At end of year FiR
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
At beginning of year E2))
Issue of shares Ei1ikin
At end of year FHR

On 26 March 2015, the Company announced a rights issue
on the basis of 1 rights share for every 2 existing shares held
by Shareholders of the Company at the discounted price of
HK$0.50 per share (the “Rights Issue”). The Rights Issue was
completed on 4 June 2015 with 1,315,981,908 rights shares
being issued. After deducting the expenses in connection
with this Rights Issue amounting to HK$6.8 million, the net
proceeds raised were HK$651.2 million.

On 26 March 2015, the Company announced a placing of
1,300,000,000 new shares at the placing price of HK$0.5 per
placing share (the “Placing”). The Placing was completed on
4 June 2015 with 1,300,000,000 placing shares being issued.
After deducting the expenses in connection with this Placing
amounting to approximately HK$6.0 million, the net proceeds
raised were approximately HK$644.0 million.

On 7 July 2015, the Company announced a subscription
and placing of 500,000,000 new shares in aggregate at the
price of HK$0.88 per share (the “Subscription & Placing”).
The Subscription & Placing was completed on 14 July 2015
with 500,000,000 new shares being issued. After deducting
the expenses in connection with this Subscription & Placing
amounting to approximately HK$7.4 million, the net proceeds
raised were approximately HK$432.6 million.

500,000,000,000

500,000,000,000

2,631,963,816
3,115,981,908

5,747,945,724

} ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER

5,000,000

5,000,000

26,320
31,159

R2015F3A26H » KRR EMLE AR
AR R ERFEMRIRE RO AT IRITEE
FIR0.508 T ER B —IRERRDHE
AEFEITHMBR (AR ]) - HIRMN201556
B4H5EMK » #171,315,981,9080% #t i%
AR {7 o $0BR £ A% &9 48 78 7 2. 6,800,000
BILIE MESEZABRBEIFHEA
651,200,000/ 7T °

M2015F3A26H * "QAAE i
REESRESERMH0SELRESE
1,300,000,000 & ¥ B 0 ([ B & 1)
Bl EMN2015F6 A48 TRk » 17
1,300,000,000 B B & J1n - MK A&
#) #H B8 A % 496,000,000/ 7012 © FTE
£ 213 5B F 4 /644,000,000
7TE °

R20156F7A7H » ARREHEKE
fross B T v BERREREEA K
500,000,000 A% 7 I 15 ([ 2 B8 & B2
£])  REMEENR2015F7 148
SEAK v #17500,000,000 8% H A 7 o 30
4 R 8 K id & /Y9 FE B8 7 X 497,400,000
BILIE  MEEZHERBEIFENAE
432,600,000/ 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B ERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

31.Share Capital (Continued) 31.BRA&(E)

On 18 May 2016, the Company announced a subscription of
380,000,000 new shares at the subscription price of HK$0.66
per subscription share (the “Subscription”). The Subscription
was completed on 31 May 2016 with 380,000,000
subscription shares being issued. After deducting the
expenses in connection with this Subscription, the net
proceeds raised were approximately HK$250.8 million.

The net proceeds raised are/will be used as working capital
for expansion of the Group’s existing businesses, especially
for the money lending (including commercial and personal
lending as well as margin and IPO financing) and asset
management businesses; repayment of outstanding loans;
and to finance any future business opportunities to be
identified by the Company.

32.Share Options

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 20 September 2007 which became effective
on 27 September 2007 and was then amended on 13 August
2013. A summary of the Scheme is set out as follows:

1. Purpose of the Scheme: To provide incentives or
rewards to the selected eligible participants for their
contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group
to recruit and retain high calibre employees and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group or
any entity in which the Group holds an equity interest
(“Invested Entity”).

2. Eligibility: Eligible participants include employees and
directors of the Group or any member of Invested Entity.

3. (a) Total number of Shares available for issue as at
the date of this Annual Report under the Scheme:
574,794,572 shares.

(b) Percentage of the issued shares that it represents
as at the date of this Annual Report: approximately
9.38%.

4. Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant
under the Scheme:

(a) in aggregate not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue
in any 12-month period unless approved by the
Shareholders; and

(b) options granted to substantial Shareholders
or independent non-executive directors of the
Company or their respective associates in any
12-month period exceeding the higher of 0.1% of
the shares in issue and with an aggregate value in
excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the
Shareholders of the Company.

N2016 E5 180 - A A A B
380,000,000 % i 10 2 REE © REBE
AERRERMD66ETL([RE]) -
RER2016 EF5 A31 B @ 1T
380,000,000 RERR D - %R RER
AR FTEEZTERIEFHELY
/250,800,000 7T, °
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32.Share Options (Continued) 32..BEWE(E)

5. Period within which the shares must be taken up 5, BREBRETRGOZHE :
under an option:

(a) subject to the condition that may be set by the (a) EEEeNREERERTR
Board upon granting of share options, an option TFEZIEHEZHEET - BEEHER
may be exercised at any time from the date of issue REREERRE RS 1T 2 A (1
of the relevant options; and RFREETE : &

(b) the Board may determine in its absolute discretion (b) B 2 ENIBREITERE
whether the right to exercise an option is subject to & #E 7 HEF EEBUASRZER
or conditional upon the achievement of the specified EAEKBERAD T A A
performance target(s) relating to the Company CIEERBEER SiEKE
or to the grantee and/or satisfaction of such FEen 2 ERNEREBRES
other conditions as the Board may in its absolute 2 EH Mg
discretion determine to be appropriate.

6. Minimum period for which an option must be 6. RUTHEBREZABSEBERE
held before it can be exercised: Unless otherwise NEEHRE : BRIEARTEESRTT
determined by the directors of the Company and stated SRTE WA [ AR A B H O BE PR AR
in the offer of grant of the share options to a grantee, HEARGE - F AL 28 iR
there is no minimum period required under the Scheme TERAIITEBIRE pI A EEBAR
for the holding of a share option before it can be RSB EAR -
exercised.

7. (a) Price payable on application or acceptance of the 7. (a) PEFHE Zmﬁﬁﬂﬂgﬁﬂ‘éﬁz

option: HK$1.00; B - 1.00/87T

(b) The period within which payments or calls must or (b) 7L AT BEME B A TR ER B A

may be made: Within 28 days from the date of grant; h e ER [sgg B3 Y B H#E 08
BHA

(c) Period within which loans for such purposes of the (c) WABEBINIIRMNTRA
payments or calls must be repaid: Not applicable. HEREHIR - TEA o

8. Basis for determining the exercise price: 8 {THEBzECHEE:

The exercise price is determined by the Board (subject THEERESeET (A FRE)

to adjustment) and will not be less than the highest of WHETNER ()RR ELHB R

(a) the official closing price of the share as stated in MR RERARZIERWT

the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the B (b)Y EZRZEY BRI AE
offer date; (b) the average of the official closing price of EEAORBMTERSRBRAIR

the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the SEHEAWTE - M(c)— R m 2

Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately HEUSESEAEE) o

preceding the offer date; and (c) the nominal value of a

share.

9. The remaining life of the Scheme: Less than 1 year 9, EEBz8TEH: TR1F(H
(expiring on 19 September 2017). 2017F9R19HEm) °

On 13 August 2013, a total of 129,354,000 share options R20139F8 A13H - 4351 129,354,000
were granted to four directors of the Company at an exercise {’ﬁ,&%ﬂﬁ%@}ga%% 1;%#} Tﬁ}ﬁﬁf
price of HK$0.334 each under the terms of the Scheme, of BOIMEBTLEFANAGINEZLESE -
which 32,346,000 share options were exercised during the 132,346, 0001\H§Hﬂfgﬂ§ti2o14¢9
year ended 30 September 2014, B30 FEEDEITE -
The number of remaining outstanding share options has BTIEMARITEZEIRESBE 2 AT
been adjusted to be 131,018,772 upon the rights issue as 1A E 2 IR % A E131,018,772
disclosed in note 31. None of the remaining outstanding 5o EREBET A —ES 2B T
share options are exercisable as the pre-determined vesting FER2015%FE12 A9H &3 8 £ 20154
conditions were confirmed not be fulfilled based on the OR3OHITFEZEFEFEHXENERBMIE
assessment performed by the management in prior year FTIETRBISEREERK - BEmE TN
and publication of the annual results announcement for the RITHEZERRERETE - 8 NiEMATT
year ended 30 September 2015 on 9 December 2015. The FZEREDNEZR20165F9830H 1E
remaining outstanding share options lapsed during the year FELR -

ended 30 September 2016.
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32.Share Options (Continued)

A summary of the movements of the outstanding share
options, which were granted to the directors of the Company
under the Scheme during the years ended 30 September
2016 and 2015 and the balances at these dates are as
follows:

For the year ended 30 September 2016

32.faRHE(E)

HZE2016F K2015F9 A30R ILFEAR
BZHAERFARREREZHATEZ
BRENESS LN ZE Bz St
N

BZE20165F9HA30HLLFE

Number of share options
RREHR
QOufsfanding Outstanding
Exercise as ot Lapsed asat  Estimated
Performance price per 30 Sepfember during 30 September ~ fair value af
Date of grant Exercisable period forget  Vesting period share 2015 the year 2016 date of grant
R2015% R2016%
9R30R 9R30R  WELRAH
RitAH RS *REE  BEH BRITEE HATE  RREEAN HATE 2 ATE
HKS () HK$'000
BT Tin
(b)
13 August 2013 Date immediately after (e) Date of grant to the date 0247 57,657,012 (57,657,012) - 5,676(a)
the publication of of publication of the
the audited financial audited financial
results for the year results for the year
ended 30 September ended 30 September
201510 12 July 2018 2015
(d)
013%8A138  ZRHEHZ201559A (e) RHABZHZ015F
0B HEEBEY 9A30RLLEEZ
AhEER ASE BEREREEL
201857A128(d) flgng
13 August 2013 Date immediately after (f) Date of grant to the date 0247 73361760  (73,361,760) - 7,178(a)
the publication of of publication of the
the audited financial audited financial
results for the year results for the year
ended 30 September ended 30 September
20150 12 July 2018 2015
013%8A138  ZRHEHZ201559A (f) RHABZEZ015F
0B HERBEY 9R30RLLEEZ
ipiEd wAsk BEVAHEEL
2018577128 EEE
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32.Share Options (Continued) 32..BEWE(E)
For the year ended 30 September 2015 HZE2015F9HA30H IEFE
Number of share opfions
ERE%A
QOutstanding Outstanding ~ Estimated
osat  Exercised  Adjustment asat  fairvolue
Performance Exercise price 30 September during by rights 30 September af date
Dofe of grant ~ Exercisable period forget  Vesting period per share 2014 the year issues 2015 of grant
20148 20158
9A30A 98308  RELAH
RiHAH T RRAE  BREE SRiEE mATE  RREEAE  AHR3E HATE  ZfiRATE
HKS ©) HK$'000
AT Thn
()
13 August 2013 Date immediately after ) Date of grant to the 0.247 42,690,000 - 14967012 57,657,012 5,676(a)
the publication of date of publication
the audited financial of the audited
results for the year financial results for
ended 30 September the year ended 30
201510 12 July 2018 September 2015

(d)
N13E8A13E ZRHHEZ201549A (e) RiLBHEEE015E

0B LER RN 9A30RILEEZ
BxEkz AR eI
01857A128(d) ELEE

13 August 2013 Date immediately after () Date of grant fo the 0.247 54,318,000 - 19043760 73,361,760 7.178(a)
the publication of date of publication
the audited financial of the audited
results for the year financial results for
ended 30 September he year ended 30
20151012 July 2018 September 2015

N1358A138  ERMBER01508 () Rt BHEHZ016E
NALEE 85 OAALEREL
Hl%ERz AR LESEN S v
218%7A128 EE
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

32.Share Options (Continued)

Notes:

(a) The fair value of options granted were calculated using the Black-
Scholes model with Binomial Tree method. The inputs into the models
are as follows:

Share price at date of grant - HK$0.335
Exercise price - HK$0.334
Expected volatility : 54.36%
Expected life of years 1 4.92 years
Risk free rate 0 1.10%
Expected dividend yield 1 2.65%

50% of the shares that are issued pursuant to the exercise of the share
option, shall be subject to a lock-up period of 6 calendar months from
the relevant exercise date and the remaining 50% shall be subject to a
lock-up period of 12 calendar months from the relevant exercise date.
During the lock-up period, no share issued upon exercise of the share
option is allowed to be traded, transferred, pledged or charged.

(b) The exercise price had been adjusted from HK$0.334 to HK$0.247 with
the effect of the rights issue as disclosed in note 31.

(c) The rights issue as disclosed in note 31 constitutes a reorganisation
of capital structure pursuant to the Scheme and adjustment has to be
made to the exercise prices and the number of shares subject to the
Scheme.

(d) Subject to the fulfillment of the pre-determined vesting conditions, the
share options were originally exercisable from the date immediately
after the publication of the audited financial results of the Group for the
year ended 30 September 2014 to 12 July 2018. In accordance with
the pre-determined vesting conditions, the exercise period has been
changed to commencing on the date immediately after the publication
of the audited financial results of the Group for the year ended 30
September 2015 to 12 July 2018.

(e) Achievement of target net profit for the financial year 2014, or
achievement of cumulative target net profit for the financial years 2014
and 2015.

(f)  Achievement of target net profit for the financial year 2015, or
achievement of cumulative target net profit for the financial years 2014
and 2015.

(g) The options lapsed on 10 December 2015.

Expected volatility was estimated by the historical
daily volatility of the share prices of the Company. The
expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based
on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-
transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

32.faRHE(E)

et -

(a)

(9)

ERHZBRE L A TEDER - XEEN
BhR - SRERETHE - ZEA 28
ABIBNT

RREZ B ZKRE :0.335% 7T
I8 1 0.3347 7T
EHAK 18 : 54.36%
TAEE W ©4.92%F

A [ e 6 o £ 1.10%
FEHARR B % ©2.65%

AT E BB AR 12 T LA B 1T Z IR £ 2 50% 48
FTERERENEBAZEHEY K&k
T 50%IMEAARITTE R B RA + —EE
AZEER - REEMA - BERITEER
RETUNEITZROAIAEE - #:& - KF
BEHEE

BANMI ST IR R 2 R Ak - 1TEEE K
0.334 B TTHEE0.2478 7T ©

MIFES1AT IR « AR R IB LT B2 B A
RIBEM - BOREBEZEETERS REH
B EH T

FIERETREBKGE  BRERLEZRE
FIEAREBEHZE2014F9A30H L FE 2K
B BEERZ AHRZE2018F7 A12H
LERTAT(E - IRIBTETE R BIGHF - (TEHEE
ERAREETEAREEHE2015F9H30A
IFFE 2BV IS EER 2 BB E2018
F7A128I1E °

ER2014FHMRFEELAF B AZ o siEK
20144 R2015F M I E 254 F B IE -

ER2015FHMBRFELAFBZ  siEK
2014F R2015F W BFE R4 F EF -

ZEBIERN2015F12 5108 K3 -

BEHERVEARRREZ BESEE
fBfhat - A NATEE - 1TERG RTA
FEMEEREZFE  ZEAMKEA
ZTEHEXRTFHEREERE 2 &ER
FHEHFAE -
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32.Share Options (Continued) 32.[BRE(E)

The Black-Scholes option pricing model has been used to
estimate the fair value of the options. The variables and
assumptions used in computing the fair value of the share
options are based on the executive directors’ best estimate.
The value of an option varies with different variables of
certain subjective assumptions.

No share-based payment expenses have been recognised in
both current and prior year since the vesting conditions have
not been fulfilled.

33.Retirement Benefits Scheme

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
scheme which is registered under the Hong Kong
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO
Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) established under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of
the schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of independent trustees. Employees
who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the
establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of
staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF
Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the Group on or
after 1 December 2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from
both employees and the Group at rates ranging from 5% to
7% of the employees’ basic salary, depending on the length
of service with the Group.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5%
of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme with maximum cap at
HK$1,500, which contribution is matched by the employee.

The retirement benefit costs charged to the profit or loss
represent contributions payable to the funds by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the schemes. Where there are
employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully
in the contributions, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

At 30 September 2015 and 2016, no forfeited contributions
arose upon employees leaving the ORSO Scheme.

} ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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4.BEALRS
(a) BRAEABIRE H A E5 FT¥ il 2 52

34.Related Party Transactions
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in

these financial statements, the Group had the following S5 REEERFEBALTHETT
significant transactions with related parties: BARS :
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiBx FBx
(i)  Corporate finance advisory M EE A B E 2
services fee income from AR RS E WA
related companies (HfaF3k6)
(notes 3 & 6) 2,220
(i) Sharing of information system HAIEEMRG RITHARTE
and administrative expenses i 24T R IER T EE R R
paid and payable to related ZEBRKH2K6)
companies (notes 2 & 6) 11,678
Management fee to a related LY HBAERFCERE
company (notes 2 & 6) (Hiat2k6) 314
(iii)  Operating lease rentals mEE R A
expenses to related EmMe(Mit3ke6)
companies (notes 3 & 6) 7,729
(iv) Commission and brokerage M 5 WEVR & &g B
income from WA
— a related company ——ME LA
(notes 3 & 6) (Ht:t3%6) 2
— directors of the Company S YNEId- ==
(notes 1 & 3) (HieE1X3) 5
(v)  Placing and underwriting RE—EEEREZ
commission income from a i R BEHEAE KA
related company (notes 3 & 6)  (H71356) 30
(vi)  Placing and underwriting XN —HE@AERFZ
commission expenses to a feERBHEME
related company (note 3) (H1:#3) -
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M4.BEAELRS (&
(a) (#&)

34.Related Party Transactions (Continued)
(a) (Continued)

AT RER R ZENR -

(vii)  Printing, advertising and

2016
HK$'000

2015
HK$'000

FET FER

promotion expenses to related  EBHENLEEER
companies (notes 2 & 6) (Kiaz2X6)

(vii)  Accounts payable to margin HEFEEXBMEEZ
and cash clients arising EBRNAFRERERFZ
from business of dealing in FEATBR IR
securities by
— an associate (note 4) — —fEE N A

(Ki7F4)
— directors of the Company —ARRABIZES
and/or their associates &S EBEA
(notes 1 & 2) (Mat1k2)

AERARXNEE R
Hipig s (HiE5K6)

(ix)  Rental and other deposits paid
to related companies
(notes 5 & 6)

AARRB 2 HBS AT

(x) Underwriting commission

expenses arising from rights —RIBERRZ
issue of the Company paidtoa  B#fHe X H
related company (notes 6 & 7) (Kiaz6X7)

Notes:

(1) For the transactions with the director(s) of the Company,
the directors include a director who is one of the eligible
beneficiaries of the AY Trust, a trust set up by Dr. Albert Yeung.

(2) These transactions are connected transactions exempted
from reporting, announcement and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules.

(8) These transactions are disclosable continuing connected
transactions (as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules)
of the Company which details have been set out in the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” under “Directors’
Interest in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts and
Connected Continuing Transactions” of the Directors’ Report.
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

34.Related Party Transactions (Continued) 4. BEALRB(E)
(a) (Continued) (a) (%)
Notes: (Continued) Btst - (&)

(4)

The associate company of the Group is disclosed in note 19 to
the consolidated financial statements.

(4) ZEERRRIEREMBEMEMEI9AT
WHEAEEEE AR -

(5) This amount represents refundable rental deposits paid for the (5) ZeTHENEFTEWMEIEETARS -
continuing connected transactions as set out in the section ZHRENRBEWAEZ G 2R IT
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” under “Directors’ [FHERERD | — A EERE
Interest in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts and RGNz REEERS -
Connected Continuing Transactions” of the Director’s Report.

(6) The related company/companies is/are controlled by the AY (6) #Z(Z)BAEABIHAY TrustFTiEsl o
Trust.

(7) This transaction is a connected transaction (as defined under (7) ZRGRARAEFEZHAERS(E

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) of the Company for the previous
year.

(b) The compensation to directors and key management
personnel was disclosed in notes 11 and 12.

35.0perating Lease Commitments

At the end of each of the reporting periods, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of office premises
and office equipment which fall due as follows:

2016

Rental

premises equipment

HEWE
HK$’000
FET

ER FMHRBIFE14AE) o

(b) EERFEEEBABZMESRMF
1112 HEEE -

5. R &EHERIE
REHEMEK - NEBERIEHAYE
R AR 2Tl G A 1%
YN SERERIE Y AE - HED
M2 BRI :

2015

Rental
premises
HEW=E
HKS$'000
F#E T

Hired Hired
equipment
ARG
HKS$'000

FER

HARE
HK$’000

FET

Within one year —FR 9,859 402
In the second to fifth “EERF
years inclusive (’T%Efﬁﬁi) 3,760 142
13,619 544
For office premises and office equipment, leases are mainly P AENLRAERENS  HHTE
negotiated and rentals are fixed for an average term of two KEEESE c Me HETE 0 FHEY
years. HIRMEF -

—} Emperor Capital Group Limited
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36.Summary Financial Information of the

36. AN MBERBE

Company
2016 2015
HKS$’000 HK$’000
THT THExT

Investment in a subsidiary R—REMRB AR ZZE 219,003
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR NI 63,350
Amount due from subsidiaries JE W BfT /BB A B 2 SR IE 2,638,502
Subordinated loan due from a FEW — R B A Al 2

subsidiary BIEER 444,000
Other assets HihEE 196
Total assets EERE 3,365,051
Other creditors and accrued charges — Efh B BR X K BT & (28,373)
Tax liabilities HREAE (2,802)
Bonds issued EEITES -
Current liabilities RBAE (31,175)
Total assets less current liabilities EEZABRABERE 3,333,876
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE

Bonds issued BEITES (598,966)
Net assets BEEFE 2,734,910
Capital and reserves B R#E

Share capital N 57,479

Reserves (Note) i (at) 2,677,431
Total equity REREE 2,734,910

} ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

36.Summary Financial Information of the 36. AR EIM K ERBREZ
Company (Continued)
Note: Hiat -

Share
Share Share Special Retained option
capital  premium reserve profits reserve Total

BRA  RDSE HEREE RIBEN BREREG st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
THET FHBT FET TR THET FTHET

At 1 October 2014 M2014F10A1H 26,320 856,031 101,953 11,6562 - 995,856

Profit for the year FE A - - - 114,061 - 114,061

Total comprehensive income for FE 7 2425

the year - - - 114,061 - 114,061
Dividend recognised as BRIED IR ZIRE

distribution - - - (89,375) - (89,375)
Issue of shares BITREG 31,159 1,683,209 - - - 1,714,368
At 30 September 2015 K2015F9A30H 57,479 2,539,240 101,953 36,238 - 2,734,910
Profit for the year F A - - - 259,735 - 259,735

Total comprehensive income for & 7 245

the year - - - 259,735 - 259,735
Dividend recognised as RIEDIRZIRE

distribution - - - (165,501) - (165,501)
Issue of shares BT 3,800 246,998 - - - 250,798
At 30 September 2016 R20164F9 8308 61,279 2,786,238 101,953 130,472 - 3,079,942
Special reserve represents the difference between nominal FRlREEARAINB AR EETL M
value of the ordinary shares of the subsidiaries of the I 2 EEE AR FRIEN2007F4 28
Company in issue and the nominal value of the shares issued ZEEEAFWE —FENB AR mET
by the Company for acquisition of a subsidiary pursuant to a RO EERZ =5 -

group reorganisation on 2 April 2007.
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 B{Z2016F9H30H ILFE

37.Principal Subsidiaries 37.XEMBE AT
Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at R2015%F & 2016F9H30H + AAAFE
30 September 2015 and 2016 are as follows: EWBRARIZFBAT :

Name of subsidiary

WELRER

Place of
incorporation/
operation
ML/
X

Issued and fully
paid capital
ERTRBEER

Proportion of nominal
value of issued
share capital held
by the Company
APAHAZ
ERTRAEELLPA
30.9.2016  30.9.2015
20165 20155
9A30H 9H30H

% %

Principal activities

Emperor Asset Management ~ Hong Kong HK$7,000,000 100 Provision of asset
Limited management services
REERERRERAT BE 7,000,000/ 7T RUEEEERS
Emperor Capital Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 Provision of corporate
finance advisory
services
REREFRAF BE 10,000,000 7 RECEBEBERRE
Emperor Capital (China) Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 Provision of promotion
Limited and marketing services
in the PRC
REEFPAXBBERAF BB 100,000 7T RPERASERTS
RERS
Emperor Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 Provision of money
lending services
RERBERRA BB 28T RS TR
Emperor Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 100 Provision of futures
brokerage services
REBERRNA B 50,000,000/ 7 REBE LR
Emperor Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$520,000,000 100 Provision of securities
brokerage services
and margin financing
services
REFH(BB)BRAH BB 520,000,000/ 7T RUEBFELRELARR

} ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZ2016F9H30H ILFE

37.Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Issued and fully
Name of subsidiary operation paid capital
WEAREHR B ERTRARER

EXBH

37.TEMBLR(E)

Proportion of nominal
value of issued
share capital held
by the Company Principal activities
ARAFEZ TEXH
ERTRAEELA

30.9.2016  30.9.2015

20165 2015%
9A30H 9A30R
% %

Emperor Securities Nominees  Hong Kong HK$2
Limited
BE 2B
Emperor Wealth Management  Hong Kong HK$6,500,000
Limited
RENEERRRAR B 6,500,000/ 7T
RATERFA(LE)ERAR  People’s Republic HK$1,000,000
of China
hEARLME 1,000,000/ 7T
REREFANILR)BRAA  People’s Republic HK$1,000,000
of China
REAREME 1,000,000/ 7T
REREFACRI)BRAF  People’s Republic HK$500,000
of China
R ARLAE 500,000/ T
# The subsidiaries are wholly foreign-owned enterprises.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the executive directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or net assets of the Group.
To give details of all subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
executive directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.

Except for a wholly owned subsidiary which has issued a
bond of HK$45 million in current year and this bond was
subsequently fully repaid before 30 September 2016, none
of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the
end of the year, or at any time during the year.

—J Emperor Capital Group Limited ~ HE2XHEEERD

100  Provision of securities
nominee services

REEFREARE

100 Provision of insurance
and other brokerage
services

R R R H R RS

100 Business development in
the PRC

RPEETERER

100 Business development in
the PRC

RPEETEBRER

100  Business development in
the PRC

R EETRBRE
* o REMBARIEBEELE -

ERFIARBATEERREIERE
AEBEXEXBEEFEZARBINEA
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 B Z2016F9830H ILFE

38.Event After the Reporting Period 3. EHRER

On 28 October 2016 and 8 November 2016, the Company
issued bonds in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$211,700,000 and US$2,100,000. The bonds dominated
in Hong Kong dollars and US dollars carry a fixed annual
interest rate of 5.25% and 4.5% respectively with a maturity
period of 3 years, and the interest will be paid annually
in arrears with the first interest payment date on the first
anniversary date after bond issuance.

On 14 November 2016, the Company entered into a placing
agreement for placing bonds in an aggregate principal
amount up to HK$400,000,000. The bonds dominated in
Hong Kong dollars carry a fixed annual interest rate of 5%
with a maturity period of 3 years, and the interest will be paid
annually in arrears with the first interest payment date on
the first anniversary date after bond issuance. This bonds
placing has not yet been completed as at the reporting date
of these consolidated financial statements.

On 1 December 2016, the Company announced a
subscription of 612,900,000 new shares at the subscription
price of HK$0.66 per subscription share (the “Subscription”)
by Taiping Trustees Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong, whose ultimate controlling Shareholder is China
Taiping Insurance Group Limited. The Subscription has
not yet been completed as at the reporting date of these
consolidated financial statements. The aggregate gross
proceeds of the Subscription will be approximately HK$404.5
million.

} ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

7 2016 £ 10 A 28 B & 2016 F 11
A8H  ARRBITASBELS
211,700,000 7t }.2,100,0003% 7T 2 {&
5o REBEEDUBTRETE I
D RREFEFHEE.25% M 4.5%:1 8.
EmBR=F FNESSEXN - maE
BENERBREHFZETENE —ERF
E| °

MR2016F 11 A148 » R QA
EmaE NREAFTASBELRA
400,000,000 8 T 2 &% - ZFEFH
THAB LB - WIRE EF FE5%5T
B RE=FE"  FEBEBFZM -
meEEf BB AESFEITENE @A
FH MNEZEHRAEMBRERREAE -
ZEEHRE R ARTEK o

R2016F12A1H » KA RIEMHMAF
SEARAR(—HEREBFMKILZ
nAEl EEKERBRRAEFBEKFR
BEBBRETAR)ZTRABEBRG
0.668 7L 2 REE R HE612,900,000 8%
FlRMD(TREEER]) - RZEHEEH
HHMFRHELE  BEARBEIRMART
Ko REEBRIMEREBEBLEBEENAR
404,500,000/ 7T °
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHE

Year ended 30 September
BZE9H30HLLEFE
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$S'000
FET FEx FEx FiEx FiER

RESULT S

Revenue WA 223,801 434,804 546,408 835,077
Profit before taxation B 258 A1 g A 72,601 186,958 269,127 519,634
Taxation MIE (9,230)  (30,981)  (48,332)  (89,383)
Profit for the year FEm A 63,371 155,977 220,795 430,251

As at 30 September
M9H30H
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
FExT FEx FEx FERT TERT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE

Total assets BERE 1,903,451 3,965,263 4,350,961 6,600,478
Total liabilities BERE (653,552) (2,580,182) (2,780,827) (2,961,574)
Net assets BEFRE 1,249,899 1,385,081 1,570,134 3,638,904

—J Emperor Capital Group Limited ~ HE2XF#EEERDF
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